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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and
distribution of instant noodles and beverages in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group started its instant noodle
business in 1992, and expanded into instant food business and
beverage business in 1996. In March 2012, the Group further
expanded its beverage business by forming a strategic alliance
with PepsiCo for the beverage business in the PRC. The Company
exclusively manufactures, bottles, packages, distributes and sells
PepsiCo soft drinks in the PRC. The Group’s main business segments
have established leading market shares in the PRC’s food industry.
According to AC Nielsen December 2020 data, based on sales
volume, in 2020, the Group was the market leader in instant
noodles and ready-to-drink teas (incl. milk tea), having gained
43.7% and 43.6% market shares, respectively. In the overall juice
drink market, the Group gained 17.3% market share, ranked No.2.
According to GlobalData December 2020 data, based on sales
volume, Pepsi carbonated soft drinks had 33.4% market share and
held a second position. After years of hard work and accumulation,
“Master Kong” has become one of the best-known brands among
consumers in the PRC.

Being a leading brand in the fast moving consumer goods industry,
Master Kong has to hold the industry responsibility of food safety
and quality guarantee. The Group constantly builds and improves
management system, establishes risk prevention management
system, implements entire control over food safety and ensures
product quality and safety. We will constantly strive for product
quality and food safety, as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty
and healthy food products.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 365 sales offices and 236
warehouses serving 47,898 wholesalers and 210,366 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2020. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables
the Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December
2020 was US$9.6 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) China Index and Hang
Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and distribution business, the
Group will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in
the PRC with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese
Instant Food & Beverage in the World".
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For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ANREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’ 000 = RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
(&E=5)
(Restated)
I 25 Revenue 67,617,835 61,978,158 60,685,645 58,953,788 55,578,849
BB R R A Profit before taxation 6,531,912 5,411,596 3,979,334 3,392,736 2,433,516
18 Taxation (1,958,228) (1,693,374) (1,250,565) (1,137,368) (1,051,453)
AE i F Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769 2,255,368 1,382,063

JE (& 7 Profit attributable to:
RARRE Owners of the Company 4,062,263 3,330,981 2,463,321 1,819,077 1,161,699
DHR R R Non-controlling interests 511,421 387,241 265,448 436,291 220,364
KNEEHF Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769 2,255,368 1,382,063
iz & Dividends 4,062,263 = 3,330,981 2,463,321 909,539 580,849
AR ANRES ARE7 ARES ARES
RMB cents @ RMB cents RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents

sl eingl Earnings per share
BEAR Basic 72.23 59.25 43.85 32.45 20.73
B Diluted 72.15 59.20 43.77 3242 20.73
EemEER 03
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As at 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ABMFL | AREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 = RMB 000  RMB'000  RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
(BE5)
(Restated)
REEFEmE Investment properties 1,771,700 1,771,500 1,119,000 1,106,000 1,060,000
mE - BREREE Property, plant and equipment 21,934,571 23,013,991 24,927,630 28,014,779 32,556,784
EREEE Right-of-use assets 3,804,456 4,025,124 — — —
THBAEE Prepaid lease payments — — 3,570,367 3,730,767 3,932,435
BN AR Interest in an associate 94,802 139,537 127,725 120,568 160,538
AENAER Interest in joint venture 627,031 889,065 698,743 660,691 676,408
BVEE Intangible assets 165,668 183,409 186,458 162,936 179,179
HindenehaeE Other non-current assets 4,431,860 2,499,236 1,465,275 1,362,410 917,910
FRBEE (BF) Net current asset (liabilities) 1,629,302 (2,869,623)  (2,977,064)  (5038,644)  (6,670,267)
FRBARE Non-current liabilities (9,720,007) (6,606,132)  (5,505,703)  (7,825,463)  (8,712,408)
FEE Net assets 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431 22,294,044 24,100,579
BATIRAR Issued capital 235,422 235,401 235,204 235,053 234,767
[t Reserves 20,877,302 | 19,343,173 19,418272 18,177,026 17,888,773
DHRE R Non-controlling interests 3,626,659 3,467,533 3,958,955 3,881,965 5,977,039
RRERBE Total equity 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431 22,294,044 24,100,579
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PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL REVENUE BY SEGMENT
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Sales Network

&R Shenyang
pr—
¥BJN Zhengzhou
i G
& Chongqing #M Hangzhou
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. .
7
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FEEM KiE M = e BE HiZ AR Hith &st
Production Centre Tianjin  Hangzhou Guangzhou Shenyang Chongging  Wuhan Xian  Other Centres  Total
B EEER . "
e W W W W W W W
ah O o » » > » »
s @ & & € &€ &€ & 7
Beverage Business
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2 g2 ¥E yE yE
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
& EFT Sales Office 598 369 369 371 365
72 & Warehouse 69 92 108 182 236
#Z 847 Wholesale 33,653 35,163 28,415 36,186 47,898
E%ZER Direct Retailer 116,222 129,449 140,779 185,789 210,366
BT A% Employee 65,182 56,995 54,210 58,182 60,654
4 E# Production Line 719 676 613 604 584
4 EEH Production Centre 126 118 103 88 86
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In spite of the Novel Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) outbreak in
the beginning of 2020, our Group has pressed ahead by continually
executing the business strategy of “Consolidate, Reform and Develop”.
With the joint efforts from each and every one of our colleagues, our
Group managed to realize a smooth and orderly transformation and
upgrading, and thus surviving a tough year. We are particularly grateful
for the support and help from the government, the community, our
partners and customers, and also greatly appreciate the contributions of
our colleagues who went to the front line and played an important part
in the fight against the COVID-19 pandemic.

Currently, traditional forms of food and beverage industry are challenged
and reshaped by the rampant global pandemic, rapidly-changing society
and swiftly-iterating technologies. Under such a circumstance, Master
Kong “Conforms to the industry trend” to carry out innovations while
proactively exploring its positioning in the new era. We have embraced
new technologies, promoted digital transformation, and built agile
management to maintain our competitive edges. Apart from remaining
true to the original aspiration of “Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage
Culture”, our Group will keep on taking “Catering to Consumer Needs”
as the first priority and offering delicious and innovative products under
the "Quality First” principle, so that public demand for a better life
can be met. In addition, we are well determined to “Fulfill Corporate
Social Responsibility” and have been trying the utmost to pay back to
the society by striving for higher scores on Environmental, Social, and
Corporate Governance ratings.

| sincerely hope that Master Kong will forge ahead hand in hand
with all the customers, employees, partners and shareholders, and
remain focused and pragmatic in the pursuit of leading the industry
in “sustainable development”, thus ultimately building itself as a
comprehensive “Chinese Ethical Brand” of food and beverage with
international influence.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude
to all fellow members of the Board, the management team, employees
and customers for their support over the years.

Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
22 March, 2021 e
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Group Structure
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Note: This chart illustrates TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.'s
direct or indirect proportion of ownership interest of its Principal Subsidiaries.
* represents direct translation of registered name in Chinese.

° BREABE(PEDKREBRRAR

Formerly known as PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The year 2020 was an extraordinary one. Over the past year, China
managed to contain the coronavirus pandemic within a short period
of time and its economy gradually recovered and further developed,
standing out as the only major economy worldwide to achieve positive
growth. Despite such remarkable achievements, it was also undeniable
that the year 2020 witnessed the blocked global supply chain, surging
commodities prices, and shrinking international trade due to the
rampant spread of the COVID-19 pandemic. The overall economic
environment, under such a complicated and serious circumstance, was
posed great pressures and challenges to.

Yet the instant noodle industry in the overall market demonstrated
strong and vigorous development momentum when customers’
needs for instant noodles increased sharply in the first half of 2020.
It was not until the second half of 2020 that the sales of the instant
noodle business returned to a normal level and the beverage segment
rejuvenated after a slight decline in the first half of 2020. The new
normal in the post-COVID-19 era accelerated the transition and
restructuring of the business environment, manifested by increasing
household consumption needs, the rise of 020 and community group
buying, the emerging of consumption polarization and the like. All these

changes presented both opportunities and challenges for the Group.

10 EMEZERERAA
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In 2020, the Group, by executing the business strategy of “Consolidate,
Reform and Develop”, further developed the mass consumer markets,
laid out the high-end markets, and explored deeper into the markets in
new rural areas. To fit the diversified needs of customers and clients, the
Group sped up the digital transformation process as well as optimized
the new retail business with further enhanced system construction.

The Group's total revenue in 2020 reached RMB 67.618 billion, a
year-on-year increase of 9.10%. Specifically, revenue from the instant
noodles business increased by 16.64% and the beverage segment
by 4.72% year on year. The gross profit margin of 2020 climbed to
33.17%, up by 1.29 percentage points compared with that of 2019.
The ratio of distribution costs to revenue decreased by 0.46 percentage
points to 20.93% year on year. EBITDA rose by 9.59% to RMB 9.361
billion year on year. Thanks to the growth in sales, expansion in gross
profit margin and the reduction in distribution costs ratio, the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company increased by 21.95% to
RMB 4.062 billion and basic earnings per share increased by RMB 12.98
cents to RMB 72.23 cents.

Instant Noodles Business

As shown in the Nielsen’s data, the sales volume of overall instant
noodles market in 2020 grew by 0.1% year on year, with a year-on-year
increase of 4.7% in sales value. Over the past year, Master Kong held
a market share of 43.7% and 46.3% respectively in sales volume and
sales value, both registering continual growth and ranking first in the
market.

2020 recorded a year-on-year increase of 16.64% in the Group's
revenue from instant noodles business to RMB 29.510 billion, which
made up 43.64% of the total revenue. Due to product upgrading
and production optimization, gross profit margin of instant noodles
business stood at 29.30%, up by 0.29 percentage points year on year.
The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company in the instant
noodles business increased by 24.25% to RMB 2.733 billion as a result
of the growth in revenue and expansion in profit margin, as well as the
reduction in distribution costs ratio year on year.

B EER
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77 | Management Discussion and Analysis

Despite the COVID-19 outbreak in the Spring Festival, the instant
noodles business timely resumed production and applied big data to
coordinate its production and sales, logistics service and the supply of
commodities. Meanwhile, the segment prioritized public needs and
launched products with various flavors, sizes and prices. The growing
household consumption needs, as a new normal in the post-COVID-19
era, brought about the prosperity of online business. Against this
background, the instant noodles business focused on promoting creative
cuisines and encouraging household consumption to both influence and
satisfy consumers’ needs. Besides, the segment managed to enhance
its brand image of a healthy products provider by continually advancing
cooperation with China Aerospace Foundation and the Winter Sports
Management Center of the General Administration of Sport of China
and by enforcing strict food safety standards together with organizing
online food safety science popularization activities.

Substantial sales growth in the instant noodles business was ensured
across all channels. Amid the COVID-19, the segment gave priority to
the supply of products for e-commerce platforms and other modern
channels so that products could reach the consumers in the shortest
possible time. Significance was attached to strengthening inventory
management and improving delivery efficiency based on system tools
for win-win cooperation with distributors of all channels.

The instant noodles business spared no efforts to meet market needs by
updating its supply chain on the premise of ensuring product quality and
food safety. In addition, the segment continued to optimize production
distribution and improve supply chain efficiency through a series of
measures including upgrading automation, saving energy and reducing

consumption.

12 EMEZRERAA
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High-priced and Premium Noodles

High-priced and premium noodles represented Master Kong's flagship
products, which met customers’ needs with multi-flavors and multi-
sizes. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the instant noodles business has
ensured the supply of these core products at a fastest pace and later
managed to offer products with various flavors and sizes in the stably
supplied market to satisfy the diverse needs of consumers. Due to the
increasing household consumption needs and public’s preference to
cost-effective products during the COVID-19, the sales of packet and
large-sized products particularly achieved considerable growth.

The instant noodles business made constant efforts to inject more vigor
into its brand. “Roasted Beef Noodles”, as its most well-known brand
leading the market, cooperated with the hottest online debate variety
show “I CAN | BB” to establish closer communications with the younger
groups, which not only reflected Master Kong's call for “Dream Big and
Start Small” but also boosted its sales growth. In addition, the segment
also strengthened a series of IP cooperation to make Master Kong a
well-received name among young consumers, such as “Old Altar Pickled
Beef Noodles” with Kung Fu Panda, “Hot Beef Noodles” with Game for
Peace and “Rattan Pepper Beef Noodles” with Douro Mainland.

The instant noodles business launched its new product “Handmade
Noodle”, the upgraded edition of “Dried Noodle” and packet instant
noodles in new sizes in May, 2020, as a move to fit the needs for
household consumption scenarios and for quality from the new
generation and the middle class. The cooked “Handmade Noodle"” series
featured chewy texture and tasty broth. The “Dried Noodle” series,
apart from an innovation in the more consumer-friendly water filters,
improved the noodle bodies, seasonings and packages and promoted
packet noodles, which both better satisfied household consumption
needs and led to an upgrade in the dried noodles market.
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The “Soup Chef” series boasted four kinds of high-end flavorful broths,
each serving as a best representative of Chinese-style, Japanese-style
and Hong-Kong-style cuisines. Therefore, customers’ needs for high-
quality soups were met. To offer instant noodles with more sizes, the
segment launched the “Soup Chef Cup Noodles” and the “Soup Chef
Packet Noodles”. The segment innovatively placed a container for
the noodles in each packet, which made the packaging much more
creative and eye-catching. Moreover, digital tools were employed to
help handing out free samples to customers for their feedback at retail
stores. By doing so, an increasing number of consumer groups including
the middle class, white-collar workers, and students were reached and
the sales of the series remained on the rise.

Super-premium Noodles

To cope with the upgraded consumption needs of the middle class, the
instant noodles business launched the “Express Chef's Noodles” series,
whose tastes were almost the same as those in noodle shops. Therefore,
the “Express Chef’s Noodles” became a first choice for customers
who had a demand for both speed and taste, and also fitted different
consumption scenarios with three major genres of products: “Express
Cooked Noodles”, “Express Bowl Noodles” and “Express Self-heating
Noodle”. To be more specific, the family pack of “Express Cooked
Noodles” perfectly suited the household needs and was so well-received
that its sales value jumped to a record high of more than a million
yuan over one night. “Express Bowl Noodles” was specifically designed
for the consumption scenario of work resumption. While in terms of
“Express Self-heating Noodles”, it was in line with the trend of self-
heating food market and satisfied the need of dining out, thus reporting

pretty high sales volume.
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Mid-priced Noodles/Snack Noodles

Facing the increasingly polarized consumption trend after the
COVID-19, the instant noodles business resorted to mid-priced products
to meet the need for cost-effectiveness among consumers in township
and rural areas. By upgrading the packaging of “Jinshuang Ramen”
and “Super Fumanduo” and also by launching the large-sized product
“50% Plus Hunger-feed”, the Group increased sales and gained more
market shares in the segmented markets of mid-priced and large-sized
instant noodles. The snack noodles “Flavored and Crunchy” attracted
a large number of students-based consumer groups owing to its new
packaging after IP cooperation with “Luo Tianyi”, the debut of new-
flavored products such as “Chicken Broth Snack Noodles” and “Hot &
Spicy Crab Snack Noodles” and social media marketing.

Beverage Business

Nielsen's data suggested that the sales volume and sales value of
China'’s beverage industry in 2020 declined 6.2% and 7.1% respectively
year on year. In terms of sales volume, Master Kong had the largest
market share of 43.6% in ready-to-drink (RTD) tea segment (including
milk tea), a second largest market share of 17.3% in juice segment, a
market share of 5.7% in bottled water segment and a second largest
market share of 12.0% in RTD coffee segment. According to data from
a third party research company, the sales volume of Pepsi’s carbonated
soft drinks occupied the second place in the market with a proportion

of 33.4%, up by 0.5 percentage points.
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In 2020, the overall revenue of the Group from the beverage business
reached RMB 37.280 billion, a year-on-year increase of 4.72%, which
accounted for 55.13% of the Group's total revenue. During the
period, the gross profit margin of the beverage business increased by
2.25 percentage points to 35.94%, mainly due to the product-mix
optimizing and product upgrading, along with the declining prices of
some raw materials. Thanks to the increased gross profit margin, the
reduction of other operational costs and the decreasing proportion of
minority shareholders’ equity, the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company for beverage business reached RMB 1.594 billion, up by
68.51% year on year.

During the COVID-19, the beverage business continued to focus
on core categories and developed new retail channels. In particular,
the segment stressed on interacting with consumers through online
channels as consumers’ mobility was significantly restricted then.
Steady sales growth resumed as the coronavirus tension eased later.
In addition to laying high emphasis on the core products, the business
continued to adjust its product-mix and launched new categories of
premium products to meet the upgraded needs for nutrition and health
amidst the COVID-19. Concentrated efforts were also directed at the
establishment of multiple channels by tapping into the indoor consumer
market, developing catering channels and offering home delivery
service. Moreover, the segment expanded its physical store network
in core cites as well as the scope of service to simplify the channel
system. As to lower-tier cities, the focus was placed on facilitating
win-win partnerships with distributors. In order to build an intelligent
manufacturing system and logistics system and to enhance supply
chain efficiency, the beverage business continually optimized the layout
of production capacity, appropriately released household products
with varying sizes, and increased capital expenditure on outdoor
consumption.
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RTD Tea

The RTD tea segment focused on the core products to maintain its
competitive edges and launched products with various flavors and sizes
to fit diverse consumer needs, thus ensuring Master Kong's leading
position in the RTD tea market. By conducting the “One QR Code One
Bottle” campaign and strengthening the marketing of music and sports
scenarios, the “Master Kong Ice Tea” series became synonymous with
youth and fashion and denoted a brand concept of “Enjoying Ice and
Fun” together with its spokesperson Kris Wu. The “Jasmine” series built
a fragrant and refreshing brand image resembling a jasmine through a
microfilm “Flowers and Tea Made for Each Other”, cast by Li Xian and
Chun Xia. With this microfilm, Master Kong's brand story was publicized
and a growing number of younger groups were attracted. Via selecting
Jackson Yee as the spokesperson and advancing cooperation with the
hottest IPs, the “Green Tea” series continued to enhance its brand
image of “Fresh, Vigorous and Rich in Tea Polyphenol” and capitalized
on the fan economy to stimulate sales growth. The newly-launched
“Master Kong Oolong Tea”, by strengthening an aromatic and palateful
brand image and increasingly advertising on the selling points of health
and low sugar, fittingly fed the thirst for health of the new generation
of urban consumers. The upgraded high-end “Sugar-free Tea” series,
represented by “Sugar-free Green Tea” and “Sugar-free Jasmine Tea”,
catered to the middle class’s needs for health and exquisiteness by
making cold brew sugar-free tea with no added artificial flavor.
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Carbonated Soft Drinks

To adapt to the stay-at-home economy and consumers’ growing needs
for health amid COVID-19, the Pepsi bottled carbonated soft drink
segment deepened efforts to enhance its brand image by offering multi-
sizes and multi-flavors products that satisfied various consumption
scenarios. In addition, the segment continued to diversify its Zero-Sugar
series to increase overall sales value. It continued to develop “Pepsi
Concept Store” and energized its brand through integrating diverse
cultures and trendy items. In the first quarter, the segment kicked off its
year-round brand marketing by launching “Pepsi 2020 See How Much
| Love It” campaign. In the second quarter, the first traditional Chinese
style product “Pepsi Osmanthus Flavor” was launched and attracted
public attention, which resulted in ever-increasing sales and popularity.
In the third quarter, the segment promoted the “Celebrate Together
with Pepsi” activity to satisfy consumers’ needs for catering and
food delivery service, where a series of actions were taken, including
building a platform for the meal complement market, upgrading its
020 model and enhancing in-depth cooperation with major clients and
independent food and beverage outlets. When it came to the fourth
quarter, the segment initiated a Chinese-New-Year-themed campaign
of “Drink Pepsi to Bring Happiness Home". Committed to the brand
attitude of “Intense Taste No Sugar, Go All in for What You Love”,

"o

the Zero-Sugar series rolled out “Pepsi Lime"”, “Pepsi Mini” and “Pepsi
Golden Ox Limited” apart from Pepsi of original and raspberry flavors,
achieving sustained increase in sales. “Mirinda” undertook exclusive title
sponsorship for Mango TV's online variety show “Great Escape Season
2". At the same time, various activities themed on “Great Escape” were
carried out to increase consumers’ loyalty to the brand, including the
offline publicity activity “The Great Fruit Explodes after Having a Sip”
and QR code promotion activity “100% Win Room Escape Related
Gifts”. Besides, multi-flavors products were released to add more vitality
and fun to its brand image. The first mix-flavored juice “Passion Fruit
& Pineapple Mix Flavor”, upon its launch, took off among the public
for its remarkable packaging design and diverse flavors. The “7-Up”
series carried out annual marketing activities based on the theme of
“Feels Good to Be You” and upgraded the packaging of FIDO DIDO
into all sizes, among which the mini cans were released to fit specific
consumption scenarios. The “7-Up"” series continued to promote
its mixing-style drink “7-Up Mixology” together with “7-Up Moji7o
Grapefruit Flavor” to attract young consumers.
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Juices

In 2020, the leading position of Chinese juice drinks was further
consolidated and the sale of Western-style juices continued to grow. As
consumption in food and beverage recovered, the segment managed
to expand relevant consumption scenarios through the multi-sizes and
multi-flavors strategy and made it to develop juices of Chinese and
Western styles yet underlying traditional Chinese food culture. The
“Rock Candy Pear” series remained to be characterized by a therapeutic
brand image of constant moisture provider. Moreover, its consumption
scenarios, mainly for smoothing and moistening the throat, were
also elaborated through cooperating with prestigious musicians. The
“Traditional Drink Sweet-Sour Plum Juice” integrated modern juice-
making process into Chinese classic drink making. With distinguished
hosts as its spokespersons, its effects of quenching thirst and cleansing
palate were magnified, which bolstered strong sales growth. The
“Juice Master”, a well-received category of the Western-style “Master
Kong Juices”, stepped up comprehensive upgrading and brand
marketing, and strove to build an optimistic and joyful brand image. In
its promotion, the strategy of multi-sizes was adopted to boost sales
and consumers were encouraged to enjoy drinking it under various
consumption scenarios. “NutriLight Fruits”, based on its main flavor
of “honey and citron”, went with other flavored products including
“Mango Flavor Drink” and “Peach Flavor Drink” and collaborated with
acclaimed TV stars through new media channels to draw the attention
of young consumer groups. The “Tropicana 100% " series actively
seized the 100% normal temperature market and built brand awareness
among customers by means of both product placement in TV series and
movies with Al technology and intensive recommendations on social
media. The “Tropicana” series stuck to the diluted juice market and
promoted its feature of mixed juice through the “Happy Mixed Fruit
Brothers” activity. In the meanwhile, scenario-based education was
implemented on the 020 platform of the meal compliment market in
collaboration with major clients to attract young consumers.
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Bottled Water

The bottled water segment in 2020 continued to satisfy different
consumers’ needs with products of various sizes and prices. In addition,
it placed a high emphasis on cultivating consumers’ indoor drinking
habits, preferentially offering large packages to the market, exploring
new channels concerning food and beverage business and stimulating
more household consumption demands. The economical product
“Master Kong Bottled Drinking Water”, with the world-renowned
volleyball player and coach Lang Ping as the spokesperson, conveyed a
brand image of “The Best Choice for Reassurance and Health” and thus
established itself as a national brand featuring affordable prices. In terms
of the mid-priced ones, the newly-released “Drink Boiled Water” built
a trustworthy brand image by offering sweet, mild and well-absorbed
water, which was sterilized at an ultra-high temperature of 135° C,
and went popular in the market soon after its launch with a target at
young consumers. Besides, the high-end water “Han Yang Quan” was
relaunched with an upgraded packaging and managed to strengthen
its positioning of “Being Natural, Precious, and Nutritious”. The series
focused on core cities and built a brand image of high-end products
that met the middle class's demands for mineral water. Notably, the
4.5-liter package of bottled mineral water reported ultra-high-speed

sales growth.
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Coffee Drinks/Functional Drinks/Probiotics

In the market of RTD coffee, the Group attached great importance to
the medium and high-priced coffee and registered sales growth after
adapting to the upgraded consumption needs and consumers’ pursuit to
health during the COVID-19 pandemic. The “Bernachon Coffee” series
focused on the markets of the Yangtze River Delta, the Pearl River Delta
and other core cities represented by Beijing and enhanced its popularity
through modern channels as well as online and offline marketing. In
terms of the high-priced RTD coffee market, through a more diversified
and comprehensive product line, the “Starbucks RTD Coffee at Room-
temperature” series upgraded their flavors and packaging to offer
better consumption experience to consumers, leading to increasingly
higher market share.

The “"Wei Chuan Ambient Probiotics Drink” series gained a strong
foothold in the Yangtze River Delta. By responding to consumers’ needs
for nutrition and health as well as extending collaborations with the
catering and supermarket industries, the product not only successfully
increased its popularity, but also facilitated sales growth. The
lactobacillus beverage “Xiao Lao Duo Duo” focused on palate cleansing
and hydrating while dining or under indoor scenarios, and established a
fresh, fat-free and healthy product image, which satisfied the needs of
the new generation of urban and young consumers.

“Gatorade”, a functional drink, promoted its brand theme of “Every
Drop of Sweat Counts” in 2020 through cooperating with ordinary
sports enthusiasts. By doing so, the brand got closer with sports
enthusiasts and managed to offer specialized sports drinks to general
consumers. The fire-new “Workout at Home" online scenario marketing
approach was put forward when outdoor sports were impacted
during the pandemic. Later, as the pandemic was well under control
across China and it became normal to conduct sports activities, QR
code promotion activities such as “Open Caps for Gifts” and “Open
Boxes for Gifts” were carried out far and wide to drive sales growth as
well as to reward the Group’s loyal consumers. Moreover, the Group
also focused on enhancing its brand awareness in sports venues via
sponsoring professional sports events in cooperation with national
sports associations, and reaching more sports lovers under the influence
of sports and fitness KOLs in hopes that Master Kong's brand image as
a leading sports drink provider would be strengthened effectively.
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The Group, with “Cash Is King” as its long-held overall strategy, has
been characterized by proficient control of capital expenditures and
effective promotion of asset-light and asset activation, which would
generate stable net cash inflows. During 2020, the net cash inflow
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to RMB 8.554 billion,
and the net cash outflow from investing activities reached RMB 2.889
billion. Over the past years, the Group promoted asset revitalization and
disposal of non-core businesses. A net cash inflow of RMB 177 million
was recorded in the Group through selling entire or partial equity of
two subsidiaries to an independent third party and to a connected party
respectively.

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial structure through
effective control on the balances of trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and cash as well as inventories. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group's total cash and bank balances arrived at RMB 21.431 billion,
an increase of RMB 4.000 billion compared with that of 31 December
2019, featuring abundant cash in hand. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group's long-term time deposits amounted at RMB2.435 billion,
increased by RMB1.710 billion compared with that of 31 December
2019, as to earn interest income with a better return rate. The Group'’s
interest-bearing borrowings reached RMB 13.697 billion, a growth of
RMB 1.322 billion from 31 December 2019 to 31 December 2020.
Net cash totaled RMB 7.735 billion increased by RMB 2.678 billion
compared with that of 31 December 2019. On 24 September 2020,
the Company issued notes with an aggregate principal amount of
USD 500 million (the “US Notes”). The issue price of the US Notes was
99.466% of the principal amount. The US Notes will bear interest from
and including 24 September 2020 at the rate of 1.625% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears on 24 March and 24 September of
each year, beginning on March 24, 2021. The US Notes will be matured
on 24 September 2025. The US Notes is an unsecured debt of the
Company. The primary objective for the Group to issue the overseas
US Notes was to refinance certain existing indebtedness and for other
general corporate use. The Group's proportion of the total borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies and Renminbi, at the end of 2020,
reported a change from 76% against 24% at the end of 2019 to 89%
against 11%. And the proportion between the Group's long-term
borrowings and short-term borrowings reached 57% against 43%,
compared with 40% against 60% at the end of 2019.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total assets and total liabilities
reached RMB 61.531 billion and RMB 36.792 billion respectively,
up by RMB 3.572 billion and RMB 1.878 billion respectively from 31
December 2019. Meanwhile, the debt ratio of the Group decreased by
0.45 percentage points to 59.79% compared with that of 31 December
2019. The gearing ratio dropped from -25.82% as of 31 December
2019 to -36.63% as of 31 December 2020.

During 2020, the exchange rate of US dollars against Renminbi fell
by 6.59%. This fluctuation resulted in the generation of realized and
unrealized exchange gain, amounting to RMB 29.159 million in the
Group's income statement.

B th & Financial Ratio

2020 F 2019%F
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
K on B8 Finished goods turnover 17.73 Days/H 16.61 Days,” H
JFE LA B K ) 4 Trade receivables turnover 8.99 Days, A 9.97 Days/ H
VEAIRES Current ratio 1.06 Times, & 0.90 Times,/ 5
BEHR(EBEHEENEEE) Debtratio (Total liabilities to total assets) 59.79% 60.24%

FEEEEALRCFEEMRY  Gearing ratio (Net debt to equity
AN B R e tE 2 ) attributable to owners of the Company) -36.63% -25.82%
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The Group had 60,654 employees as of 31 December, 2020. In the
year of 2020, the Group, in line with the guiding principle of “All for
Business and Growth”, continued to advance organizational reform with
a fundamental strategy of pushing businesses forward, and optimize
its staffing structure by enhancing its organizational efficiency. In the
meantime, the Group managed to plan the distribution of strategic
talents, streamline operational processes, digitize human resources and
prepare for the establishment of the management training center, thus
providing talent support for the Group to realize its strategic objectives.
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With the comprehensive implementation of payroll outsourcing strategy,
human resources in the Group have been gradually liberated from
some routine administrative work and were able to focus more on HR
strategies and value-added services. Considering its management and
business needs, the Group sped up the transformation of digital human
resources by working on HR program design, process re-engineering,
technology application and data analysis.

In addition, the Group continued to improve its organizational
competence by optimizing the talent structure and talent efficiency. To
sustain its long-term talent advantages, the Group made constant efforts
to strengthen talent echelon building from retails to headquarters, and
deepen the management of the reserve of talents. Also, the Group
promoted the development and recruitment of domestic talents and
formulated detailed succession plans to ensure a smooth handover
process within the Group.

Taking advantage of its recognition and achievements accumulated over
the past two decades, the Group, as a resolute move to implement the
spirit of the 19th CPC National Congress on “Improving the System of
Vocational Education and Training, and Promoting Integration between
Industry and Education and Cooperation between Enterprises and
Colleges”, explored a model that could “Promote Integration of Industry
and Education and Cultivate Talents through Cooperation between
Schools and Enterprises” in collaboration with 32 higher education
institutions and 51 vocational schools nationwide. The research focuses
were placed on food safety, production processes and technologies,
and application development. Through these collaborations, Master
Kong managed to support the innovations of universities and the
industrialization of core technologies. While in terms of vocational
education, the Group continued to seek new ideas and approaches to
students training and employment for both schools and enterprises, and
established a long-term education mechanism in the charge of two main
parties, which was selected in the third batch of pilot projects of modern
apprenticeship system by the Ministry of Education. Moreover, the
Group was awarded as an Enterprise Integrating Industry and Education
in Liaoning Province and a Demonstration Enterprise Integrating Industry
and Vocational Education in Jiangsu Province.
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The Group attached great importance to conducting strategic
cooperation with both domestic and foreign universities, with an
aim to cultivate future entrepreneurial talents for China and promote
international communications. Domestically, the Group continued to
support the Digital Healthcare Research Project of Peking University
Health Science Center, and remained committed to providing better
healthcare services to more Chinese families. In addition, the Group
joined hands with the School of Agriculture and Biology of Shanghai
Jiaotong University on food safety and food technology to carry out
scientific research and set up research groups to foster talents.

Internationally, the Group, following the release of the new 2027-2030
Master Kong-Waseda University Strategic Cooperation Agreement
Plan, continued to focus on talent development and employee training,
and learned from Japan in depth for its craftsmanship, management
methods and production details. Thanks to Master Kong's cooperation
with Hasso Plattner Institute of Design at Stanford University, the “Design
Thinking and Innovation Workshop” was launched to provide training
in innovation and thinking for cross-functional employees. Besides,
the Group initiated a big data co-construction project in collaboration
with the Wharton School to draw on its advanced ideas and practices
in statistics and data analysis, helped the Wharton School to establish
cooperative relations with Chinese e-commerce platforms such as JD,
and encouraged foreign students to know more about China through
organizing data competitions.

The Group serves as a summer social practice base for the Yuanpei
College of Peking University. In 2020, the Second Summer Social
Practice Team, comprising 50 students and faculties and led by the
Dean, visited the Group’s retail markets, the IRD Center and the Taste
Pavilion, and communicated with the executives and frontline business
representatives, from which they got to know the challenges and
opportunities facing traditional and new retailing. Notably, the “Social
Practice Team to Master Kong” in the Yuanpei College has won school-
level rewards for two consecutive years. Besides, in 2020, the “Master
Kong Hall (Kang-De-Ting)” funded by the Group, was opened and put
into use at the university.
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Overall business environment in 2021 is expected to be full of
opportunities and challenges. The steady recovery and growth of
China economy, together with diversified needs of consumers, offered
great opportunities for the Group to better serve our consumers.
While we will be inevitably faced with the challenges and risks from
the uncertainties brough by global pandemic and the fluctuation of
international commodity prices.

Looking ahead, the Group, by adhering to its “Consolidate, Reform and
Develop” strategy, will continue to strengthen its competitive edges in
brand, channels and products in 2021. Moreover, the Group will make
the most of its competitive advantages to further serve the needs for a
better life of middle class, as well as those consumers in township and
rural areas.

With the mission of “Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage Culture” and
an aim to stand firm in China’s food and beverage markets, the Group
will continue to follow the concept of “Cash Is King” for sustainable
operation. Building win-win partnerships through client service as
cornerstone for success, the Group will make constant efforts to
sustainable development, thus building itself as a Chinese Ethical Brand

trustworthy for the government, partners and consumers.
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This report aims to formulate the performance of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (“Master Kong”, “the Company” or “We")
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG") in 2020 for
readers. For information regarding the governance section, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report as incorporated in this
annual report.

Sustainability Concept of Master Kong

Master Kong shoulders the mission of “Promoting Chinese
Food & Beverage Culture”, takes the corporate vision of “Being
the Most Respected Food & Beverage Company” and has
always committed to the principle of “Sustainable Operation,
Contribution to Society”. Master Kong maintains close and
mutual communications with stakeholders, actively fulfills its
social responsibilities. We continue to explore and improves its
performance in ESG. The Company dedicates to sharing corporate
values with stakeholders, enhancing social welfare and enjoying
“Life + Delicacy” with stakeholders. Master Kong believes that
“a good development is sustainable development”. In 2020, in
combination with the State’s “New Development Concept” and
the “14th Five-Year Plan”, we took “Healthy China”, “Food
Safety” and “Sustainable Development” as our annual work
focus, and conducted a series of work on food safety, nutrition
and health, energy conservation and emission reduction.

We increasingly searched for the actual needs of the society,
deeply integrated the essential appeals of stakeholders with
the characteristics of the industry. Adhering to the five core
tasks of food safety development, product responsibility, energy
conservation, environmental protection and win-win partnerships,
it continued to exploit its advantages in the industry, to increase
investment, aiming to sustain its innovative contributions in
corporate sustainable development.
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BREER Food Safety Construction

ERZER  TRhEDL
EETRRER -
Remembering the food safety vision,

faithful to the original corporate values,
looking forward to the development of the

90

industry

KEEE
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B BEIRIR Advocating Energy
Conservation and Environmental

Protection

BEEELIRIR - BREEER  BR
AR -

Advocating energy conservation and
environmental protection, striving for
green development, benefiting

today and tomorrow

ZEEF K Corporate
Contribution

FPNERARE - HREEEHIE
ST RIEIEHE

Small actions ending up as a great
blessing, spreading love, holding
onto the national unity

: Bl fR 4=
SUSTAINABLE OPERATION
CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIETY
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Master Kong was selected as an excellent business case in A
Survey Report on Business and Sustainability in China issued by
UNDP

In July 2020, Master Kong, with its outstanding performance in
promoting sustainable development and ESG, stood out among nearly
100 invited companies (including foreign companies in China), and
was selected as an excellent business case in Private Sector Awareness
of the Sustainable Development Goals — A Survey Report on Business
and Sustainability in China issued by The United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP).
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Organizational Framework and Actions of ESG

The Board of Directors of the Company is generally responsible
for the overall organization and information disclosure in
relation to ESG. In 2020, Master Kong CSR Committee (the
“Committee”) maintained its good operation. On the basis of
clear CSR strategies and development directions, the Committee
guided work implementation and performance evaluation, and
regularly conducted reviews and decision-making on work goals,
reports and disclosures, major relevant events, and reported
ESG work progress to the Board of Directors. Meanwhile, the
Company gradually promoted the CSR management model of
“business independence”, further leveraged the advantages of
all businesses, promoted pertinence and implementation in CSR
management, continued its efforts to enforce the concept of
“Sustainable Operation, Contribution to Society”.

Identify and Response to Environmental and Social Risks

Master Kong's daily risk management covers ESG-related risks.
In 2020, we further identified and sorted out major ESG-related
risks, and monitored and responded to these risks.
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Risk Type and Description Risk Response Relevant Sections

RRER
Food Safety Risks
e EmiHRmZrMEMELE BEREmZIEEHS  KANHESHRLY BIRLY EBERE &

KEERAERE B RERREHAE - ZIBERR - FIFEE]
The product has food safety Implementing strict food safety Adhering to food safety,
issues that have a negative management and control mechanisms, focusing on nutrition, and
impact on business operations. vigorously promoting food safety enjoying “Life + Delicacy”

construction, and facilitating cooperation
in food safety.

BB ER

Environmental Risks

o AEBEPHBARBSAFMNM BREGISRMIN REFARMES KERE BII/RE B

TELERE IKERERETIE - BREBERER ZFIBERR - FHLE]
o HMNEARZERNMBEBBERBEM RERBE HEHEREE - EYERIE  Upholding green
b ISP N Bt - BRI RERHLESE o development and practices
o MIHKBEMEEREFEEIE  Strictly controlling pollutant emissions, making our ways, we
Ko seriously carrying out energy and enjoy “Life + Delicacy”.
o Environmental pollution during water conservation projects and plastic
the production process that affects reduction work, identifying relevant
business operations; laws and regulations and policy trends,
o Increased operating costs due to promoting transformation towards low-
stricter laws, regulations and related carbon, responding to climate change,
policies; and establishing a sustainable supply
o Production interruptions and asset chain.
losses due to extreme weather
conditions.
REEZZEME

Health and Safety Risks

s HEREBEARZR2HESZTMMFESL ITERRLZINIERE  ETLX2E HiEN  BEE8 RK
XEBEERS BRHE  BHAPHRERD  EEN BIEEKRR - FHFEE]
e HIREBEBXEEMEREER BRENVIAIE  EAETH- AARE ~ XL /s8R - #
RN 2 hELE - Creating a healthy and safe working SRR - EiFEE]
o Major safety incidents, environment, conducting safety Helping with COVID-19,
affecting normal productionand  promotion and education, distributing health is a blessing,
operation of the enterprise; labor protection supplies, implementing ensuring “Life + Delicacy”
o Serious occupational health issuesor ~ the prevention and treatment of Human-oriented and
infectious diseases, affecting business ~ COVID-19 to support anti-epidemic taking culture as the soul,
operations. actions. building “Life + Delicacy”
together
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NENBrEENRREEE BN TM Stakeholder Communication and Key Issues Materiality

Assessment
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The Company actively identifies the stakeholders’ expectations
and requirements on Master Kong through various continuous
communication channels, and strives to fulfill the needs of
stakeholders’ needs while developing our business operations.
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Descriptions of Stakeholders

BEEEESN
Communication Channels
and Responses

BRRREBREE
Shareholders
and Investors

BT
Employees

BHE(EEF)
Distributors
(including
customers)

340
Suppliers

BAREEHE
Government
and Agencies

HERAR
Communities and
the Public

ER R BT #E
Universities
and Research
Institutions

HERMEETAERE  BEFRENBEARIMIEA
Domestic and overseas legitimate equity and debt
investors to Master Kong

HEAE R EXSEE R R T FRENEMEE
EHIA B

Personnel who sign a formal employment
agreement with the Company and who serve the
Company in a regular basis

AECERMEE TS mEERNBE - BFHE
Bre

Companies, stores or individual businesses that
legally distributing various branded products of
Master Kong

mEMES A EEEEDE B ERRALARSE
B3 - s EEE P

Companies, stores or individual businesses
that legally supplying production materials,
accessories and office supplies to Master Kong

Bm o B RIR - 225 MABN - BE
SEEEHRE

Food, taxation, environmental protection, safety
and other authorities; local governments; the SFC
and other regulatory agencies

HEMBRELAESFRERNRL - ERE - 8%
NE R B A AR R E N

Newspapers, TV stations, Internet companies and
other media agencies that have established legal
partnerships with Master Kong

EEEMAR AR - HEIFERARE
Local communities, the public, non profit
organizations, etc.

HAFR RN SRR RS -
%

Universities, colleges and research institutes
partnering with Master Kong

B - HIFPTEH

RERE PEFR - FFH FELE -
RS

General meetings of shareholders,
annual reports, interim reports, results
announcements, roadshows, etc.

BTIED BAEg BIFI BIFMH-
EERBTIME
Staff activities, staff congress, staff
training, staff manuals, corporate
publications, etc.

EREE - 11X¥AN  ZRBERAEER
BF

Product exhibitions, industry survies,
customer service hotlines and satisfaction
survies, etc.

ARRBRIZEZE  BRES(EAF - ZRERD
==

Open bidding meetings, strategic
cooperation negotiations, exchanges and
visits, etc.

BEER  AXAER  BEAT  EERE
=

Field visits, official correspondences, policy
implementation, information disclosure,
etc.

EgET#  XEEE  FEeEBEHE
Business interviews, cultural promotion,
featured activities, etc.

HEES - BIXEEEE - Awmas - it
BEEIHE

Community activities, employee volunteer
activities, public welfare activities, social
cause support, etc.

ERESHE  BTEE g 2R
MR A (IR B &

Recruitment presentations, training
programs, seminars, academic exchanges
and cooperative research projects
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External assessment (materiality to stakeholders)
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MEPEEE (BEBHZE)

Internal assessment (impact on the business)

= High

HELP WITH COVID-19, HEALTH IS A BLESSING,
ENSURING “LIFE + DELICACY"

In early 2020, COVID-19 epidemic spread across nationwide.
Master Kong responded quickly, resumed work and production
in an active and orderly manner, and donated funds and
materials proactively demonstrating corporate responsibility
and commitment with practical actions. At the same time, all
businesses have established special teams for epidemic prevention
and control to protect the health and safety of our employees.
Based on the epidemic prevention experience at the beginning of
the year, we further improved the emergency plan for epidemic
prevention and control, epidemic prevention and control planning,
environmental disinfection, epidemic publicity and education,
and preparation of anti-epidemic materials, so as to ensure the
quarantine during the epidemic and returning to work after the
holidays can be carried out safely and smoothly. We worked
together to build a line of defense against the epidemic to ensure
“Life + Delicacy”.
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Resuming Work and Production Timely to Ensure Market
Supply

In response to the sudden outbreak of the epidemic, we
responded to the “Ensuring Price, Quality and Supply” series
of actions organized by the State Administration for Market
Supervision as soon as possible while focusing on epidemic
prevention and control. We coordinated with government’s
requirements to promote the orderly resumption of work and
production, and promised our factories fully resume production to
meet market demand. All businesses of Master Kong responded
quickly to the epidemic, our factories prepared emergency plans
to combat the epidemic based on the actual local conditions
and the requirements of the local governments, implemented
the government’s and our internal guidance requirements for
epidemic prevention and control and production resumption,
aiming to fully meet the market demand. Based on the principle
of serving operation and serving market, we worked together and
communicated with external parties, coordinated the safe and
timely resumption of production in factories. The supply chain
departments of all businesses urgently procured anti-epidemic
materials to ensure the smooth flow in raw material procurement,
finished product delivery and transportation, the staff on duty
made every effort to resume production.

Striving to Protect the Health and Safety of Employees

In order to help the Company resume work and production in
a timely manner, all businesses of Master Kong planned the
epidemic prevention and control measures urgently, formulated
and issued the “Emergency Plan for Prevention and Control of
COVID-19", the “Employee Restaurant Dining Regulations”, the
"Code of Practice for Disposal of Discarded Masks”, the “Code of
Practice for Management of Smoking Area during the Epidemic”,
the “Code of Practice of Returning to Work for quarantined
Personnel”, the “Code of Practice for Incoming Visitor”, the “Code
of Practice for Management of Dormitory Epidemic Prevention
and Occupancy” and other systems and requirements. In order to
control the density of people in factories and offices, all businesses
of the Company reasonably implemented the combination of
staggered commuting and work from home to protect the health
and safety of employees, ensuring that employees can put their
minds to work, so that the production efficiency and product
quality can be effectively guaranteed.
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After the 2020 Chinese New Year Holiday, in order to ensure the
smooth and safe resumption of work for non-local employees, the
all businesses of Master Kong adopted a point-to-point approach
to solve the problem of employees returning to the factory,
contacted government departments to arrange for employees to
return to the factory on a migrant express train, and actively bore
the hotel accommodation expenses during the quarantined period
of returning employees.

We also distributed masks and other epidemic prevention
materials to our returning colleagues, and regularly conducted
disinfection operations in the factory, office administration
building, sidewalk for the peripheral area of the factory, canteen
and ground, loading and unloading warehousing areas, guard
room, restrooms, garbage room and other areas. We also
reimbursed employees for nucleic acid testing costs incurred
due to business trips. We installed hand soaking facilities at the
entrance of the factory workshops, and employees are disinfected
and then cleaned with alcohol sprays before entering the factory.
The employees who returned to work were required to fill out
daily health and travel information, have their body temperature
monitored, and wear masks throughout the day. Split meal system
was adopted in staff canteen, employees had meals in separate
seats. If suspected patients were found, the infected personnel
shall be quarantined and the transmission route shall be cut off at
the first time, while promptly reporting to the epidemic prevention
and control departments of the employee’s place of residence
and his/her units. In addition, considering the possible negative
impact of the epidemic on employees’ psychological health, we
organized online training, issued staff care videos and inspirational
promotional materials to encourage everyone to overcome the
difficulties together.
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Fulfilling Social Responsibilities to Carry Out Anti-Epidemic
Support Actions

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, Master Kong has actively
supported the anti-epidemic work by launching a nationwide
anti-epidemic support campaign called “Helping with COVID-19,
Health is a Blessing”. Nearly 100 factories nationwide have
continued to produce, the Company mobilized employees from all
over the country to volunteer to deliver anti-epidemic materials,
and supported 837 medical units in 299 cities located in 26
provinces. Given the Company’s outstanding performance in anti-
epidemic support action, the 18th China Food Safety Conference
awarded the Company the Socially Responsible Enterprise title of
Catering Industry Helps with Nation Fight the Epidemic.
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Awarding Ceremony for Socially Responsible Enterprise Certificate of Catering Industry
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Helps with Nation Fight the Epidemic

To help fight the “epidemic”, Master Kong puts emphasis on
action and gratitude. In this great battle against the COVID-19
epidemic, Master Kong Group has launched a social responsibility
emergency plan at the first time and carried out charity donation
actions to actively make its contribution to win the battle against
the epidemic.

Convenient and nutritious food is vital for medical personnel who
works continuously and intensely. Master Kong gave full play to
its own product diversification advantages, took the initiative to
escort, and quickly assembled a pioneer team to join this epidemic
prevention and control battle with practical actions. We specially
transferred non-spicy products such as “Express Chef’s Noodles”
and noodles with shrimps and fish cake from our Hangzhou
factory to support the medical teams from Guangdong and
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Shanghai. In addition, in order to help medical workers replenish
their energy and refresh their minds, we also provided a variety
of flavored coffee products such as Bernachon Mandheling and
Mocha Latte. On the eve of Chinese New Year, the first batch
of donated materials has been delivered to the medical staff
of Wuhan Ninth Hospital. Subsequently, Master Kong made
donations to 14 front-line hospitals, including Wuhan Jinyintan
Hospital, Wuchang Hospital, Hankou Hospital and Central War
Zone General Hospital. At the same time, the headquarter of the
Group launched the anti-epidemic support actions “Helping with
COVID-19, Health is a Blessing”, and various local companies
actively responded. The colleagues of Master Kong in Wuhan have
bravely stepped forward and drove out nearly a thousand routes
during the crisis, consoling front-line medical staff and workers in
Wuhan, Xianning, Hanchuan, Ezhou, Yichang, Shiyan, Xiangyang,
Enshi, Shenlongjia, Huangshi, Huanggang, Changsha, Changde,
Huaihua, Hengyang, Yiyang, Zhangjiajie, Nanchang, Jiujiang,
Yichun and other cities. The Company delivered more than
2.56 million pieces of products to the front line of the epidemic,
building a large network of love with “speed, strength and
temperature” and sending the warmth of Master Kong people to
the white angels fighting against the epidemic across the country.

[HHAEREM (2R R SR TE
Anti-epidemic support actions: “Helping with COVID-19, Health is a Blessing”
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Food Safety Management and Control Mechanism

Master Kong is committed to its mission of “Promoting Chinese
Food & Beverage Culture” and took food safety as the foundation
of the Company. The Company strictly abides by laws and
regulations, such as the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Agricultural Product Quality Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China. Adhering to the attitude of
zero tolerance for food safety risks and relying on professional
capabilities and advanced equipment to connect with the quality
aerospace, we ensure the quality of products from farmlands to
dining tables, and assure “safety on tip of tongue” of the people.

As one of the earliest large food companies in China that invested
in setting up a functional department dedicated to food safety, the
Food Safety Centre of the Central Research Institute (“Food Safety
Center”) continues to operate in sound condition. Established
in 2008, the Master Kong Food Safety Center covers an area of
2,600 square meters, and invests more than RMB 20 million in
research every year, with more than 90% of its employees holding
master’s degrees or above. The number of food safety monitoring
indicators exceeds 1,500 per year, and the number of inspections
is over 3.5 million times. The Food Safety Center has strict control
over food safety control points, such as pesticide residues, heavy
metals, food additives, allergens, microorganisms and GMOs.
The Food Safety Center undertakes the Group's internal food
safety management tasks, and also assists government regulatory
authorities in promoting food safety risk monitoring and
standardization work. It has been accredited by China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS).

=
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BRME R ZH O
Master Kong Food Safety Center

FREEEERERRREmET Drawing on the management model of food benchmarking
EEEN EHEXZEBZ A enterprises in advanced countries, Master Kong has strengthened
AR F - WBARBAERBE - the supervision and control responsibilities of the Food Safety
BEZHLEBERREME  BRITE Center through organizational adjustments and refinements, and
ABREECRRERE - REFLA reinforced the system construction by strictly controlling access
RRLUIA  EHRINEAE - Ebs management based on the study and judgment of industrial
ERZAMEANERAE  AERBRS development trends. The Food Safety Center has set up a Food
MERLHEBARAR  XHEMDRE Safety Research Group, a Regulatory Outreach Group, a Risk
ERE - BUTERMEABRLE Audit Group and an Access Management Group to carry out
REBREARMERE ATHERR inspection and analysis and food safety related research, support
THELEZHEME  TEELE product quality control, establish and improve Master Kong's
ABEHE LT E202066H " E internal food safety regulatory system and technical standards,
MEKLEMTEMREES L investigate systemic food safety issues of suppliers and factories,
(FSQA) ' B{tRLZ BB ERERE and improve product access management. In June 2020, Master
T E—FPRETRMERRTE Kong established the Food Safety Research and Management
FEIKFE o Center (FSQA) to enhance food safety management and quality

assurance, which further improved Master Kong's food safety
control level.
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Construction of Food Safety

In 2020, Master Kong continued to improve the food safety
management system for all businsses. For instant noodle business
with the smooth running of FSSC22000 (Food Safety Certification
System) at all normal operating factories', the Company continues
to promote "“Quality System Management on Processing Oil for
Instant Noodles”, to safeguard food safety in processing oil,
Master Kong applied for accredited product review from Standard
Global Services (SGS) and China Quality Certification Center
(CQQ). In addition, subject to internal audit clauses "AIB +"” of
American Institute of Baking (AIB), the instant noodle business
builds factories in Tianjin and Hangzhou into AIB+ demonstration
factories, and drives all production bases to jointly improve food
safety management level through benchmarking management
mode. For Master Kong beverage business and Pepsi beverage
business, all normal operating factories have secured 1SO22000/
Food Safety System Certification (FSSC) 22000 and Hazard Analysis
and Critical and Control Point (HACCP) system certifications,
among which, all bottled water factories have obtained the
National Sanitation Foundation (NSF) annual certification, and
all Pepsi beverage factories and more than half of Master Kong
beverage factories have participated in the annual AIB food
safety audit and successfully passed. Hangzhou Tingjin Factory
has obtained the CNAS Microbiology Laboratory certifications.
All factories for bakery business have obtained 1SO9001 (quality
management system) and 1SO22000 certifications, operated in
sound condition and passed the 2020 annual system inspection
and audit.

1 ERELEIMALNFEELECMHMANLBETEREE EIRENTHK
1. The normal operating factories refers to those continued to operate for more than 6 months in 2020 and are not in a state of

shutdown or suspension.
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We believe that building a high-level safe China requires providing
a level of food safety assurance. In Master Kong's business
philosophy, food safety is a non-competitive field, and the
forward-looking research and technological advantages we have
achieved should be actively shared with our peers and the society.
In 2020, we have continued with the following major efforts in
the area of food safety:

1) Continued to increase investment in food safety. By the
end of 2020, our dedicated food safety and quality control
team had grown to over 1,800 employees. Through external
inspection by raw material suppliers, food safety assessment
and inspection, incoming raw material inspection, in-process
inspection, finished product shipment inspection, and
sampling inspection of products in the market, we achieved
strict monitoring of the entire industrial chain.

2) In 2020, we were approved to establish the Shanghai
Convenient Food Engineering Technology Research Center,
which would assume the responsibilities of food safety
testing, R&D, science training and providing authoritative
and impartial third-party services for the society. Through
this center, Master Kong will make use of domestic and
international high-quality academic resources to promote
high-end research and development of food safety
technology and the transformation of R&D results, and
actively provide useful references for the formulation and
updating of national food safety standards to improve the
industry’s food safety management in all aspects.

3)  We actively implemented corporate responsibilities and
continued to improve the full traceability system. Through
continuous system transformation and technological
advancement in our production plants, the execution
efficiency of the food safety traceability system has been
improved. Recently, under the guidance of professional
institutions, the Company has strengthened its upstream
and downstream traceability capabilities through
cooperation with suppliers and customers, to further realize
the transparent management of the flow of raw materials
and finished products.



IR (2 REJATRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EEERWMRERR

20206 - EM T AERAPEERE
MEBREEERE2ENSE 2
TH2035F[EKEETEINES
Bz H+WAISHEmEEERE
BEHEEZRELARTE - ERF
BRMmGITEEECE  RME
RAEBMRAEMREEHRENE
EFT BMRBIEZRHENHE
BAG HEBETHEBRIEDD
FERERTEZER MRz
MESEMMNEE  BEME -

BMRABHREEERER A
BE2ENE] AAEBREESRE
(B R & & 5+ 81(2017-2030F ) ) 7£
NS EBRREEREBRE B2
ERENAERESFER ERE
oRmeEEEEMEEEHD -
20204 - FREDEMER T T ER
THEEHREERENT R &
EREZHNFHE] ARESR
K% AED ] REEROIEREL
AR [EBERFIESR KR
SERIEFFme B [FHE]
EEME2019-2020 F EH B FE R
TR XERIFE MK 2020F &
XBAOSTFEREME  BREXAONEE
MEXRAEEmEEEHEES
&N BB E A T Journal of
Functional Foods | Ffrdgé o

Nutrition Product Development and Expansion

In 2020, the Fifth Plenary Session of the 19th CPC Central
Committee put forward the visionary goal of “Building a Healthy
China” by 2035 from the perspective of the overall development
of the Party and the State, and made clear arrangements for
comprehensively promoting the construction of a healthy China
during the 14th Five-Year Plan period. As a leading enterprise
in China’s food and beverage industry, Master Kong deeply
understands the significance of improving product nutrition
and health. We recognize that with the ongoing consumption
upgrading, consumers no longer focus only on the convenience,
safety and delicacy of products, but increasingly focus on the
nutrition and health quality of products.

Based on a deep understanding of the notion that “Prosperity for
All Is Impossible without Health for All”, the Company actively
conformed to China’s nutrition and health policies including
National Nutrition Plan (2017-2030), and incorporated the
concept of nutrition and health into its research and development
activities, such as product formula design, product innovation and
technical cooperation. In 2020, Master Kong continued to satisfy
customers’ needs for nutrition with new products developed,
which included the “Handmade Noodles” characterized delicious
and fresh soup, the “Soup Chef” with exquisite ingredients,
and the zero-sugar and zero-calorie series represented by
"Unsweetened Green Tea”, “"Unsweetened Jasmine Tea” and
“Low-sugar Oolong Tea”. Of which, the “Handmade Noodles”
was awarded 2019-2020 Best Instant Food Innovation Grand
Award and 2020 Most Popular Convenience Food Award. The
health findings of unsweetened tea were included in “Journal of
Functional Foods”, an international academic journal with a strong

influence in food nutrition area.
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20205 - RANERFBEHEERES R Master Kong continued to advance science and research
REAFEFHERHR L EIRKE . collaborations on health and nutrition with a number of
MAKXE . EBXBARE  RIW renowned institutions like Winter Sports Center of the General
GMEBRREREAEAEERE Administration of Sport of China, Peking University, Nankai
UHAREERERMEE - LURAE University, Shanghai Jiao Tong University and Shenzhen Space
EnZENBMEXREREZBER Science and Technology Institute throughout 2020. With these
ESBCEER  Bhm ARBE partners and via offering relevant products as well as conducting
IFHETERIESK © science popularization activities, Master Kong significantly

advocated the concept of health and nutrition among the public
and had a positive impact on addressing people’s needs for a

better life.
2020531908 « EAEE FFXZ On 19 May 2020, Master Kong and the College of Agriculture
AABREEEYERTEMG L and Biology of Shanghai Jiao Tong University held a cooperation
BEEPOLRITEEFAERN K signing ceremony at Master Kong's Shanghai Operation Center.
REEXBREBERBRRLEH Relying on the SJTU-Bor S. Luh Food Safety Research Center of
KL UREEMELEFER Shanghai Jiao Tong University and taking Master Kong's Shanghai
mIBEMHREPLATE  HE Instant Food Engineering Technology Research Center as platform,
FMEEmEZEXBEESHT I Master Kong and the College of Agriculture and Biology of
MR MHE  @REMRE M Shanghai Jiao Tong University jointly carry out research activities
REFBESHEERERTER - A on quality and safety control and testing technology of the entire
RmEZEAR BEHTRE 2 food industry chain, and the development of healthy food and
EXEERAERERLWE  TEMT food raw materials. Taking the opportunities of food safety
BERXENRMERE  MaAS upgrade, smart city agriculture and healthy ecology of the whole
BEIR ERAEERSN - FE industry chain, both parties will build urban smart agriculture and
BHRMEIEBHREE food industry chain, strengthen talents cultivation and exchange,

and jointly promote the cooperation of food science research in all
aspects and multiple fields.

FREDNE . BB AR RENEYERFNEZRSIFEE
Master Kong signs of industry-academic cooperation agreement with the College of
Agriculture and Biology of Shanghai Jiao Tong University
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Serving Consumers

Master Kong attaches great importance to customers demands, by
setting up 400 consumer service hotline, along with official Weibo,
WeChat and other service channels and information retrieval
platforms to ensure the efficient communication with customers.
We have formulated customer service-related specifications and
implemented informatization and process management. Upon
receipt of customer complaints, the customer service centre shall
reply within the prescribed time limit and follow up to ensure
that issues raised by consumers can be properly resolved through
returned visits and other methods. For common issues, the
customer service team will discuss and draw conclusion to reach
for optimised solutions. We identify deficiencies in its service
via consumer satisfaction surveys and other forms and make
continuous improvements and adjustments. Meanwhile, we
strengthen the training of customer service staff and set KPIs for
customer service assessment to continuously motivate customer
service staff to improve service quality and efficiency on constant
basis. During the year, Master Kong's overall settlement rate of
customer satisfaction reached 97.3%.

While providing customers with satisfactory services, Master Kong
focuses on protecting customer privacy. We have formulated and
strictly enforced a comprehensive consumer privacy protection
system. In practice, we only obtain the necessary consumer
information, ask for the consumer’s consent before obtaining
the information, and enter into confidentiality agreements when
necessary. In cooperation with external partners, we include
consumer privacy confidentiality regulations and requirements into
the contracts. For consumers’ information that has been acquired
and saved, we set an internal access right system and conditions
for proper use to fully protect consumer privacy.

Advertising and Intellectual Property Management

When dealing with advertising and product labels, Master
Kong strictly complied with the laws and regulations, such as
the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China to ensure that the
advertisement and label contents were true and legal, and there
exists no exaggerated, false or misleading contents. At the same
time, the Company strictly controls brand promotion and marketing
activities and promotes the honest undertaking of contracts among
partners or other advertising publishers and operators.
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R ERSEZERWIEENBREREE Master Kong continued to consolidate and promote intellectual
ENMRER - AR BEEEES property management and protection measures. The Company
B BERN BHERFMEERET cooperates with professional institutions to comprehensively
EHARE - B ROE=ZH protect intellectual property, including patents and trademarks,
EiE ZRME2ERZERRRibE among which, we have applied for registration to protect our
REFTMRE: SEHRANBERE core trademarks in many countries and regions around the
TERBRUR L SENBERSE world; conducts customs filing application for key intellectual
AR FTEERER  #ERE property and sets up line of defense for customs intellectual
R EEEFER LT 83 property monitoring, combats infringing products and protects
EPROABEERETEZES N brand image. Before launching a new product, Master Kong
EREESHBERNRRE 2R will comprehensively analyze the intellectual property involved:;
PHABRMBERE: THAEEREH while protecting our intellectual property, we avoid infringing
WatEd  BMTEELSEER the intellectual property of other parties; in cooperation with our
MFABEE  WEIBREASA partners, we respect and legally adopt the intellectual property of
HERE o others, and strike to protect our own intellectual property.
HEFESGER Supplier ESG Management

EEEEARMABITENEED As a leader in the food and beverage industry, Master Kong
¥ RABMERAZE 282 profoundly understands the importance of the safety, high-quality
AFENRMRMBNEZ - and sustainable raw materials for food.

e FE R IR IS A & B f B IR R In terms of supplier environmental and social risk management
SIESE - EAESE T(HERE policy formulation, Master Kong has developed the Operational
BIEEP E)ABHEREREM/K Method for Supplier Assessment to provide the basis for supplier
B HERT: HEEBTEMK - 8 management and evaluate suppliers from the perspective of
e I RIRERAEZEABEHH food safety, supply stability, innovation ability and procurement
FERHEATREME - 2020 « BRFEE costs. In 2020, we continued to promote the coverage of the
HECEMEHRERREEM SR Master Kong's Basic Agreement with Supplier on Environmental
EMpREINBEEHE - SHER and Social Compliance, which includes suppliers’ environmental
RE -2 REMAINESZERT and social performance into the scope of assessment and
ERBEFAETERERLEE® requires suppliers to commit to comply the “Nine Mandatory
Bl NIEBEXNAEEZX]  BREKEK Requirements” in environmental and social aspects, including
MEFEK BATEFRGERT - minimum age of employment, forced and binding employment,
HEEE BRENRESE BRE business ethics, serious environmental pollution, serious health
MEFEIZ2BE - THERKH - T or safety hazards, working hours, wages, employee work-related
E - BITHERBRUARRREZ R injury insurance and food safety. At the same time, we signed
%o BRI EEERFIC(REE the Anti-Commercial Bribery Commitment with suppliers, which
BRARAGEE ) - BEIR T BRAD(H Y e reflects Master Kong's requirements for suppliers in terms of
AERREMERREEEENE environmental and social risk management, and demonstrates
ko BRETERMERTEEREZD Master Kong's determination to fulfill the core corporate social
ELTEEEARL responsibilities of the value chain.
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Regarding supplier environmental and social risk management
practices, in the introduction of new supplier, Master Kong prefers
to cooperate with well-known enterprises in the industry, conducts
strict audit for its qualification, carries out investigation on product
quality management capabilities, tests its production samples,
to ensure that its products meet the relevant national standards
on food safety and Master Kong's requirements on food safety.
We conduct on-site inspection of the supplier’s production base
every year, the scope of our inspection includes manufacturer’s
license (including production license, 1SO certificates and other
qualification documents), quality control capacity, product
supply capacity, food safety control capacity, environmental and
occupational health and safety management level. During the
annual regular supplier review, we carefully assess the production
environment of the supplier's workshop and plant, the compliance
of waste emissions, personnel safety awareness in operation, etc.

In order to enhance supplier’s independent audit capability in
environmental and social risk management, in November 2020,
we appointed professional institutions to carry out a special
training on “Supply Chain ESG Independent Audit Capability
Enhancement” for the procurement team of the supply chain
department of each business. The training covered the knowledge
in the supply chain ESG audit standards, audit processes and
specific operating methods and other aspects, included the key
areas in supplier ESG audit such as employment, working hours
and benefits, occupational health and safety, anti-discrimination
and anti-harassment, and business ethics, which further enhanced
the supply chain colleagues’ understanding and knowledge
on supplier ESG audit. In the future, we will continue to carry
out capacity-building activities in the field of supply chain ESG
risk management, continue to enhance supply chain ESG risk
management capabilities through a combination of self-learning
and external training, and better enhance sustainable development
capabilities with supply chain partners.
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In 2020, Master Kong continued to promote the digital
management of the supply chain, covering all aspects of the
upstream and downstream of the value chain. We continued
to promote the implementation of Supplier Relationship
Management (SRM) system. Through the training of upstream
suppliers and Master Kong supply chain personnel, we achieved
digital management for the entire bidding process from release of
tenders, supplier introduction, reserve price signing and approval,
procurement bidding, bid approval. With SRM system, we
achieved paperless operations, reduced the circulation and delivery
of paper documents, such as the reserve price list and supplier
tenders. We changed the original operation method of manually
entering prices, greatly improving work efficiency and accuracy.
At the same time, we continued to promote the implementation
of Material Requirement Planning (MRP), which can automatically
calculate raw material requirements, reduce the manpower for
raw material demand planning and improve the accuracy. As such,
we can procure as planned, arrange production line operations
reasonably, achieve smooth production, avoid overload or idle
operation of production line, increase the flexibility of scheduling
and improve production efficiency.

Anti-corruption Management and Professional Ethics

Master Kong strictly complies with the law and regulation
requirements such as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China. The Company establishes and regularly assesses
the anticorruption management systems, continuously strengthens
the Company’s anti-fraud system, and avoids any direct or indirect
forms of bribery and other illegal commercial conducts. Master
Kong strictly controls the Company's funds and cash flow to
prevent money laundering.

The Company requires its employees to strictly abide by business
ethics, sign Commitment Letter on Anti-Corruption with staff
and suppliers, and issues the Measures for the Management of
Integrity and Self-discipline of Employees covering all employees.
This measure clearly define fraud and violations of business ethics,
clearly stipulate the supervision responsibilities of internal control,
risk control and audit departments, and systematically sort out
the reporting, supervision and review process and punishment
rules. In 2020, the Company conducted trainings on the measures
for supply chain departments of each business, and the trainees
included leaders of factories and other management personnel.
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This training strengthened the awareness of honesty in relevant
positions, and resolutely put an end to bribery, demand for bribes
and other violations of professional ethics in business dealings.
At the same time, the Company released a series of courses
on keeping away from negative energy in the “WEME Online
Academy” to warn against corruption and bribery in disguised
forms that may occur in the business process, and put forward
corresponding punishment plans. The Company conducted anti-
corruption advocacy training for newly recruited employees in
the form of mobile terminal animation, teaching through lively
activities, thus the anti-corruption is deeply rooted in the minds of
our employees.

The Company has set up reporting hotline and email to
encourage employees and external personnel to report improper
conducts such as commercial bribery and fraud. The Company
audit department strictly follows the Whistleblower Operating
Procedures to implement whistleblower handling. After the end
of case investigation, the Company will analyze the effectiveness
of internal control and track improvement. For major fraud cases,
regular publicity is carried out to strengthen the business ethics of
the staff. This year, in order to further strengthen the Company’s
anti-fraud management capabilities, Master Kong joined the China
Institute of Internal Audit and actively participated in the activities
of the association, keeping abreast of the latest development
direction and enhancing the anti-fraud investigation skills.
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Brand Breakthrough

Enhance brand power by IP collaboration

£ TIGER

1 ROAR

EEENTED TO

e T MR

L all o e L Ll A
LEtE L LR
R LA AR R LR B ] RATT T -0 (FT g

e SR

Master Kong attaches importance to IP marketing cooperation
so as to create a better resonance among consumers. In 2020,
we conducted in-depth cooperation with the domestic comics
IP “"Douro Mainland”, which is favoured by young consumer
groups, in the fields of animation and mobile games. Under the
cooperation, we integrated Rattan Pepper Beef Noodle, one of
our instant noodle brand, with the Douro Mainland animation for
content co-creation, and with the New Douro Mainland mobile
game for in-depth implantation, which closely integrates the
refreshing taste experience of the product’s core Ratten Pepper
Oil Package to consumers with the IP’s “burning” theme and
transforms consumers’ refreshing experience to their recognition
of Master Kong's products, leading to a win-win situation for
our brand and the IP brand with traffic growth. Meanwhile, the
protagonist image of Douro Mainland IP also appeared on the
packaging of Master Kong's instant noodle products. Through
offline and e-commerce channels, Master Kong’s product
promotion and marketing were conducted with satisfactory
market feedback, which effectively improved Master Kong's
product reach and the audience base. In 2020, with the marketing
case -Combination of Master Kong Rattan Pepper Beef Noodle
and Douro Mainland with Triple “Linkage” Creates the First
Ecological Closed-Loop of National Comic Marketing”, Master
Kong won 5 awards from 4 well-known marketing competitions,
namely Best Marketing Effectiveness Award and Digital Media
Integration Silver Award in the 11th Golden Mouse Digital
Marketing Award, Crossover Marketing Bronze Award in the
20th IAl International Advertising Awards, Bronze Award in Media
Group in the 13th ROI Festival, and Excellence Award in Food
Category in the 11th Tiger Roar Award.
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“Cheering your spirit up” Impresses Young Consumers

Over the 25 years since its launch, Master
Kong Ice Tea has maintained a young
brand image. In recent years, focusing
on the interest of the new generation of
consumers, Master Kong Ice Tea has built
a young brand image which is deeply
rooted among people and has received
numerous fans. Master Kong ice tea is
good at “heart touching” approach which
combines popular psychology and fashion
' ""ﬁ trends and arouses a knowing.smile
\ among consumers. Based on the lives of
the younger generation and with rich and
diversified new content, the theme of
“Master Kong Ice Tea — Hyper Fun” is fully
interpreted. Before the upcoming 2021
Chinese New Year, Master Kong Ice Tea,
together with brand spokesperson William
Chen and China burning power representative Meng Meiqi, re-
interpreted the classic song “A Fire in Winter” in the hearts of a
generation, injecting a youthful soul into the classic song, igniting
the first fire of the 2021 Chinese New Year, bringing full vitality
for the upcoming Chinese New Year, and successfully making
more people recognize the brand soul of Master Kong Ice Tea.

Master Kong Ice Tea has also meticulously crafted a series of
marketing activities. Among them, the city documentary Wonder
City in which the brand is deeply embedded, received a strong
response after the broadcast, which has already set off a “Hyper
Fun” craze. As the 2021 Chinese New Year was approaching,
Master Kong Ice Tea and Tencent Video launched an in-depth
cooperation, making the public have a deeper resonance with the
brand proposition of “Galloping for well-off, Cheering your spirit
up”. In 2021, let's look forward to a new chapter in Master Kong
Ice Tea's “Cheering your spirit up”!
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“Full Link Digitization” Opens a New Era of Smart Retail

Master Kong recognizes that the digital economy will become
a new engine for China’s economic development, and actively
promotes the digital development of the industrial chain. On
15 December 2020, Master Kong and Tencent Smart Retail
signed a strategic cooperation agreement in Shanghai, marking
a milestone event for Master Kong in building the “Full Link
Digitization” of the fast-moving consumer industry. Master
Kong will carry out in-depth cooperation with partners on the
Full Link Digitization, winning customers from full areas, refined
operation of the consumer’s full life cycle, intelligent production
and digital management of the supply chain, and create new
business models driven by technology. In particular, on the C-side
(consumer), it will realize the digitalization of brand marketing
to accumulate digital users by connecting different user points,
5o as to expand the customer base for the brand and improves
customer stickiness; on the B-side (business), it will realize the
scale of terminal stores to improve operating efficiency. “Full Link
Digitization” helps Master Kong deliver the right products to the
right consumers at the right time and in the right place, injecting
strong momentum into Master Kong's sustainable development,
and driving corporate transformation, consumption upgrades and

a positive circle of the industrial chain.

FEEMH BB AR B BT B S 1E R

Master Kong and Tencent signing off a digital strategy cooperation agreement
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Create the Exclusive IP “New Year Blessing from Master
Kong”

In early 2020, Master Kong cooperated with national idol
Lang Ping to launch the “New Year Blessing from Master
Kong” marketing campaign, breaking the traditional brand
communication stereotypes, creating an exclusive IP for the Master
Kong brand and enhancing the emotional connection between the
Spring Festival in the eyes of consumers and “New Year Blessing
from Master Kong”. The “New Year's Health Is Good Fortune”
IP represents Master Kong's national brand image of caring
about the Chinese people, and strengthens Master Kong's label
as a representative of Chinese noodle culture and an inheritor
of Chinese food culture. Multi-channel promotion strategy is
adopted in this marketing campaign. Through internet platforms
and movies and sports themes, all-around communications
were made across all population. Centering on the Chinese
women'’s volleyball team, New Year blessings were sent to mass
consumers. As such, we could continue to improve consumers’
favorability towards the Company’s brand and strengthen Master
Kong's national brand image that is concerned with the physical
and mental health of the Chinese people and the happiness of
their families. “New Year Blessing from Master Kong” creates
emotional communication with thousands of families, pays tribute
to Chinese culture, promotes Chinese food culture, and continues
to help build the cultural self-confidence of the Chinese nation.

[#rFFeR 2R P
The exclusive IP of “New Year Blessing from Master Kong”
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Support 2022 Beijing Winter Olympics

The 2022 Beijing Winter Olympics is starting shortly. In active
response to the call of Winter Sport Management Centre of State
General Administration of Sport (the “Winter Sport Centre”) for
the scientific diet customization for Chinese ice and snow athletes,
Master Kong became the Winter Sport Centre 2019-2022 sports
convenience and nutrition meal partners to provide scientific,
delicious, safe and nutritious diet guarantee for athletes. In 2020,
Master Kong will continue to deliver Customized Products for
Snow Athletes to provide healthy diet for athletes in the Winter
Olympics. At the same time, as a support to the Public Service
Action Plan of the National Team for Ice and Snow Sports, Master
Kong joined hands with the Winter Sports Centre to launch the
Micro Classes for Ice and Snow Knowledge during the pandemic
to popularize the Winter Olympics knowledge and enhance the
influence of the Master Kong brand among the mass sports
population.

54 EREERERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

FRADE ST IE R RABBURE
Master Kong supports the 2022 Beijing Winter Olympics
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Master Kong is well aware of the impact of its productions and
operations on the environment and resources, and actively takes
responsibility for protecting the environment. The company
identifies and complies with the requirements of national
environmental protection laws and regulations, formulates energy
internal initiatives and systems for conservation and emission
reduction based on its production and operation situation,
continues to increase investment in technical innovation, actively
promotes the implementation of various energy conservation
and emission reduction projects in all businesses and factories,
and carries out various project practices in respect of energy
conservation, water conservation, emission reduction and
packaging material reduction to reduce its adverse impacts on the
environment. Meanwhile, we stress climate change issues and
realize that climate change is a major challenge that human race is
facing. In 2020, Master Kong initially sorted out the major climate
change risks faced by the company with support from external
professional organizations. We will actively assume corporate
citizen responsibilities while avoiding potential risks, work with all
sectors of society to mitigate the impact of climate change, pursue
green development and enjoy “Life + Delicacy”.

Energy Conservation Management

Master Kong formulates Energy Management Standards and
Energy Consumption Assessment and Evaluation Methods as
standards and guidelines, and the relevant system content is
publicized and implemented in all factories. We also carry out
delicacy management for energy consumption in each factory,
implement the energy conservation practices and management
measures in the standards, focus on the detail control of the
existing process, continue to implement the energy intelligent
management system, explore and seek opportunities for energy
conservation in various production processes. We also actively
conduct energy management health inspections, assess energy
management conditions, and incorporate energy conservation
and consumption reduction effects into performance evaluation
indicators for related positions. We increase the importance of
energy conservation for relevant positions, to promote energy
conservation efforts. In 2020, Master Kong's overall energy
consumption per ton of output reduced approximately 6.4
kilowatt hours, representing a decrease of 1.86%, as compared
to 2019. With their respective remarkable achievements in energy
conservation management, 17 factories under Master Kong
beverage business and 17 factories under Pepsi beverage business
earned the honor title of “Excellent Energy- Saving Company” by
the China Beverage Industry Association.
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Alternating instant noodles business based on the existing
steam box recovery device to recycle fresh air generated
from the process of frying, which saves approximately
3200 tons of steam on each production line every year.
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Pepsi beverage business Chongging factory leverages
original thermos bottle machine cold energy recovery
pipeline to conduct heat exchange of heat, which is
generated from process of cooling water by water
chiller, through plate heat exchanger and thermos bottle
machine, thus saving approximately 30,000 cubic meters
natural gas by heating the cold water in thermos bottle
machine to reduce the steam consumption of thermos
bottle machine.
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With the integrated planning by the supply chain of
Master Kong beverage business, RMB4.6 million was
put into the transformation from old roots blower in
sewage station of each comprehensive factory to new air
suspension blower in sewage station. 33 devices were
replaced this year, saving approximately 5,000,000 Kwh
of electricity and mitigating the effect of noise.
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Bakery business conducts transformation on packaging
workshop by separating workshop with color steel plate,
which mitigates the drawbacks of large unutilized space
in the original workshop and poor heat insulation effect.
Upon transformation, the loans and energy consumption
of refrigeration equipment were lowered, representing a
decrease of 18.6% in electricity consumption as compared
with that of the corresponding period of last year.
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Water Conservation Management

All businesses of Master Kong formulate £nergy Conservation
Management Systems, providing system basis for water
management of the Company. In 2020, we actively implemented
multiple practices that were devoted to water conservation and
improvement on water-use efficiency, conducted analyses on
water consumption of factories, set up a regular monitoring
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mechanism for water quantity, to learn the water consumption
status of each production sectors, report and review on
water consumption statement statistical analyses. We further
implemented key water-conservation reconstruction projects for
processes and equipment with high water consumption, and
promoted excellent examples to all factories. We also stress the
publicity and education of water conservation in the daily work,
publicize and exercise the water conservation idea of “value
water, conserve water and protect water” through training and
posting signs. In 2020, Master Kong ‘s water consumption per
ton of output declined approximately 53.2 liters, representing
a decrease of 1.99%, as compared to 2019. With excellent
management practices, 14 factories under Master Kong beverage
business and 17 factories under Pepsi beverage business earned
the honor title of “Excellent Water Conservation Company” by
the China Beverage Industry Association for the second time.
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K192 B Reusing concentrated water produced by Pepsi

beverage business Zhengzhou factory’s original

Instant noddle business has decided to implement
the recovery and reuse of condensate water.
Using the condensate water produced in
workshop in daily cleaning and boiler in industries
while reducing emission of waste water. In 2020,
factories of instant noddle business have saved
water of approximately 1,920,000 tons.

Master Kong beverage business Hangzhou
factory updated the Frozen Filling Machine this
year. By ways of installing temporary storing
barrels, recovery pipeline, valves, water pump
and electricity control to realize the recycle of the
water used to washing Frozen Filling Machine,
thus reducing approximately 20,000 Kwh of
waste water to achieve water saving each year
upon reconstruction.

RO machines to improve water utilization and
reduce waste water emission, thus saving
approximately 55,000 tons of water every year.
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EREREEE Low Carbon and Emission Management

5 il 125 38 5 I 38 <7 B 3R %GB Master Kong identifies and complies with related laws and
REEEY - 52BN BEEE regulations for waste and pollutant emission in where the
ER BIE(RE AR EMEIRER Company operates, including the Environmental Protection Law
L) (REARKMBEIRES AR of the People’s Republic of China, the Atmospheric Pollution
AVEY ARR GRS BEBUIRE) Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
CHRERRSAMPERIEE) CBRF Integrated emission standard of air pollutants, Emission standard
RYPEREE) (TELEERER of air pollutants for boiler, Emission Standard for Odor Pollutants,
O HE RS E) R(FE AR K Volatile Organic Compound Emission Control Standards for
A E B EY s RRIBENEE)E Industrial Enterprises and the Law of the People’s Republic of
HIE T RENEANEEREK - BERX China on the Prevention and Control on Environmental Protection
BEZVTEOBERERSE by Solid Wastes. Master Kong formulates its internal emission
SR ER  RERIENEZEER management system in respect of waste water, waste gas and
12 IR AR AR IE A K solid waste, to clarify compliance requirements, standardize
T REBREBTET EXER operation and disposal procedures, improve related equipment
- ANEEEELNEEXKRE operation and maintenance levels, ensure stable operation of
EEMBERVENERN  HEBEEEE equipment, and achieve compliance emissions. Master Kong also
BB R ETEE - HREERE engages a qualified professional organization to carry out regular
HREERTE  BFRZBESF emission monitoring for the compliance of various indicators.
mAE R EMERAEREENRE In respect of greenhouse gas emission management, we deeply
BITENRET BHRE2EBERMM understand stakeholders’ attentions on Master Kong's greenhouse
TR - Bl MR AN ST IR R B Al gas emission management. Through actively responding to the
ABRSeESHERRE ARESE state and local policies, introducing and adopting advanced
TR R T SO RO MR R - RER D environmental protection technologies, replacing equipment
AAEERER BEBFNEER with high energy consumption and high emission, implementing
BEPENE © 20204 - RANEMEES various technologies transformation and projects of emission
BERBEBENRELL2019F 5 4 4 reduction, and actively using renewable energies, the Company
28Fm  TI414.42% reduced its greenhouse gas emissions. In 2020, Master

Kong’s greenhouse gas emissions per ton of output declined
approximately 2.8 kilograms, representing a decrease of 4.42%,
as compared to 2019.
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The instant noodle business invested around RMB15
million to upgrade sewage treatment and waste gas
equipment. The upgrade and replacement of all plant
exhaust gas equipment have been completed in 2020. The
upgraded exhaust gas equipment uses a closed collection
biological treatment process to eliminate odorous gases.

BERmEFILRABELEEERBER RERINTIF
TR T —EFE] |§E7§$&¢%(Volatlle Organic Compounds
VOCS)EEREB ARG RMETEERE » £EL

VOCsERRFiE85% @ TF M FEFH b IS HERENE -

At Beijing factory of Pepsi beverage business, one set of
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) exhaust gas treatment
system was applied in the code-spraying and shrinking film
process. The operation is on normal and remains stable.
The removal rate during production process reaches 85%,
with 3 tons non-methane hydrocarbons reduced annually

BRMARYEREERL
Volatile Organic Compounds exhaust
gas treagment systems
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Upgrading of
waste gas treatment faCIIIty

B Bl 188 6% S 0 N R 38 2 T e S B BB AR T AR B 0 R
BRI SGE  BIRKR  REREKEXSSRGEAR
ACBEREEEN  BRBEREERARER B
W= THEMARE TTERSE -

Master Kong Beverage Plant in Hangzhou upgraded the
acetic acid waste gas treatment facilities. By replacing
the alkaline tower, circulating water pump, ancillary
instruments, sensors and other accessories, the capacity
of peracetic acid waste gas treatment has been enhanced,
so as to ensure the compliance of exhaust emissions
after treatment and improve the working environment of
employees in the workshop.

B EEP2020F MNEEMIGRIBES - LURD B AL
HERRA) 20K - %wﬁa/éliﬁ/f%ﬂfﬁﬂ{é 1101820
KEEREHNR - REFE (TEEBARSED
PEIZZE) (GB9078-1996)IZ%E -

More activated carbon filters were applied in the bakery
business in 2020, to reduce the odour from organized
discharge. After the exhaust gas is filtered and processed
by the activated carbon filter, it is discharged from
10 20-meter high exhaust cylinders, and the emission
concentration is in line with Standard of Smoke and Dust
Emission for Industrial Kiln and Furnace (GB9078-1996).

EERBER O F+ R ki
Upgrading and reconstruction
of exhaust gas outlet
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Reduce the Use of Packaging Materials

In order to implement sustainable development principles, Master
Kong actively reduces the use and consumption of various
packaging materials at all stages of the product life cycle to reduce
its impact on the environment. In respect of the production and
transportation of products, we formulate policies related to raw
materials management. Through optimizing production processes,
formulating special plastic and weight reduction plans based on
the packaging characteristics of major products, analyzing the
transfer process of the product and cargo, the Company reduced
unnecessary packaging materials in the transportation. Some
useful discarded packaging materials are gathered for recycling to
improve utilization of discarded packaging materials.

In respect of product usage, Master Kong is well aware of the
impact of discarded packaging materials on the environment,
and put efforts in plastic and weight reduction and optimization
of packaging materials. In 2020, Master Kong's instant noodle
business refined the transportation and collection process of
producing raw materials. The flour and starch were no longer
delivered in bags but delivered via tanker trucks. The tapioca
and refined salt are packaged by bulk bags instead of bags with
small capacity, which significantly reduces the consumption of
packaging materials. The raw martials of sauce bag are delivered
to the production plants in plastic baskets instead of cartons.
The used plastic baskets are collected and cleaned for recycling,
which reduces the use of cartons. The packaging method of
biscuits products of bakery business is replaced from plastic bags
to pallets, which reduces the use of plastic packaging materials.
At the same time, each business puts efforts in the recycling of
the packaging materials, recycles the used cartons for product
transportation.



=

IR (2 REJATRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REE EERREERAER In this year, both Master Kong beverage business and Pepsi
BEXHHEBHERMRBR D HE beverage business reduced or optimize the use of packaging
{tTERMER  FABERMT - materials for some product items. Details are as follows:

FABRmER
MASTER KONG BEVERAGE BUSINESS

1.0L PETREmMmEZMN  ARKREMEEHR3I4T 0.5L PETHRBAEm=MEEMR 2322 THR22 R
AR32E  BERAEFEMESEH30R TAR28R

1.0L PET empty bottle of each kind of product, of which The weight of 0.5L PET empty carbonated product bottle
the weight of empty bottle of thermoforming line (Z4 reduced from 23.2 grams to 22 grams

FE4RZER) reduced from 34 grams to 32 grams and the

weight of empty bottle of cold aseptic filling line (FEER 4R

Z=3R) reduced from 30 grams to 28 grams

BEERmEBER
PEPSI BEVERAGE BUSINESS

o Py
@ o

500ml PETH =z EH23.2 300ml PETEEZEMREH 21 54 EE S E W 0.27mm 488 A
RTHRAE22R THE18% 0.26mm
The weight of 500ml PET empty The weight of 300ml PET empty The thickness of aluminum cans

Pepsi bottle reduced from 23.2 7-up bottle reduced from 21 reduced from 0.27mm to 0.26mm
grams to 22 grams grams to 18 grams
BEAN - 2020F - BERMEBEES Besides, in 2020, Pepsi beverage business and its partners carried
YE % 1+ — # 59 |E PET 1@ 3% (R-PET) FI out a PET recycling (R-PET) utilization research pilot project. The
HAMEARER  BERMRIERT Beijing factory of Pepsi beverage used scrap PET to make worker
JBR B {55 FA ¥ 85 PET RUERL TARFIE K clothes and white gowns. The Hangzhou plant of Master Kong

# o FRANE KM EETRM
TRt AR EE
FIER-PETH % » LA EE
PET & R B A ZE TR A
FHE 4 - 2021 5 0 A5
EESTHEERRERE
R-PETEHZ -

beverage business also cooperated with
Veolia Company (E{3Z 2 A]) to carry
out the R-PET project to produce worker
clothes and cloth fiber using scrap PET as
raw materials. In 2021, we will continue
to expand and promote R-PET projects in
more factories.

¥R 2% PET HRBMERK A9 T AR AHh
The worker clothes and white gowns made of
scrap PET bottles
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HFLEEEE Digital Production Management

FREE ST T AEEEERRNE Master Kong flexibly applies digital tools to all aspects of
EEESIRE  FEETEFER production and operation, continues to make innovation
MEMAH BBETI 2ae breakthroughs and technological upgrades, and improves
t-BEtas BRALEES production and operation efficiency through digital, intelligent,
WE - BAREEEERES and automated methods, and gradually improves comprehensive

management capabilities.

20204 + FERNEZ A E LineView In 2020, Master Kong gradually promoted the Line View
FESEREERBBRESE R4 production line online monitoring and data collection system
EREZTEAEERNRE BHHAEH to monitor the status of the production line in real time,
RKPIER BERBRELL & automatically calculated key KPI indicators, realized paperless
BRI BAHEEERETIRE reports and accurate data. Through the implementation of
EMEIEEE NIRAEERE remote monitoring of the running status of the production line,
BREEEXNE  BFTEREAE it helped to improve production efficiency and reduce Production
E - EZEPOLAEE2020F B & costs, and gradually realized unmanned production. In 2020, the
SEIUHASFRIEEMBE ERIT Internal Control Department of the Operations Center assisted all
- BEFESTHAEELITE businesses in canceling the printing of paper receipts for internal
AR - BB EAIEE  BE payment requests, which greatly conserves printing costs for all
B BE R © businesses and factories, and implemented energy-saving and

carbon-reduction by promoting paperless operations.

FEERAAESHIY R ER SR Master Kong promoted the Transportation Management System
% #i(Transportation Management (TMS) project this year. By virtue of big data, artificial intelligence,
System * TMS) B - {EB) A 8HE - cloud services and other scientific and technological forces,
ATER  EREZRE NS &2 Master Kong established a digital logistics management platform
VHEOREETYE BIRTEM to achieve the unification of Master Kong's factory, carrier, and
B FOEW EHaERY transportation driver system. Dispatching management, from the
G—EHEEE RIEBEE - RE K four dimensions of freight, efficiency, cost, and service, empowers
AN RIS EGE - B (LR A the supply chain departments of businesses with digitalization,
sEEMaEmI . B TH2EE and realizes unified management and control of nearly a hundred
BRIBEG— S o« WiBiB 100K factories across the country. The company coordinated with more
EHR SO0ZEESL HERRS than 100 transporters and more than 500 transporter business
EEBRRRELRE  ER10E5HEE offices, and achieved coordinated operation of 100,000 transport
BEHAREEE BBTELHIRE - vehicles. Through modern park management modes such as
BHEImEEUSEERALCERS appointments for pick-up and vehicles arriving at the factory to
A BREEDADREESE line up and calling numbers, the Company reduced the waste
B ML EWEERIEEREE - [ of manpower and resources in loading and unloading, and the
B REEFAEREHTH occurrence of vehicle queuing congestion. At the same time, the
R R L EEEHRTER logistics management platform can realize the full visualization of
MEMEGREY 2RI EH the vehicle trajectory, preventing and managing transportation
B OHEENEHEFRE - TR abnormalities in advance, which records transportation data
RESE N IIE - (Y RS AL throughout the whole process, and provides real feedback on
2B o performance indicators such as supplier services and factory

efficiency to promote the improvement of logistics service
capabilities.
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Tackle Climate Change

Master Kong deeply understands that climate change is a
major challenge the whole society is facing up, and recognizes
that actively responding to the impact of climate change is the
foundation and guarantee for the long-term stable development
of the company. We continue to deepen our understanding of
climate change issues, proactively identify the potential impact
of climate change on our operations, and actively consider and
establish response measures for related climate change risks.

Affected by global climate change in recent years, extreme
weather and natural disasters such as torrential rain, snow and
typhoons may occur more frequently in certain areas, disrupting
the normal operation of Master Kong's factory, affecting
production stability and causing the company’s property losses.
Master Kong conducted a comprehensive analysis of the possibility
of various natural disasters in the operating area, formulated
the Special Emergency Plan for Natural Disaster Accidents, and
standardized the handling measures and response methods when
emergency situations occurred. Master Kong also organized
training and drills on a regular basis, included the extreme
weather in the insurance coverage to reasonably transfer risks,
and provided guarantees for company's assets.

In terms of raw material supply, extreme weather may cause a
decline in the output of agricultural products, which triggers price
fluctuations of the company’s raw materials and affect production
costs. Master Kong actively carries out raw material price analysis,
keeps close attention to factors that may affect price changes, and
enters into contracts with suppliers to lock raw material prices in
advance to control production costs. In addition, extreme weather
may also have a short-term impact on the normal transportation
of raw materials. The various raw materials required by Master
Kong's production are widely produced in mainland China
and even around the world. Therefore, we maintain long-term
cooperation with many qualified suppliers at home and abroad.
The extensive layout of suppliers can alleviate the supplier
transportation interruption risk in local areas caused by extreme
weather.
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In 2020, we engaged a professional consulting agency to assist
us in the preliminary analysis of the main climate change risks
we face, studied good practices in the industry, and discussed
solutions and improvement directions. In the future, Master Kong
will closely follow and stress the risks of climate change, and
continue to improve its own response and management to climate
change issues.

RERREMER

2020 % - FREDBIRF RS E NS
BIIRIT - BRB1THA - REE
R O AT SIEDR & LB AN E A8
REFXEEEEONIRAZAT
B BN ERARBRENE TR

The Environmental Key Performance Indicators

The environmental key performance indicators for the year 2020
were listed below. Unless otherwise specified, the environmental
data® scope covers the Shanghai Master Kong Headquarters
and all domestic factories directly managed? by each business.
Overseas offices are not included in the statistics due to their small

REFSGHHRE  RABRBEERRB
LB S ET IR ER

operation scale. While in the future, we will collect and disclose

their data timely, based on the actual situation.

BREREHEREES Total greenhouse gas emission® 102.2
(8B 1 M&E 2)% (8N) (Scope 1 and Scope 2)® (10,000 Tonnes)

WEE 2 )R ERBHNE Greenhouse gas emission (Kg/tonne of output) 60.81
(A /WEE)

RAREREFERE S (JKERF) Comprehensive energy consumption ®(Mwh) 5,664,172.5

MEE BARG REIRBFEE Comprehensive energy consumption 336.9
(FEE WES) (KWh/tonne of output)

BEHOKRE) Electricity (MWh) 1,409,855.7

WESE N EES(TEE WES) Electricity consumption (KWh/tonne of output) 83.9

VRS m (KR E) Gasoline/diesel (MWh) 5,523.4

RINBMBE R (JRFLREF) Natural gas/coal (MWh) 803,971.9

N T (IR FLRE) Steam purchased (MWh) 3,444,821.6

FXE20 (ILHK) Total water consumption ©(m?3) 43,807,137.2

MEEERKE(IK WES) Water consumption (m3/tonne of output) 2.61

EmBREMEHEREZE " (M) Use of product packaging materials @ (tonne) 1,147,554.3

WMEEVEMEERE(AT WESE) Use of product packaging materials 68.3

(Kg/tonne of output)

{tETE=E Total COD emissions © (tonne) 252.7
(CHEMICAL OXYGEN DEMAND -
COD)#Ep#EE ® (HE)

BEEEDRE(ME) Total hazardous waste (tonne) 649.1

MESEEREEMIENE Discharge of hazardous waste 0.04
(AT /WES) (Kg/tonne of output)

mEEEYES () Total non-hazardous waste (tonne) 176,229.3

MEEEEREMINE Discharge of non-hazardous waste 10.5

(AT /WES)
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Based on the nature of Master Kong, in 2020, its major emissions
are greenhouse gases, sulphur dioxide (SO,) and nitrogen oxides
(NOx), which are mainly from the use of fossil fuel-converted
electricity and fuels. As compared with 2019, the use of fossil fuels,
including natural gas and coal, emissions of sulphur dioxide (SO,)
and nitrogen oxide (NOx) were further decreased. Therefore, their
gaseous emissions were not disclosed due to minor impacts.

The domestic factories directly managed by Master Kong include
all the domestic instant noodle, Master Kong beverage, and bakery
factories located inside the country, as well as all the domestic
Pepsi beverage factories except the factories in Shanghai, Wuhan,
Nanjing, Hangzhou, Shenyang, Tianjing, Fuzhou and Guilin.

The scope of Master Kong's greenhouse gas calculation mainly
covers carbon dioxide, methane, and nitrous oxide. Greenhouse gas
emission data is presented in CO, equivalent and is calculated based
on the 2006 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories (revised edition
in 2019).

Scope 1: covering the greenhouse gas emissions directly generated
by the Company’'s operations; Scope 2: “Indirect energy”
greenhouse gas emissions resulted from the Company’s internal
consumption (electricity, either purchased or obtained); the gas
emissions caused by “indirect energy” purchased heat will be
calculated after the promulgation of the national unified calculation
standard.

Comprehensive energy consumption is calculated based on
energy consumption (direct and indirect), according to the
General Principles for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy
Consumption (GB/T 2589-2008), the State Standard of the People’s
Republic of China.

Water consumption refers to production water within the statistical
scope together with employee’s consumption of water in the office.

Amount of product packaging materials is the sum of the total
amount of packaging materials used by all Master Kong products.

Total COD emission is the sum of COD emission of all factories
within the statistical scope. It refers to the COD emission after the
treatment of municipal sewage plant.
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Deeply Develop Human Resources and Create a Better
Workplace

Master Kong strictly abides by the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law on the Protection of Women's
Rights, the Law on the Protection of Minors, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of the Disabled, the
Regulation on the Employment of the Disabled, the Provisions
on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour and other relevant
laws and regulations, and formulates rules and regulations such
as the Recruitment Measures, the Appointment Procedures,
Resign Management Measures, and Reward and Punishment
Management Measures for Employees according to applicable
laws and regulations, so as to ensure the employment is carried
out in accordance with relevant rules and regulations and
protect the legitimate rights and interests of employees. The
Company adopts equal employment policy to avoid employment
discrimination of any forms and establishes the recruitment,
development and promotion system regardless of gender,
nationality and religion. Meanwhile, the Company also recruit a
certain proportion of disabled employees with equal salary and
benefits. We oppose any forms of forced labour and child labour
and any occurrence of such cases is strictly prohibited within the
Company.

In accordance with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the working hours and vacations for employees are
stipulated in the labour contracts with our employees, so that
to make standardized management of employees’ vacations.
Employees are entitled to paid annual leave, personal leave, sick
leave, marriage leave, funeral leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave and breastfeeding leave, and apply for leave according to
the corresponding leave time and subject to relevant approval
authority.

Master Kong has put in place a management system for salary,
performance, and year-end bonus. In addition to paying the full
amount of “five social insurances and one housing fund” for
employees in accordance with national laws and regulations, all
businesses adopts diverse incentive measures such as monthly,
quarterly, and annual bonus for outstanding employees in
light of their specific circumstances, and provides employees
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SNEERL - BRMAIRERBERE TR with wedding, funeral, sick leave and additional subsidies for
HikEE - EHEFN  BREBRIEWN high temperature, high cold, heating, etc. In addition, we also
MEF - EXEBEZEN AL provide our employees with soft benefits such as travel, birthday
RET  ReMKARBEIENES benefits, and health check-ups. Despite the unfavorable economic
HE - REEE T AIKE o environment affected by the pandemic, the Company still provides

bonuses to employees to ensure their income levels.

ANERBFLER

ERRAFZESENMSRET  CEVARSELERE  URHELMAE - XFE - BERF(IER
A= REVE HR M F(LEAIAR | - REVEHEIDCI AR TIEREE IBF(LHER KL -

FENME SR T HMEmEINEIRT - SHRIEEHME T HERBERLR - BREADEREBEAMIEERY - B2
MRTEMENANERAFEE - 2EPH IR T EMENERELRER -

BEIFEE HRI{’EAIT RABEIER BMERTANERSERS  ZEZREBIHMEK - BEERK
BMANA—R TERTAE 0% HESZESKE X TEAERIMIBERNEIEER - BHH
BREEE y”&%&i@ Jr %‘?%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ#&%?&u - EREENREDE  ERRIRERETREE - Bl
MBIER BERAE- e BENBEL  BMLEEBEABRNER - BI#EST - BPFAEE - A
Bz EEE—ERR - {EEEZZK . %—EEE’\J&@JF&C%$‘* o AN - AREHEASZTEREE - BLIRIE - RMHE
ASTEREE  FEIAR - BREEEEHRE OA(Office Automation ' AEENL)F & L#EFT ©

Digital-based HR Management

In a rapidly evolving and volatile market environment, enterprises are required to improve operational efficiency to
cope with changes and challenges. In this year, Master Kong was granted the IDC digital transformation award of
“Future Work Leaders” for its “Boundless Sharing Empowers HR Digital Transformation Project of Master Kong”.

Master Kong has used the complete salary outsourcing service, which liberates HR from transactional work, so
that they could focus on human resource strategy and value-added services. Hence, it has accelerated our digital
HR transformation in an all-round way, and comprehensively helped upgrade our management and operation
system.

In order to better promote HR work efficiency and enhance employee experience, we have built an intelligent
HR system which integrates Bl reporting, management cockpit and self-service analysis, opens up multiple data
sources such as human resources, finance, and sales, establishes a data model suitable for intelligent analysis and
presentation, realizes data view management, multi-dimensional report design, intelligent analysis report design,
management cockpit and other functions as well as real-time display of data through the mobile terminal. With
a view to enhance the experience of new employees and realize the mobilization of production, management,
collaboration, and operations, we launched a pre-employment mini program to build a fast, low-cost, and high-
quality mobile application platform for new employees, department heads, and human resources. In addition, in
order to streamline the personnel workflow and operation, we promote the operation of the personnel workflow,
so that employee contracts and file management are centralized on the OA (Office Automation) platform.

=
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REEIREHEZS  TEROBE Protect the Health and Safety of Employees and Create a
Safe Workplace

EMEFEFAEIEIMNBERAER Master Kong attaches constant attention to provide employees
2 ke B BEEEESR with a healthy and safe working environment, and strives to
U EREEIRREZ S - &M effectively protect the health and safety of employees from the
BARET(REARANMBE L2 £ E aspects of prevention, management and control and fulfillment of
E) AR EARKMBEBZERNEE) responsibilities. We strictly abide by the Work Safety Law of the
(REARKFMBUEYE)E B X People’s Republic of China, The Law on Prevention and Control
BEHR WREEE T —RIAZH of Occupational Disease of the People’s Republic of China,
EERERESER  HEE - and The Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
T REEESFHEETZHEE and other PRC laws and regulations, and introduces a series of
2HNREEE  JEREBEI® internal management measures and contingent plans to carry out
EREALTE -  RRHEEBRERR multi-dimensional and comprehensive safety management and
AT ERBRR S —REEMA control from aspects such as production, construction and quality
BEIRHEEENERE  flWR management, thereby effectively safeguarding the health and
- tEHEFE BEE %2T safety of employees. The Company provides complete protective
RS - BRUBREBERIESS M equipment, such as eye masks, chemical protective gloves,
REBEHEITRNBEERELE - B earplugs and safety work clothes for front-line employees facing
BMEEREIABEERERSR I occupational disease risks or high safety risks, effectively reducing
EHZHL2EERE - EHAE the impact of special workplaces and environments on employees’
BOHD R BB RN ERIER health. In addition, we organize health checkups for employees
UREEIENZ2EBLBEEND every year, and regularly arrange safety guidance and training, and
N MABEIZTAESRZSD actively organize fire safety and fire equipment drills to improve
HeliE - AR AEEEZEIE- employees’ fire safety awareness and self-protection capabilities.
B RAESIHEREERQA New employees are required to receive safety training before
HIRE - @EEZ 2 (Environment, they can start production operations. Meanwhile, at all factories,
Health and Safety, EHS)#y#HEEZE Sk environment, health and safety (EHS) related requirements and
MHAE - FERXRAFHELHSERE arrangements are painstakingly followed and implemented.
&) - BASREHSFEIIE - W HEFKEHS Besides, Master Kong will continue carrying forth in-depth EHS
EERBETLRE2HE  THRE management activities and strictly undertake annual EHS audits.
EHS #aEiB R isisk - TETIRAE T We also have an EHS officer to provide ongoing safety education,
LTREEEB - conduct regular EHS skill training and competition, so as to keep

increasing the safe production awareness among employees.
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Promote Growth and Development of Employees and
Create an Intelligent Workplace

Master Kong attaches great importance to the development of
each employee. In order to better develop all-round outstanding
talents with “Diligence, Integrity and Ability”, the Company
arranges customized and diversified courses for employees at
different levels. We provide employees with a variety of trainings
such as general training on corporate culture, training on
professional knowledge and skill improvement and training on
management skills improvement based on their job level, career
development stage, and functional positions.

In 2020, the Company introduced a variety of training sessions
and projects, with an accumulated training time of more than
6.4506 million hours and an average of 113.67 hours of training
per person. In order that each employee can have access to and
learn from the training video clips delivered by the Company in
an easier and more effective way, and to cater to the fragmented
learning needs of the new generation of employees, this year we
continued to deepen the online learning model and enrich the
"WEME Online Academy” and “E-learning” and other mobile
learning resources, and updated the content of the courses in time
to ensure that employees can improve their knowledge reserves
and quickly improve their professional skills.

BEREFEEERER

BT PIMAREIE

Quarterly professional skills training for business functions

Staff outdoor development training
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In 2020, based on industry trends and functional requirements,
Master Kong continued to carry out in-depth cooperation with
external companies and consulting agencies, and established long-
term partnerships with a number of well-known domestic and
foreign companies and consulting companies such as HPO, REC,
Carnegie and Center, and provided forward-looking and scientific
knowledge and skills to employees.

All businesses carry out trainings as planned for on-job department
level, reserve management level and on-job management level
to strengthen management skills of middle-level supervisors and
enhance internal organizational skills. M series of on-job reserve
management ability improvement training courses adopt a method
combining centralized planning with hierarchical and grading
training. The entire stepped system is divided into nine levels from
MO to M8. M0-M4 is converted to online teaching through the
China-Europe Business Online Partner Learning Platform (China-
Europe Platform), and M5-M8 is for offline teaching. We have
designed highly targeted courses for each level. From the self-
management of grass-roots employees, to the management of
others by middle-level cadres, and then to the management of
the whole team by high-level cadres, we have achieved stepped
improvement and reinforcement. Meanwhile, targeted offline
reinforcement courses are added to supplement the lack of
practical operations in online training. At the same time, G series
of general education courses for all staff are also being promoted
through China-Europe Platform.

2EAEIRE FEE

Carnegie people skill series training courses National HR trainer special training
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Build Corporate Culture and Create a Better Workplace

The construction of corporate culture for Master Kong's business
operations, like the atmosphere surrounding the surface of the
earth, is the basic condition for Master Kong’s existence. Cultural
construction is the core and ideological guarantee, while business
operation is behavior and material basis, both of which are aimed
to jointly ensure the sustainable operation of the corporate. In
2020, in order to carry out top-down ideological promotion and
penetration well, Master Kong established a cultural construction
committee, to continue to improve the cultural construction
system gradually and pragmatically to ensure effectiveness.

The recognition and integration of all Master Kong people to its
corporate values is the cornerstone of Master Kong's sustainable
development, and newcomers and leading cadres are the top
priority of the cultural construction learning system. The content
and cases of corporate culture and values are deepened in
the new employee training to make them know, accept and
recognize its core values and quickly integrate into Master
Kong's organizational process. In 2020, the headquarter and all
businesses carried out 662 sessions of corporate culture theme
trainings for newcomers with a total of 676 hours. The inheritance
of corporate values and culture by Master Kong's cadres is the key
to cultural construction. The Cultural Construction Secretariat first
tried to use both positive and negative cases in respect of “ethical
conduct, teamwork, and professional attitude” experienced by
cadres in the manager-level training, to make the on-site cadres
deeply feel the profound corporate culture and behavior standards
accumulated by Master Kong in the past 28 years. In the future,
the cultural construction learning system will continue to be
improved, and the culture will be continuously emphasized and
inherited to ensure that management cadres and employees at all
levels have consistent understanding of culture and can effectively
practice it.

ERFEERMREE R EER

Master Kong's corporate culture construction that advances with the times
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2020 is an extraordinary year. Through the efforts of every Master
Kong people, we provided material support for medical institutions
and first-line anti-epidemic personnel on the premise of ensuring
the safety of epidemic prevention, food safety, and ensuring the
resumption of work and production. In order to meet the needs of
consumers, Master Kong employees took the initiative to stick to
their posts, combining internal collaboration with external win-win
cooperation, which made them gain consumers’ recognition and
trusty as well as social respect. In order to promote the concept
of "Positive thoughts brings positive energy, positive energy
brings transformation and upgrading power”, all Master Kong
people should learn from a benchmark, set an example and have
a direction for action. The Cultural and Construction Secretariat
publicly solicited Master Kong people’s exemplary deeds of
cultural behavior during the epidemic, and adopted the method
of supervisor recommendation, collective review and public
announcement for the first time. A total of 230 employees were
awarded the model of cultural behavior and awarded medals of
honor and honor certificate. In December 2020, we held the 2020
Master Kong People’s Model of Cultural Behavior Commendation
Conference at Shanghai operation center, inviting 11 outstanding
model representatives to accept the commendation, and among
which 6 representatives presenting their personal deeds on the
spot. Executive Director Wei Hong-Chen and the Company's
senior management and 48 supervisors of the Construction
Executive Committee attended to jointly witness this event. The
video of this commendation meeting and exemplary deeds were
disseminated on the factory closed-circuit television, WEME Online
Academy, corporate WeChat and other platforms, and a total of
57,259 people clicked and watched, and good publicity effects

were achieved.

;.-‘i?.'f-iﬁf.at
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2020 FE AN B ABITXLIT REBRYE KNG E LERTT

The 2020 Master Kong People’s Practice of Cultural Behavior Model Commendation Conference was held in Shanghai.
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Adhering to the spiritual culture of serving the frontline, the
cultural construction promotion committees of all businesses
integrated the business operation in an orderly manner,and held
a total of 708 sessions of self-promotion of cultural practice this
year. The instant noodle business carried out various activities
including the selection and broadcast of food safety excellent
figures, the "Quality Aerospace for Better Life” aerospace theme
solicitation, the fight against the epidemic with one heart and
the model workers around me, etc., to practice the cultural
concept into the behavior of employees, drive family and friends
to experience Master Kong's integrity and pragmatic concept,
hold a scientific and rigorous attitude to achieve aerospace quality
products, and integrate harmony into team operations, thereby
creating a new era of mutual prosperity and win-win results.
Pepsi beverage business inherited its “Glory”, and cultivated
its “Glory” stars and advocated its spirit for five consecutive
years, and integrated performance and win-win culture into our
employees’ daily life. Master Kong's beverage business and bakery
business focused on selecting first-line counterparts’ practicing
corporate cultural behavior cases and carrying out monthly reports
and quarterly broadcast. All businesses have collected a total of
331 cases and has publicized and broadcasted 106 cases. The
above efforts have effectively improved the front-line employees’
recognition of corporate cultural behaviors. Every great
undertaking is the result of the continuous struggle of generations
of ordinary employees. We have the confidence and ability to
work together to make Master Kong the most respected food &
beverage company.
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Community investment in 2020:
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Key performance indicators

2020 FBETXEZETHRR :
Hours contributed by employee volunteers in 2020:

#N29.48/ B
Approx 294,000 hours

Master Kong continues to be committed to the sustainable
development of the Company, constantly pays attention to
community needs and actively contributes to community
development to achieve the synergic development between the
Company and the majority of stakeholders. In 2020, Master
Kong continued to carry out community investment activities,
actively promoted the concept of sustainable development,
carried out public service activities in respect of food safety
science popularization and education on water, supported sports
events, focused on social services and provided support for the
development of agriculture, rural areas and farmers. Meanwhile,
the Company continued to reinforce college-enterprise
cooperation and help promote the development of education,
which was well recognized by all sectors of the society. We are
willing to constantly share the joy and happiness brought by “Life
+ Delicacy” with all partners.
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Promotion and Dissemination of the Concept of Sustainable
Development

In July 2020, the United Nations Development Programme
(UNDP) released the Private Sector Awareness of the Sustainable
Development Goals - A Survey Report on Business and
Sustainability in China. The report provides comprehensive
summarization and analysis on the implementation of Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) by Chinese enterprises. Relying on its
outstanding achievements in promoting sustainable development,
Master Kong has stood out among nearly 100 invited companies
(including foreign companies in China) and has become the
best representative of the global sustainable development goals
keepers. In September, we were invited to participate in the 2020
China International Fair for Trade in Services (CIFTIS) and attended
the seminar to interpret the UNDP report as the main guest, and
discussed with the leaders of UNDP and representatives of relevant
enterprises on the direction and actions for the implementation
of SDGs by Chinese enterprises and made interpretations. The
theme of CIFTIS is global service, mutual benefit and sharing.
Master Kong's sharing of the basic points of food safety and
the construction of global partners at this event, driving the
sustainable development of the upstream and downstream
industrial chain and interpreted the service trade fair theme from
different perspectives.
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FRANE AGE SDGs BEER |
Master Kong was selected as SDGs practice case.

(PRI EAREERBFERRAMRRE)
Private Sector Awareness of the Sustainable
Development Goals - A Survey Report
on Business and Sustainability in China
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As one of the leading companies of national brands, Master Kong
proposed the development model of “Doing well by doing good”
and worked hard to widely spread and promote the concept
of sustainable development of “Doing well by doing good”,
and cooperated with various partners to jointly advocate the
“Doing well by doing good” sustainable development actions. In
September 2020, with the support of the National Brand Project
of Xinhua News Agency, Master Kong initiated and organized
the “Doing well by doing good - Sustainable Development Online
Forum” event. At the meeting, experts, scholars, and business
representatives from well-known domestic universities and leading
companies in various industries discussed how to implement
sustainable development in business community and promote the
concept and model of “Doing well by doing good”. Master Kong's
concept of “Doing well by doing good” received full support and
response from representatives of many participating companies,
which expressed their willingness to practice various measures
together to effectively promote the sustainable development of
the Company and society.

FERRELZICIT
i ME-

g | _-u-res-];

h “\M

[ AT B B R AT AR B IR Th 88

“Sustainable Development Online Forum” was successfully held.
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Food Safety Science Popularization

Master Kong actively responds to the national food safety strategy,
gathers all forces, constantly explores food safety education, and
is committed to promote food safety awareness and knowledge
to society to achieve a food safety compliance society via food
safety science popularization.
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Served as a long-term partner in China’s aerospace industry,
Master Kong is committed to building a comprehensive knowledge
system, education system and application system that integrates
"aerospace + food safety” to improve the aerospace knowledge
and food safety literacy of the public, especially teenagers.
Master Kong constantly carried out the “A Tour Across China
for Space Exploration Spirit Promote - Master Kong Food Safety
Science Exhibition” within the year. On the event spot, children
can observe the spacecraft, assemble satellites by themselves,
and experience space travel via VR technology, learning about
aerospace and food safety knowledge in a fun way. Meanwhile,
Master Kong invited astronauts and experienced teachers in
aerospace science to deliver lectures on aerospace science, and
teachers managed to unlock the aerospace knowledge by applying
popular food science. As of the end of 2020, Master Kong's series
events of aerospace science had been held in more than 20 cities,
covering over 100 schools and affecting more than 100 million
people.

TRERMREHERAT L ERRMAR EHEE

Chuandong Zhao, one of the first batch of astronauts in China, was giving a science popularization lecture for teenagers
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In 2020, we also continued to explore innovative ways of science
popularisation. Relying on 5G networks, we set up “Cloud
Classrooms” and “Cloud Science Popularisation Exhibition”,
integrating offline and online content, breaking spatial and
geographical restrictions, to benefit teenagers in different regions,
and effectively promote the balanced development of science
popularisation education.
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Children were taking online courses of Master Kong Space Gastronome
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In 2020, the State Administration of Market Supervision and
other four ministries jointly issued the Campus Food Safety
Guarding Action Plan (2020-2022), requiring the strengthening
of food safety and nutrition education in primary and secondary
schools. In response to the call of the national policy and to help
the school food safety science education, Master Kong joined
hands with China Economic Net and the “China Food Safety 30
People Forum” to launch the “Food Safety Science Popularization
Program” in 2020. The activity is based on the theme of “interest-
based science popularisation of food safety for the public”,
through various activities such as open classes on food safety in
primary and secondary schools, online fun science popularization
answering contests, parent-child practice tours, etc., to strengthen
campus food safety pass on healthy and nutritious food
knowledge, and enhance teenagers’ food safety awareness.

RAZEPIENRIT
Food Safety Science Popularization Program
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Education on Water

Master Kong has actively responded to the “Education on Water”
public welfare activities initiated by the China Beverage Industry
Association for six consecutive years, helping primary school
students to form good drinking and water consumption habits
and being an active practitioner and disseminator of the concept
of "learning water, valuing water, and conserving water”.

To encourage students to participate in the activities and enjoy
the games, Master Kong, adhering to the “interest-based science
popularisation” concept, set up an immersive and interactive
classroom for children. This year, according to the characteristics
of each city, several projects including water purification
experiments and water-saving classrooms were especially designed
for this event to further guide children to increase their awareness
of water conservation and protection develop rational habit in
water consumption, and become a “green” devotee to promote
the conservation of water resources in the future.

FEEMEI &K ~ BoK -~ Sk IRE RS

Master Kong's “learning water, valuing water, and conserving water” education activity
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Sports Charity Events

The Outline for Building a Powerful Sports Country issued by the
State Council clearly points out that it is necessary to give full play
to the important role of sports in the new journey of building a
modern socialist country in an all-round way. For Master Kong,
supporting the development of China’s sports business has always
been our duty and responsibility as a national brand enterprise.
We deeply understand that building a powerful sports country is
not only at the level of competitive sports for the national team,
but is also indispensable to promote popular sports and achieve
national fitness.

Served as sport catering collaborative partner of marathon, Master
Kong has been keen on supporting marathon games nationwide
for years. We promote a scientific approach to serve catering,
that we particularly focus on runners, and ensure that they are
provided with sufficient energy for the event. As of 2020, Master
Kong has reached cooperation with more than ten domestic
marathons, covering millions of participants. Master Kong's “a
bowl of noodles after the race” has become a standard for many
marathon runners. In the future, Master Kong will continue to
support Marathon events with safe and reliable sports catering
services. In 2020, we also supported many badminton events
across the country, and established cooperative relationships
with badminton associations and large-scale badminton events
in Guangzhou, Shanghai, Beijing, Henan and other places to
promote the sustained, healthy and orderly development of
badminton in various regions.

Focus on Social Services

Master Kong is convinced that the development of an enterprise
is closely related to the overwhelmingly support from the society.
The Company strives to serve with its best endeavour to those in
need across a broad spectrum within community and does its best
to offer care via charitable undertakings.

In 2020, Master Kong conducted condolence visits to nursing
homes, kindergartens, schools, police stations, military units
and remote areas. We also actively delivered care and warmth
to the front-line workers under adverse working environment
across the country, such as traffic policemen and sanitation
workers, through various means and campaigns including “cool
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and refreshing stations” and “warm winter campaigns”. At the
same time, Master Kong pays a lot of attention to the growth
and development of the youth, it organized charitable events for
disabled and autistic children, providing warmth and support to
children.

As a member of an excellent state enterprise, after enduring
years of learning through disaster experiences, Master Kong has
established a system of rapid response for disaster relief. When
a disaster happens, Master Kong will swiftly show on the front
line at the scene of catastrophe, coming into the immediate
aid of the victims. In June 2020, a major flood occurred in
Qijiang District, Chongqging, the Qihe River surrounding areas
were severely affected, and some houses collapsed, landslides
happened, and roads were interrupted. Master Kong sent care
to the affected communities, firemen, and sanitation workers,
and provided drinking water and other material support. In July,
affected by heavy rainfall, the flood control situation in Hubei and
Jiangxi provinces was severe. Master Kong promptly organized
the donation of Master Kong instant noodles and drinking water
to the flood-stricken areas to provide supplies for the victims
and rescuers; in August, due to continuous downpours, Leshan,
Sichuan suffered extreme floods, and many places were severely
affected. Faced with the severe disaster, Master Kong responded
quickly, sending condolences to affected areas in time and
donating mineral water products.

Master Kong actively responds to the call for national targeted
poverty alleviation, and does a good job in providing assistance,
helping the country resolutely win the decisive battle against
poverty. In January 2020, Master Kong and China Glory Cause
Foundation jointly donated a total of 20,000 boxes of instant
noodles to impoverished people in Liangshan Yi Autonomous
Prefecture, Sichuan Province and Zhijin County, Guizhou Province;
in September, we implemented the sustainable development
concept of “Doing well by doing good” and headed for Yongxing
Town, Li County, Gansu to carry out paired assistance and donate
mineral water products.

In 2020, Master Kong supported the establishment of the
“Tomorrow Zhaoyang Scholarship” to provide scholarships for
college students with excellent academic performance, poor
family background and moral integrity. Since 2007, the Company
has sponsored 4,305 college students and awarded a total of
RMB16.26 million in scholarships. The project has benefited
students from all over the country. 2020 is the final year of our
country’s poverty alleviation. Master Kong strives to support the
increase in bonus studies, benefiting a total of 546 students.
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Support for Agricultural Development

As a leading enterprise in the field of deep processing of
agricultural products, Master Kong actively responds to the
national initiative on targeted poverty alleviation, by taking
advantage of food manufacture industry, so as to enable higher
earnings for farmers. Every year, Master Kong purchases several
millions of tones of bulk agricultural products, benefiting more
than 40 million farmers.

In addition, Master Kong attaches great importance to establishing
mutually beneficial and win-win partnerships with suppliers and
farmers in developing countries. Every year, we regularly send
professional guidance teams to impart quality management
experience to pepper farmers in Malaysia and Indonesia, which
not only improves the level of agricultural management, but
also increases the local economic income. Moreover, it also
assists Brazilian orange juice suppliers in developing orange juice
derivatives and exchanging food safety control technologies, and
all relevant orange juice products are certified by the Rainforest
Alliance.

Reinforced School-Enterprise Cooperation

Master Kong resolutely carried out the policy of “production-
education integration” of the 19th National Congress of the
Communist Party of China that it joined hands with 32 colleges
and 51 vocational schools nationwide to commence on intensified
cooperation, conduct research on food safety-related topics,
support innovative research outcome and core technology
Industrialization, explore the model of “deepen the integration
between industry and education, and cultivate students and
talents together”. In terms of vocational education, Master
Kong continues to explore new ideas and new methods for
school-enterprise cooperation to support student training and
employment, and establishes a dual-subject long-term education
mechanism. It was successfully selected as the third batch of
modern apprenticeship pilot projects by the Ministry of Education
and won various honors such as Liaoning Province Industry-
Education Integration Enterprise Certification, Jiangsu Province
Technical Education School-Enterprise Cooperation Industry-
Education Integration Demonstration Enterprise.
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This year, Master Kong continued to deepen the cooperation
with Yuanpei College of Peking University. With our continuous
support, the Kant Lecture Hall of Yuanpei College was successfully
completed, marking the gradual expansion of the comprehensive
cooperation between Master Kong and Peking University from
teaching and research to broader areas such as academic
exchanges and infrastructure. In August, teachers and students
of Yuanpei College of Peking University came to Master Kong's
headquarter in Shanghai to carry out summer social practice
activities. Through visits to retail markets, visits to food safety
centers and brand halls, discussions with executives and front-
line sales staff of the Company, they gained insights into the
challenges and opportunities of traditional and new retail, bringing
innovative perspectives to the Company. Yuanpei's “Master Kong
Social Practice Team” won the Peking University competition for
two consecutive years. Master Kong supports the Peking University
Medical Department to use the big data of health care to explore
research in food development and other aspects to promote
the Company in the precise research and development of new
nutrition and health products, forming “education plus industry
to jointly serve the country; scientific research plus application to
extend the smart chain; medical plus nutrition to make people
healthier” to jointly contribute to the construction of a healthy
China.

R FEREBEES

EARTTIE R RSB R

Unveiling ceremony of the Master Kong Hall of
Yuanpei College of Peking University

Students from Yuanpei College of Peking
University visited Master Kong
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This year, Master Kong reached a strategic cooperation with
the world’s top-ranked Stanford University School of Design (D.
School) to introduce the methodology of the innovative course
Design Thinking into the training courses, and improve the Group's
internal organizational strength and the internationalization of
leaders.

At the end of 2020, Master Kong, JD.com, and the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania’s three-party big data
joint construction project started. The three parties gave full
play to their respective advantages, deepened the integration of
the digital economy with the real economy and used big data
and artificial intelligence technology to innovate the business
management model, drive the development of the industrial chain
and better meet the needs of consumers. During the process
of digital transformation, Master Kong learns and draws on the
advanced concepts and practices of statistics and data analysis
from the world-renowned Wharton School, and cooperates with
the Wharton School to connect with e-commerce platforms
such as JD.com, and supports students to hold data competition
activities to improve students’ understanding and application level

of big data and artificial intelligence technology.

FRAME ~ R - ORIER 20 = 5 AR 2IE B REER
Launching ceremony of Master Kong, JD.com, and the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania’s three-party big data joint construction project
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Serial Awards
No.
1 2020F EHE R MIFT R ESEE
China Food Enterprises Benchmarking Golden Chopsticks Award 2020

2 ETN\EFBHERLZEASLEEETRMLER
Top 10 Safety Management Enterprise Award of the 18th China Food Safety Conference

3 2020 Bt BB EHREHERE
Outstanding Chinese Enterprise in Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 2020

4 [BEABHEETE] tEEEDRE
Socially Responsible Enterprise 0f “Catering Industry Helps with Nation Fight the Epidemic”

5 20207 BIEREHT R ETVKER X
Outstanding Water-saving Enterprise in China’s Beverage Industry 2020

6 20207 BIEREHT R ENREE A 0%
Outstanding Energy-saving Enterprise in China’s Beverage Industry 2020

7 2019-2020F EH I FE R (T & ERIFE M E
Best Instant Food Innovation Grand Award 2019-2020

8 2020 BB SRR m A
Most Popular Instant Food Award 2020

9 FNERBERBAEFE
The 11th Tiger Roar Award Food Excellence Award

10 BNEBREFLHEAEREEHURE
Best Marketing Effect Award of the 11th Golden Mouse Digital Marketing Competition

1M FEEERFEHEABRTERESARIRE
Silver Prize in the Digital Media Integration Category of the 11th Golden Mouse Digital Marketing Competition

12 F1IB3ESREKBHETE
Bronze Prize Of the 13th ROI Festival Media Group

13 F20/EIAIBIFRE S SIS 5 5 R 12
Bronze Prize of the 20th IAl International Advertising Cross-Border Marketing
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We have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for the deviations from code provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2.
The reasons for these deviations are explained below.

Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Our Company
deviates from this provision because the independent non-executive
Directors of our Company do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association of our Company
provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and may offer themselves for
re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have
been put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance
practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of
shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG code.

Code Provision A.4.2

According to code provision A.4.2, each director (including those with
a specific appointment period) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. According to the Company’s articles
of association, the chairman of the Board is not subject to retirement
by rotation. He is not included in the number of directors who are
required to retire each year. The Board believes that the continuity of
the leadership of the chairman of the Board is critical to the stability
of the Group’s development and the planning, formulation and
implementation of long-term strategies and business plans. Accordingly,
the Board considers that although the provisions of the above rules
deviate from Code Provision A.4.2, it is in the best interests of the
Company.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.
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Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

®  Responsible for the shareholders of the Company;

*  Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and dispose of significant assets;

e Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;
e Supervise the management of the Company;
e Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to
exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides
monthly management accounts and updates to the Directors for
the management report, provide detailed data of the company’s
performance, financial position and prospects, supported by the most
up-to-date financial data, combined with easy and comprehensive
assessment, who also have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose biographical
details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages 106 to 108 of
this report.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company's
corporate governance practices and the compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. Agenda of the Board meeting are
collated by the board secretary and approved by the Chairman. Directors
may delegate some issues into the agenda of the Board meeting.
Board meeting notices issued in one month prior to the meeting to
each Director, and the accompanying agenda. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2020, seven Board meetings were held. The
attendance of individual director to the Board meetings in year 2020 is
summarised below:
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HE BTEESSERY
Number of Board

Directors Meetings Attended/Held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 7/7
Mr. Junichiro Ida 7/7
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 717
Mr. Koji Shinohara 7/7
Mr. Yuko Takahashi 7/7
Ms. Tseng Chien 717

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 717
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 7/7
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 717

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors discusses
and approves major issues such as the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, assess and
identifies principal risks of the Group's business and ensures appropriate
implementation of measures to manage these risks.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 131 to 139.
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Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of
his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Company provides, as appropriate, the latest developments in the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to directors where appropriate.
All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses. All directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice on responsibilities, expenses paid by the company.
To ensure that the directors have deepened their understanding of
the Group, senior management of the Company has conducted a
continuing professional development plan for the directors during the
year.

Summary for 2020 Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
shown as below:

(@ learn about China's various regional channels operating
conditions;

(b)  understand the production and operation status of each factory.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors, on
corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules amendments and
provided reading materials on regulatory update to all the directors for
their reference and studying.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
of the Company to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the financial
statements. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting system, the
preparation of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
integrity of accounts, risk management and internal control systems.
As well as maintaining good corporate governance standards and
practices. It also acts as an important link between the Board and the
Company'’s auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties and will meet regularly with management, internal auditors and
external auditors, as well as review their reports. Three meetings were
held during the financial year ended 31 December 2020. Details of the
attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

HEBITERRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 3/3
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 3/3
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 3/3

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on 11
August 2005. This Committee now comprises four Directors, Mr. Hsu
Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hiromu Fukada and Mr.Wei Hong-
Ming. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the Committee.

One meeting was held during the financial year ended 31 December
2020. Details of the attendance of the remuneration and nomination
committee meetings are as follows:

HEBITERRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 11
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 7
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 7
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 171
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The Committee was set up to review the structure, size and diversity
of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, advise the Board on the remuneration of individual executive
directors and senior management, and consider and approve the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and other
long-term incentive schemes. The Committee also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board from time to time, assess the
performance of the Executive Directors and approve the terms of the
Executive Directors’ and recommends to the Board on appointments of
Directors and the succession planning for Directors, and to ensure that
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors are in accordance
with fair and transparent principles. During this financial year, the
Committee implemented works including: review the structure, size and
composition of the Board; review diversity status of existing members
of the Board and give advice; evaluate the biography of the Director
candidates and advise the Board in respect of the re-appointment of
the Directors; advise the Board in respect of the remuneration of senior
management.

The Company'’s remuneration policies are as follows:

(@) Remuneration policies and practices, including directors, should
be fair and impartial and transparent and comply with regulatory
requirements;

(b) a director must not be involved in the making of his personal
remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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The emoluments paid to the ten senior management individuals during
the year ended 31 December 2020 were as follows:

EEA"
SRESMSAR Emoluments band Number of individuals
2,220,290 ARM %= 2,664,347 AR#E RMB2,220,290 to RMB2,664,347
(2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000,87T) (HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000) 1
3,996,522 ARME 4,440,579 AR ¥ RMB3,996,522 to RMB4,440,579
(4,500,001 7 7C% 5,000,000787T) (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000) 2
4,440,580 AR# % 4,884,637 AR RMB4,440,580 to RMB4,884,637
(5,000,001 7L %E 5,500,000/87T) (HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000) 2
7,104,928 AR ¥ % 7,548,985 AR RMB7,104,928 to RMB7,548,985
(8,000,001 L% 8,500,000,87T) (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000) 1
8,881,159 AR £ 9,325,216 AR¥E RMBS,881,159 to RMB9,325,216
(10,000,001 7L 10,500,000 % 7T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 2
9,769,275 ARM = 10,213,332 AR RMB9,769,275 to RMB10,213,332
(11,000,001 &= 11,500,000 7% 7T) (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000) 1
27,531,592 AR# 2% 27,975,649 AR RMB27,531,592 to RMB27,975,649
(31,000,001 702 31,500,000 70) (HK$31,000,001 to HK$31,500,000) 1
10
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FAEN  FAREZERERLFRR -

The principal spirit of the internal control and risk management
procedures established by the Group is in compliance with five elements
in the COSO structure, i.e. control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, information and communication, and monitoring.
The goal of risk management is to keep the overall risk of the Group
within acceptable levels and to lay a good foundation for the Group’s
long- term development. Meanwhile, it can achieve the goal of
defining the management structure and authorization so as to enhance
the operational performance and efficiency as well as asset safety
protection, which ensures the reliability of financial reports while
complies with the requirements of national regulations.
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Under the supervision of the Board, the Group has established an
organization structure, responsibility and authority in the construction
of three lines of defense for risk management. The Audit Committee
will assist the Board to review the design and operation effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. As of
31 December 2020, the Group has been carrying out self-assessment
of internal control where a prudent and effective self-inspection
system has been established to achieve full coverage of external and
internal inspection on each aspect thought the management circle.
Meanwhile, more efforts have been put in supervision over subsidiaries
where management regulations have been formulated with a priority
to processes of higher risk and streamlined and implementable limits
of authority have been defined for approval of expenditures and
human resource affairs. In addition, the Group has been promoting
the monitoring work in respect of laws and regulations. According
to the internal audit of the internal inspection department, we have
not identified any material deficiency in risk management and internal
control. Therefore, the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the
Group's risk management and internal control system are effective.

The risk management system established by the Group sets “pursuing
sustainable development and assuming social responsibility” as
management objective. The management process includes risk
identification, risk assessment and evaluation, risk control and overall
monitoring. Firstly, the implementation of risk management objectives is
set through systematic and scientific methods. Then, through interviews
with management and risk seminars, risk identification and risk
management framework are completed. Thirdly, fully participate in the
discussion through senior management to complete the risk assessment,
and then formulate risk response strategies. Finally, continue to
implement risk control activities and supervision.

We will ensure the effective implementation of risk management
measure through periodic tracking and review after formulation of risk
response strategy. Through implementation of risk response measure to
our regulation and system, structural planning and operating process,
we further establish the enterprise risk management strategy to support
the Company in achieving the enterprise mid-to-long term vision and
strategic objective.
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In response to the ever-changing market trends, the Group has been
learning from international benchmark enterprises and improving the
operation of three lines of defense for risk management. Meanwhile,
in accordance with the three-line framework newly promulgated by the
Institute of Internal Auditors (lIA) of the U.S., the Group formulated its
risk management strategy for the next three to five years. Under the
instruction and guidance of the Board and the Operation Committee,
the Group focused on management of three major risks in 2020 with
specific countermeasures and strategies as detailed below:

1.1 Definitions:

e  Risk of operation is interrupted due to failure of
IT safety, operation and back-up system, such as
prevention and handling of system disorder, system
crash, safety protection or computer virus.

* Information management and control rights, network
threats, data center physical security risks, such as
malicious rights, network intrusion, data center power,
access control security or unauthorized access to the
information system as a whole.

e  Risk of out-of-control information systems caused
by external threats such as theft of equipment/data,
computer fraud, unauthorized access, and vandalism.

e Failure to effectively integrate business information
among IT systems.

*  Employee awareness of information protection is
weak, there is the risk of information leakage.
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1.2 Coping strategies:

Improve the operation and management regime
for information system based on PDCA to maintain
an effective support of information system to
organizational development and business continuation
and ensure its stable and effective operation,
thereby avoiding company losses and safeguarding
shareholders’ rights and interests.

[Plan] Determines the control objectives and control
measures based on risk assessments, laws and
regulations to measure organizational needs.

[Do] Implement the selected system operation
controls.

[Check] To conduct compliance check on control
measures based on the strategy, procedures, laws and
regulations.

[Action] Take corrective and preventive measures and
follow the improvement based on the internal control
and management review results.

Reinforce the information security management
system of the Company by adopting the 1ISO27001
information security management standard.

Achieve an upgrade of management system through
enhancing systems in aspects such as organizational
strategy, staff awareness, user access, information
assets safety, emergency management, system
operation, outsourcing management and legal
compliance management.

Achieve self-improvement of information security
management system through online and offline
publicization and implementation, theorical
penetration by departmental safety liaison officer,
periodic tour inspection and audit under the guidance
of external certification institutions and ongoing
follow-up on corrections.

Through the aforesaid, the Group is able to
continuously and effectively reduce the risk in leakage
of information relating to its core strategy, technology,
operation, financial reports and human resource, etc.
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Cross-functional collaboration promotes the feasibility
assessment of information systems, reviews and
coordinates cross-enterprise needs on a regular basis,
so as to avoid risks such as repeated establishment
or lack of synergies and inability of system data
integration. Deeply tap the value of information, build
an effective inter-system connection of information
and construct a commercial intelligence platform for
cross-system information analysis, thereby improving
the digital-based operation capability.

2.1 Definitions:

There are many kinds of raw materials and items, and
the management level of suppliers is uneven, which
threatens the risk of contamination of raw materials.

The supply chain process from raw material
procurement to product terminal sales is complicated,
and some links may be risky due to poor monitoring.

At present, the dissemination of media information is
not effectively managed, consumer awareness of rights
violations, and if the food information acquisition,
transmission or communication is not timely, or the
clarification of the rumors is not properly handled, it
may cause consumers to panic or misunderstand, and
eventually affect brand reputation.

2.2 Coping strategies:

Learn from advanced countries or standard enterprise
management experience, establish a food quality
screening and access system for raw materials, and
prevent plugging from the design side to effectively
control risks. Continuously improve the testing
capabilities of local factories and laboratories to ensure
the quality and safety of products from raw material
procurement to sales in retail outlets.
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Cooperate with relevant national requirements,
implement the main responsibility and quality system

|u

of the enterprise, promote the “three-level” self-
examination system of food safety quality, optimize
and implement regular unannounced inspection and
unqualified supplier delisting mechanism, and pay
attention to process traceability management and

inspection.

Do a good job of science popularization on the food
safety topic of concern to consumers, communicate
regularly with scholars and experts and government
regulatory authorities, use external professional
resources to transmit correct information, and improve
the food safety defense mechanism from crisis event
technical department to respond to SOP.

Definition

In the context of a fluctuating raw material price,
enterprises may be unable to avoid risk of fluctuations
in market prices as they fail to make reasonable
procurement prediction due to inaccurate judgement
on market trend or failure to adopting diversified
procurement strategy and tools.

Due to much reliance on a single supplier, enterprises
may be unable to develop or switch a new supplier in
a timely manner in case of supplier exit or occurrence
of quality problem, thereby impacting the operation of
the enterprise.

There are still room for improvement in the EHS
management in production process: the tightening
standard in emission cut and energy conservation,
enhancing staff awareness on health and certain
safety control and monitoring still to be improved,
which may pose challenges on the Company.
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3.2 Coping strategies:

e The Group has established a diversified procurement
strategy with two procurement approaches which
are centralized procurement by the headquarter and
separate procurement by local operations. Through
centralized procurement, the Group will have more
bargaining power and standardized procurement
process, while through making good use of local
procurement, the Group could fully utilize the
advantage of local resources, which could be an
effective complement to centralized procurement.

e  Establish the operational mechanism for daily
development and emergency switch to the alternate
supplier of key materials. Based on the important
levels of raw materials, the top-level material shall
have at least one principal supplier as well as three to
four (and more) alternate suppliers to ensure prompt
availability of the material at any time of emergency.
In the context of the global pandemic, the Group has
formulated risk control plan for imported materials
and supplies to ensure a safe supply.

e Establish and improve the supply chain EHS
management system and actively push forward the
certification of 1ISO45001/14001 dual systems. Make
optimization at the design side to effectively manage
risk and conduct daily safety inspection to reinforce
the effective implementation at the execution side.

To ensure sustainable operation of the Group and to show gratitude
to the social responsibility of stakeholders, the Group enhances risk
management and internal plan control. Through support from external
professional independent consultant, adhering to the operating idea
and CIS spirit of the Group, the 2021 guidance of optimization of risk
management and internal control system is specified and formulated.

EfEER 99
2020 Annual Report 4 #§



100

P EEATRE | Corporate Governance Report

F—H BREEREHEDS FEELE
MEARBEZRA

TEHRA - FHE  BERKREEENEAR -
R &R R A 2 BB R FERRE
RS - 5B E IR E B E E R R SRR
YTt B IR OKAE - 3 3 LB R U5 R
ERERETEREE  LHSHRRER
PRARE AR KER -

E-  BEENIGRCALAERTEZR
% RAEENDTAREKTE

BB TREGOEGIELR  RAAEES
EGHMBNEREEYE - BBERITHE
emEENERTR  KmEREELR
2 THABERROMIEBEEZS
M AR UREERAERERTE

B BUCERSENT BEREM
ABEUERSENAENER

BEEAADEN  BEEBATHITE
BEEMEADAREM - S ADKAE
BHBT b EEGEXERAHURME - i
AEERRITERASGTIAZERESR
VABRIRTT =58P AR 2 B AR il

ARBABMEZAFISBLELNL - BER
BREFE  BEETASERME N
REFHASREE  LEHMHRVERFRFEZ
ZEGREZRRE - REETBEMRAN
SEZENECRBAT ENERRR K
HEMEERR  E1THY - RENER
BRAFEES - AHEEBARE - REFE
FEBEANEEBBRE R ERZ - #
BEEERICH SRR RGN FRR
ERER  ELARERBESRE - 8%
SHRBBRHEEBEMSHBBAREZED
RERAEGERKEZE  HEEEEFAN
i WHEREHR =B BERRNE
BERRANRENTEZENTE - ATER
T EH [ B B TR N A R R I A R
e B AR EEE B 1R - (RERRD

e

fEa o

M EZRARAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Point 1: Keep optimizing the significant risk management system
of the Group in line with the up-to-date philosophy in the world

The Group identify, assess and monitor group-level risks on a regular
basis. In addition, an annual risk management report will be produced
based on the information of risk assessment, so as to assist the
management in formulating risk coping strategies and increasing the
risk management standards. Daily supervision is conducted over the
implementation of risk coping plan with a view to reduce the remaining
risk to an acceptable level.

Point 2: Continue with the authority management system of the
GRC system to enhance the corporate governance level of the
Group

The Group designs and sets up a multi-system interactive authorization
management platform according to the control requirements of different
businesses. The approach from gradual piloting to full rollout ensures
operational safety, the segregation of incompatible responsibilities and
the efficiency and compliance of business operations, thus meeting
corporate governance and compliance requirements.

Point 3: Continue with the digital-based transformation to realize
the objective of ex-ante warning with information system

As the business model becomes increasingly complicated, the ex-
post manual inspection adopted in the past has become outdated.
Meanwhile, the increasing labor cost also makes the traditional
operation mode unsustainable. As such, the Group has carried out the
project to construct an IT inspection system tool, with a view to enhance
the control effectiveness of the three lines of defense.

The Company's internal audit department is an independent unit directly
under the Board. It is specifically responsible for performing the Group's
internal audit and anti-fraud investigation functions, as well as reporting
them to the Audit Committee and the Chairman on a regular basis or
when necessary. The internal audit functions conduct independent,
objective and risk-oriented internal audits of the Group's significant risks
in relation to its operation and execution of its significant strategies as
well as its related monitoring systems, so as to assess their effectiveness.
The anti-fraud investigation functions, through making investigation
into whistleblowing and anti-fraud audit, facilitate the management to
enhance anti-fraud system and the incorruptible culture and system,
so as to improve the overall governance environment of the Company.
Results and recommendations on internal control inadequacy from each
audit and whistleblowing investigation projects will be put into detailed
discussion with the management, and the management will formulate
improvement plans to improve the internal control inadequacy within
reasonable time, in order to continuously enhance the effectiveness of
the Company'’s risk management and internal control, thereby helping
the Company accomplish pre-set goals as well as protecting the interests
of Shareholders.
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In addition, the internal audit department also, through providing
consultation services on risk control, assists the management of the
Company in accomplishing its goal to safeguard business operation.
Such services may include internal consultation and in-house training
in respect of potential problems facing the Company, internally or
externally, in management of risks, internal control and compliance.

The Company strives to promote and maintain a liberal and probity
operation environment and corporate culture, and to formulate
whistleblowing policies and responding measures. The internal audit
department has set up a reporting mailbox and hotline and has
announced the above reporting channels in the Company’s website,
thus enabling employees and business partners to give confidential
reporting.

2021 will be the fourth year of the Group in promoting self-assessment
of internal control. Over the past three years, the Group has basically
established a normal and stable self-assessment system on internal
control (from zero to 80 scores). In the future, the Group will further
foster the risk owners’ sense of ownership in respect of risk management
and internal control, thus providing reasonable assurance for the
Group's accomplishing of its operation goals. All these are established
based on tools such as time series analysis, trend analysis, structure
analysis, decision tree analysis, regression analysis and compliance
analysis. Through the automated analysis and continuous monitoring of
risk data, we can achieve the goal of positioning and management from
the source of risk. Through the steady implementation of the above
steps, we can effectively ensure the Company’s corporate reputation
and brand image maintenance, value creation and risk management
mechanism are in line with the expectations of stakeholders.
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In respect of the procedure of dealing with and disseminating insider
information as well as the internal control measure:

e The Group strictly complies with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012 for dealing with and disseminating insider information;

e The Group discloses broad and non-exclusive information to
the public through financial report, announcement and official
website;

e  The Group has established the inside information management
rules throughout the Group and provides to its employee trainings
in respect of inside information management. Senior management
and general staff who can access inside information due to
their rankings or duties are required by the Group to assume
confidential obligations in respect of inside information. In respect
of result announcement or material transaction, strictly controlling
and limiting the scope of staff who can accessing information, the
material sensitive information is concealed by confidential code
(including electronic, written and verbal), and giving a written
notice about the lock-up period and other matters required for
special attention to avoid insider information.

Mazars CPA Limited is the Independent Auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, total fees paid/payable in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to Mazars
CPA Limited amounted to RMB9.719 million and RMB0.477 million
respectively.

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Kuowei LIU, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 20 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company convened and
held one annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) and one
extraordinary general meeting (”Extraordinary General Meeting”). The
attendance records of each Director at the general meetings are set out
below:

g/ BIEERE
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held
RREFAE BRRBBIAE

Annual General Extraordinary

B= Directors Meeting General Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors

BMERETE Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 11 01
HHEAA L Mr. Junichiro Ida 0/1 01
BARKEE Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 0/1 01
BIRERFTE Mr. Koji Shinohara 0/1 0/1
EEBEELE Mr. Yuko Takahashi 0/1 01
Bt Ms. Tseng Chien 01 01
HUIHFNITES Independent Non-executive Directors

ERFTE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 171 171
FRE\EE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 11 11
R R E Mr. Hiromu Fukada 0/1 01

R —R A ERERFRAFEREAR
NEARRERARENEERNREGEARQAFD
BEBRAT LR 10% MR EER ARG
E=QEREEBR  EXEFZRER
NEEBERE ST REBRRESIRE
NERIEEEBERFIANEIE - ZEE
HE KV ELFREEBEREREZEARRT
&Rt - RBERFEKRA 21 RA
ETeUARBEDH  REBERBAR
RIBBEIREE ST RBSERERFARE -

BRENAGNE@MHREAINEXER
AERLEMHARINERE  TBLE
WHEEARFRN AR ER G0 F

yl[o

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% in total of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall all time have the right, by written requisition to the
Board to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Article 57 of the Company’s articles of association. Such
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
office of the Company. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the
requisition may do so in accordance with the provision of Article 57 of
the Company’s articles of association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company’s article of
association.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover,
additional information is also available to shareholders through the
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

There were no changes to the Company's articles of association for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Company'’s dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to participate in the Company's profit and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including the Group's actual and expected financial
performance, the Group’s liquidity levels and future development plans,
general economic and financial conditions, business cycle of the Group,
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance of the Group, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.
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The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2020, the Group
conducted more than 300 meetings with approximately 1,900 analysts
and fund managers (person-time). Investors can also obtain useful
information and updates on the Group’s business development from our
websites. The Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency
and the quality of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-
listed) 100 Index. The Group is currently covered by 25 investment banks
and securities firms, which shows our investment and development
potential.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.
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Executive Directors

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 43, was appointed as Chairman of the Group
on 1 January 2019. He is the elder brother of Mr. Wei Hong-Chen. Mr.
Wei holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from King's
College London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics from Brunel
University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree in Management
from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford University in the U.S..
He had worked as an asset allocation analyst at Makena Capital in the
U.S., which was invested by Paul Allen, the co-founder of Microsoft. Mr.
Wei joined the Group as a project manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006,
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015. Mr.
Wei had led many projects such as the development blueprint of the
MIS Group management system promoted by a number of international
consulting companies, and made long-term effective planning for the
digital transformation and supply chain layout of the future group
system.

Junichiro IDA, aged 59, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Group
on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. After
graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined The Fuji Bank,
Limited and worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. He became the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in June 1998.
Mr. Ida is currently the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America as
well as the Director of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package foods business
between Olam International Limited and Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in Africa)
and Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Morocco in Gunma. He is also
the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Scholarship Foundation, the
Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Culture and Sports Foundation,
the Director of Japan Convenience Foods Industry Association and the
Chairman of the Board of Save the Children Japan.

WEI Hong-Chen, aged 38, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 1 January 2019. He is the younger brother of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming. Mr. Wei received his Bachelor degree from Imperial
College London, Master's degree from Waseda University, and MBA
from Harvard Business School. He had worked at Blackstone Group’s
New York office and the headquarter of Pepsi Co. He was appointed
as a Director of KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.) since February 2015. Mr. Wei
has accumulated many years of experience working in the Group, and
during which has contributed to the forming of strategic partnerships
with international corporations such as Starbucks and Disney.



HTES(HA)

IR FER - BWFS535% - K201545 A28
AEERERNTES - BKREER 2014
FeAMA=ZFR KA G - HAEBTT
EFEMSTHALR - HFR1990F £
¥NBAEERAEEER  RFHEARND
AE(ER)  RERETHE - XK 0%
FEEITE 22007 FHERTOAL(H
) @RIBITIHEI AR - WK 2008 F H (£ 7]
ARETRHEARNTSRETRBE =8
BRERMTE R ENERZ B IE » 2010 F A A
(AR REBTHESSREIBE  ®R
EERBBTHESREE - +HFEEL
%ﬁ o

SREEE BES8H  N2019F8A9
AEEREBRITES - 2B LAER2015
FMAZFREERA G - EBINEER
R REZFEREHEERAFRAL
o HFEENBARRILKE 19864 A
Z2015F 8 ARBHRIKRZEZBERAR - I
EZERUBR  BETRCZHFEEAR
AEIMBITHIBAE K22 EBRGO A
AIERRIR - BUMKRIEM B ERBIED4RE -
EREEEERRRBITERBI0FLR -

B IWF625 B2019F12H31H
RETEARERTES - BEERBERR
REBLHEZ » 1996 F 8 AMAEE - F(E
SEEHeHHEE  AEESEVEAR
HxE RmEEVSARIEE - RAOE
FmERF R SEEXZRENERE
NEIFBR - EEAREEF - ZEBRN
BELEMARRMBRNBR AT K -
REETERME - BR2003FXINE A
RMEBEEBMLSAP LR - HIFIFI 2R
BESOPEZER] - AEEM & R AEEE
REEL R ER - 218282004 F#A
AR 2013 F B EFBIMBEREE -

ENEEERABMN | Directors and Senior Management Profile

Executive Directors (Continued)

Koji SHINOHARA, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing. After
graduating from the Department of Economics, Keio University, Japan
in 1990, he worked in Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales
and business management. In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand
marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior
Director of ready-to-drink (RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-
Cola Atlanta headquarter. In 2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice
President of brand marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than
20 years working experience in the brand marketing industry.

Yuko TAKAHASHI, aged 58, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 9 August 2019. Mr. Takahashi joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. in 2015 and is the executive director, Head of Overseas
Business Division and President of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America. After
graduating from Tohoku University, he worked with Ajinomoto Co.,
Inc. from April 1986 to August 2015 and served in various positions
in its Overseas Business Division, including as Marketing Director of
Ajinomoto Co., (Thailand) Ltd., President of Ajinomoto Poland Sp z
0.0., and Corporate Planning Director of the Europe and Africa Division.
He has more than 30 years of working experience in the global food
industry.

TSENG Chien, aged 62, has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group since 31 December 2019. She graduated from the
Department of Economics at Soochow University in Taiwan and
joined the Group in August 1996. She has served as the Head of
Accounting Department of the Group’s headquarters, Head of Finance
and Accounting Department of the Instant Noodle Business, Head of
Finance and Accounting Department of the Beverage Business, Chief
Financial Officer of the Group's Beverage Business and Chief Financial
Officer of Ho Te, one of the main shareholders of the Group. While she
was serving in the Group, Ms. Tseng has successfully introduced the
computerized SAP to the Beverage Business in 2003 and formulated SOP
operation guidelines for various functions of finance and accounting as
well as internal control. Later, she participated in the cooperation with
international partners Asahi and PepsiCo in 2004 and 2013, respectively.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. From 2002
to 2012, he served as the chief financial officer of Yingye Da Co., Ltd.,
a listed company in Taiwan, and from 2011 to 2017, he served as the
chairman of the board of directors of Yitong Solar Energy Technology
Co. He has also served as a director and supervisor of several Taiwanese
companies (including listed companies) since 2000. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 81, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since September 2004. Mr. Lee
has over 28 years of experience in commercial and investment banking.
From 1977 to 1987, he served as the senior manager of marketing
department of an international bank in Hong Kong and, concurrently,
as general manager of its two deposit-taking subsidiaries. During 1989
to 1997, he was engaged in corporate finance advisory business, and
since then in private financial consultancy business in Hong Kong. He
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Director.

Hiromu FUKADA, aged 91, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had served as
Minister of the Japanese Embassy in the U.S., Ambassador of OECD,
Singapore and Australia, and director of Economic Affairs. Mr. Fukada
had been the Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry, Ltd. from 2006
t0 2016, and he is currently the Advisor of the same company.
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IP Pui-Sum, aged 61, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom)
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He also obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration in 1996.
Mr. Ip has 25 years of experience in public accounting and company
secretarial practices. He is also a certified public accountant (practicing)
in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in September 1995.

James Chun-Hsien WEI, aged 63, was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 January 2015. Prior to that Mr. Wei was
appointed as CEO of Food Business of the Group on 1 January 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior advisor of CVC Capital Asia
Pacific. From 2009 to 2011, he was the Executive Board Member and
the President of the Asian region of Beiersdorf Aktiengesellschaft Group.
From 2003 to 2009, he served as the Senior Vice President of Asia
Pacific region of Avon Products Inc., where he was responsible for the
operations in 10 markets, including Japan, Taiwan, Australia, Philippines
and India. Before that, Mr. Wei spent 19 years at Procter & Gamble
where he rose to become the Vice President and General Manager of
Great China, overseeing the company’s health and beauty care business
in that region. Mr. Wei built P&G Pantene PRO-V and SK Il business
model with global turnover in multibillion-dollar, and based on Taiwan's
success models. Mr. Wei holds a B.S.E.E from National Taiwan University
and an M.B.A from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business
in the U.S.. Mr. Wei retired from his role as the CEO of the Group on 31
December 2020.

Richard CHEN, aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
Before his appointment on 1 January 2021, Mr. Chen had long worked
as the Chief R&D Officer in the Group since February, 2013 and made
remarkable achievements in nurturing new generation talents, building
cooperative relationships with external partners, ensuring food safety
and constructing technology platforms. Mr. Chen, after graduation from
the Department of Chemical Engineering in National Taiwan University,
had worked for Procter & Gamble and accumulated 25 years of
experience in global R&D management prior to his joining of the Group.
Mr. Chen, trilingual in Chinese, English and Japanese, was engaged in
consumer product innovation and R&D capability building across the
U.S., Japan and China.
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KuoWei LIU, aged 50, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was Special Assistant and Assistant
Manager of Finance Department, General Manager’s Office of Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical
Engineering of Taiwan National Cheng Kung University, Master of
Computer Science of Imperial College London and an M.B.A. from
Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in
Wharton School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix
Chang's Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor.

Walt WU, aged 60, Chief Human Resources Officer of the Group. He
graduated from the Institute of Human Resource Management, National
San Yat Sen University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November
2005 as the Senior Assistant Vice President and Vice President of human
resources of the Beverages Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO
office in September 2014 and since November 2014, he has served as
Chief Human Resources Officer. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in Twinhead International Corp. as an Assistant Manager of Human
Resources, Tsrc Corporation and The Home World Group as an Vice
President of Human Resources. Mr. Wu has 30 years of experience
in human resources management, with expertise in strategic human
resource management, human development. He endeavors to build the
sustainable development talent team, to promote organizational change
and make full advantage of human resources benefits, realizing the
organizational transformation.

Frank Wang, aged 50, is the Executive Vice President of CEO Office. He
joined the group in 2008, has been the Head of Strategic Management
dept. of Instant Noodles business, Head of Strategic Management dept.
of Master Kong Beverage business and Pepsi Beverage business, Head
of Chairman’s Office and Head of Corporate Development dept. Mr.
Wang is responsible for corporate strategy, organization restructure,
information technology, internal control, legal and public affairs in
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as Associate
Director in KPMG Taiwan, Senior Consultant in Computer Associates’
JV, where he was in charge of Asia Pacific business. He has years of
experience in business transformation and value chain integration.
Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Science in Bioenvironmental Systems
Engineering from National Taiwan University, a Master Degree in
Civil Engineering from Columbia University, and a Master Degree of
Graphic Communication Technology and Management from New York
University.
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Max HUANG, aged 57, is the Executive President of the Group's Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from National Taiwan University
of Technology. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 2010 and
successively served as Supervisor of Sales Department, General Manager
of Northwestern District, General Manager of East China District,
Regional Executive Vice President of North District, and Executive Vice
President of Instant Noodle Business. Prior to joining the Group, in a
total of 22 years, Mr. Huang served for DaChan Group and business
planning department of the Lucky Royal Co., Ltd, which is the related
company of Nanchow Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Huang has over
29 years' extensive management experience in sales and marketing.

TSAI, TZU-YUAN, aged 60, is the Executive President of the Group’s
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in December 1994, General
Manager of Shenyang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd in November 1998, Vice
president of South District of the Group’s Beverage Business in March
2016 and was appointed as the President of the Group's Beverage
Business in November 2018. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
Fukeyule Co., Ltd and Qiaoju Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. Cai is particularly
familiar in sales & marketing and business strategy, familiar with the
China market operations. He has rich management experience and
strong execution capabilities.

Vincent LIU, aged 61, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of Chong
Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou Tingjin.
Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading Company
TAIT CO. Mr. Liu is particularly familiar with management in sales and
marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles and beverages in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

PR R B E R
Profit
&S attributable to
Revenue owners of the Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
AR For AR MTFor AR¥For ARMTFr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
pakidil Instant noodles 29,509,910 25,300,422 2,733,231 2,199,709
/A Beverages 37,279,923 35,599,621 1,594,042 945,939
Efb Others 828,002 1,078,115 (265,010) 185,333
&5t Total 67,617,835 61,978,158 4,062,263 3,330,981

REEBRAFE 2 XK EMEREER
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12 A31 B L8 0] g8 T H A @ B A0
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2020 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 7, the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 10 to 27, the section headed “Prospects” on page 28 and
in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” of the
"Corporate Governance Report” on pages 93 to 102 of this annual
report.
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An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2020 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 27 of
this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 140.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of US5.54
cents per ordinary share, and a special dividend of US5.54 cents per
ordinary share, totalling US$623 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,062 million).

The final dividend and special divided will be paid on or before 14 July
2021. Shareholders registered under the Hong Kong branch register of
members on 15 June 2021 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong
dollars.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 144 to 145.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year.
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BlZ=A

RHRE
i A & Number of share
Date of grant options granted
2008 F3 A20 H 11,760,000
20 March 2008
2009 F4 A22 H 26,688,000
22 April 2009
2010 F4 A1 A 15,044,000
1 April 2010
2011 F4 A12 H 17,702,000
12 April 2011
2012 %4 H26 H 9,700,000
26 April 2012
2013 5 A27 H 11,492,000
27 May 2013
2014 %4 A17 H 12,718,500
17 April 2014
2015 F6 A5 H 17,054,000
5 June 2015
2016 7 A4 B 10,148,000
4 July 2016
2017 F4 A21 H 11,420,000
21 April 2017
BRMEERERAT

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

At the extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company
held on 20 March 2008, the shareholders approved the adoption of the
share option scheme (the “2008 Share Option Scheme”), with a term of
ten years from the date of adoption.

In view of the expiry of the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the shareholders
of the Company adopted the new share option scheme (the “2018
Share Option Scheme”) at the EGM held on 26 April 2018, with a term
of ten years from the date of adoption.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2020, no share
options were granted by the Company in accordance with the
terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme.

The terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2008 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:
Table A
1TEE

Exercise price
1TEHR (&)
Exercisable period (HKS)
2013 %53 A21 BHZE2018 43 A20 H(1) $9.28
21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 (1)
2014 %4 A23 HE2019 F4 A22 HQ) $9.38
23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 (2)
2015 F4 A1 BZE2020 %3 A31 HQR) $18.57
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (3)
2016 F4 A12 BHZ=2021 F4 A11 B(4) $19.96
12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021 (4)
2017 F4 A26 BHZE2022 4 A25 H(5) $20.54
26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022 (5)
2018 45 A27 HZE2023 45 A26 H(6) $20.16
27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023 (6)
2019 4 A17 BZE2024 F4 A16 B(7) $22.38
17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 (7)
2020 %6 A5 HZE2025 F6 A4 H(8) $16.22
5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025 (8)
2021 7 A4 BE2026 7 A3 H(9) $7.54
4 July 2021 to 3 July 2026 (9)
2022 %4 A21 BE2027 %4 A20 H(10) $10.20

21 April 2022 to 20 April 2027 (10)
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BZ<B

#% RFAS

Name Date of grant

ez

Executive Director

B 201054718

Tseng Chien 1 April 2010
W1E4E128
12 April 2011
012547268
26 April 2012
W01355H278
27 May 201
14545178
17 April 2014
01556758
5 June 2015

R4 WITE4ANA

WeiHong-Ming 21 April 2017

REK WI7F4A 2R

WeiHong-Chen 21 April 2017

ThES

Chief Executive Officer

1 013557278

James 27 May 2013

Chun-Hsien Wei  2014£4 A17H

17 April 2014
201556A5A
5 June 2015
201657 A48
4 July 2016
W1754A218
21 April 2017

g
Exercise
price
B
HKS

18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
238
16.22
10.20

1020

20.16
2238
16.22

154

10.20

bol=l
BimE
Closing price
of the shares
on the date
of grant

B

HK$

1842
19.96
19.88
20.05
22.35
15.92
10.20

10.20

20.05
2235
15.92

754

10.20
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The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share

options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2020 pursuant

to the Share Option Scheme:

Table B
BREHR
Number of share option
2020
#2020 R FREEH 12R318
1818 EREL BiTfE /5% pd 3]
28 Granted Exercised Cancelled/ Balance as
Balance as at during during  lapsed during  at 31 December
1 January 2020 the period the period the period 2020
176,000 - - 176,000 -
206,000 - - - 206,000
112,000 - - - 112,000
140,000 - - - 140,000
164,000 - - - 164,000
232,000 - - - 232,000
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
904,000 - - - 904,000
1,148,000 - - - 1,148,000
2,006,000 - - - 2,006,000
4,300,000 - - - 4,300,000
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000

SRR
i
THRmE
Weighted
average
closing price
immediately &
before exercise  Note
B
HKS$

- BA3)
Table A(3)
- BA®
Table A (4)
— BAp)
Table A (5)
— EAl
Table A (6)
- BAD)
Table A(7)
- EA®
Table A (8)
— EA10)
Table A (10)
— BA10)
Table A (10)

— BEAb)
Table A (6)
- BAD
Table A(7)
- EAB
Table A ()
- BA9
Table A(9)
— BA10)
Table A (10)
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[B7B (

ft2 RFEA

Name Date of grant

IZRR

Substantial shareholder

RN W01084A18

Wei Ing-Chou 1 April 2010
WI1E4LR128
12 April 2011
012548268
26 April 2012
013558278
27 May 2013
W14E4R178
17 April 2014
W01556A58
5 June 2015

2tifEE W1084A18

Other employees 1 April 2010
W1E4A128
12 April 2011
2012545268
26 April 2012
013558278
27 May 2013
144178
21 April 2017
201556 F5H
21 April 2017
01657548
4July 2016
W1754A218
21 April 2017

a3
Total
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iR

Exercise

price
B
HKS

18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
238

16.22

18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
238
16.22

7.54

1020

BFAH2
RRmE
(Closing price
of the shares
on the date
of grant
BT

HKS$

18.42
19.96
19.88
20.05
2235

15.92

18.42
19.96
19.88
20.05
2235
15.92

754

10.20

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

#2020%
1A1R
&k

Balance as at
1 January 2020

2,200,000
2,264,000
1,368,000
1,390,000
1,486,000

1,726,000

6,261,000
7,822,000
5,186,000
5,756,000
6,657,000
10,728,000
4,092,000

4,770,000

77,094,000

Fhii
Granted
during
the period

Table B (Continued)

kR
Number of share option

20208
£ FREHEH 12831R
BT zs: 3
Exercised Cancelled/ Balance as
during  lapsed during at 31 December
the period the period 2020
- 2,200,000 -
- - 2,264,000
- - 1,368,000
- - 1,390,000
- - 1,486,000
- - 1,726,000
- 6,261,000 -
- 512,000 7,310,000
- 370,000 4,816,000
- 424,000 5,332,000
- 494,000 6,163,000
- 1,158,000 9,570,000
600,000 120,000 3,372,000
- 200,000 4,570,000
600,000 11,915,000 64,579,000

RBAREA
4
THkmE
Weighted
average
dlosing price
immediately
before exercise
ER

HKS

14.74

iE
Note

AB)
Table A(3)
Ald)
Table A (4)
Af5)
Table A(5)
Al6)
Table A (6)
A7)
Table A(7)
A(8)
Table A(8)

A3)
Table A(3)
Al4)
Table A(4)
A(5)
Table A (5)
Alb)
Table A (6)
A7)
Table A(7)
A8)
Table A (8)
A9)
Table A(9)
A10)
Table A(10)



(b)

B E2020F12A31HILE+Z@A
M AEBEBIRBERETE
600,00088 Ax & - IN#EFHITRER
7.54%8 7T + 111F B Z BB MNAEF UL
MER14.7487T o FFHERERER
B ERERMFE30

# BEMNASARBNAMESTEEREM
AITES - EMEETENHNX
= A Z W E{EFE D B A Profit
Surplus Holdings Limited A Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited 25%
# % ° Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited MEFBEFH(FE 5 )E
B& B PR A B 75.064% B i€ % - 1
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited
MEFSERFIFEE)ERER
AF17.835% Kt o JRFT(FH =
BIERERAGDEEFAALARF
1,882,927,866 x5 °

2018 F B IR #E 5T 2

201 8F BB RERT B IR & LR
AIFE17EHIR - BRAARF20184F
BT B 2 2R TS

(b)

EEe

REHBE
FHBH Number of share
Date of grant options granted
201844 A27H 2,478,000
27 April 2018
20184 H27H 5,626,000
27 April 2018
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For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2020,

600,000 options had been exercised under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$7.54
and the weighted average market closing price before the date of
exercise was HK$14.74. For details, please refer to note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a

former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which

holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings

Limited is indirectly interested in 75.064% of Ting Hsin (Cayman

Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

2018 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are in accordance

with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed

arrangement for the 2018 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:

Table C

1T

Exercisable period

2021F4 A30BZE2028F 4 A26H (1a)

30 April 2021 to 26 April 2028 (1a)

202154 A30HE 20244 A26 H(1b)

30 April 2021 to 26 April 2024 (1b)

TEEE
Exercise price
(&)
(HKS)

$16.18

$16.18
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ATHEHYEEZ2020F12H31H The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
IF+ = A BRIE2018F BT 2 Fr options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2020
B2 BIRESES - pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme:
BZD Table D
EREZA
Number of share option
SIEHTREM
BFER s RONE  RTHUHE
ZBBEHE 1518 FREE/ 128318 Weighted
Closing 28 XM k3] average
price of Balance EREL EREAE Cancelled/ Balance  closing price
iid] the shares asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat  immediately
#e RTRH Exercise on the 1 January during during during  31December before i
Name Date of grant price  date of grant 2020 the period the period the period 2020 exercise  Note
AR B B
HKS HKS HKS
#Es
Executive Director
AR 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 385,000 - - - 385,000 - B
Wei Hong-Ming 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
01847278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1b)
RER 018545278 16.18 15.02 385,000 - - - 385,000 - Eca)
Wei Hong-Chen 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
018547278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
ThEs
Chief Executive Officer
ERE 018547278 16.18 15.02 1,708,000 - - - 1,708,000 - B
James Chun-Hsien Wei 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
018%4A278 16.18 15.02 797,000 - - - 797,000 - B
27 hpril 2018 Table C (1h)
IERR
Substantial Shareholder
REN 201847278 16.18 15.02 470,000 - - - 470,000 - B
Wei Ing-Chou* 27 April 2018 Table C (10)
EthERE 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 2,322,000 - - - 2,322,000 - B
Other employees 27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
in aggregate
it 6,263,000 - - - 6,263,000 -

Total

118 EMEZERERAT
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2020, no share
options were exercised under the terms of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a
former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which
holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited is indirectly interested in 75.064% of Ting Hsin (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming
Mr. Junichiro Ida
Mr. Koji Shinohara
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen
Mr. Yuko Takahashi
Ms. Tseng Chien

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei (retired on 31 December 2020)
Mr. Chen Yinjang (appointed on 1 January 2021)

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.
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(a1 REHREBERGHRE

HE Name

55 Directors
BARE Wei Hong-Ming
B IK Wei Hong-Chen
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The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 106 to 111.

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a)-1 Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RHEE 1 IR 4 2
Number of Shares Bk
BARER EEER Percentage
Personal Corporate of the issued
interests interests share capital
5,000,000 — 0.09%
5,000,000 — 0.09%



(a)-2 REQRBRETHRE (FiEE2)

i Name
== Directors
BERH Wei Hong-Ming
AR K Wei Hong-Chen
BE Tseng Chien
AR Chief Executive Officer
ERE James Chun-Hsien Wei
g

—_

HET - BHAMER
BHHA4.825% » HE

45 )5 4930.239% -
Inc. ([Rich Gold])#%817.835% -
EIpZLR g = v

A(FEDE

#0.619%

ARBIBZEAIT

~  RELTALREP—EBBRER
W AR AR

HRCSZA
MM BEIBEZEA

- MERALMES—ERBEEDN
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(a)-2 Long position in share options of the Company (note 2)

IR A

BaLE

S RERME ik ¢E| Percentage

Capacity and Number of of the issued

nature of interest shares share capital

EnEA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner

BEafAA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner

ERBEAA 854,000 0.02%
Beneficial owner

ERBEAA 14,863,000 0.26%

Beneficial owner

Note:

These 1,882,927,866 shares are held by and registered under the name
of Ting Hsin (Cayman lIslands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin”). Ting Hsin is
beneficially owned as to approximately 44.825% by Ho Te Investments
Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.239% by Rich Cheer Holdings
Limited (“Rich Cheer”), as to approximately 17.835% by Rich Gold Capital
Inc. (“Rich Gold"”), as to approximately 6.482% by Asahi Group Holdings,
Ltd., and as to the remaining 0.619% by unrelated third party. Ho Te
and Rich Cheer are owned as to 100% by Profit Surplus Holdings Limited
(“Profit Surplus™). Profit Surplus is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in
turn held by four discretionary trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and
discretionary objects of the four trusts are as follows:

—  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
with Wei Chang Lu-Yun and Wei Ing-Chou as discretionary objects;

—  Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with Lin
Li-Mien and Wei Ying-Chiao as discretionary objects;

—  Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
with Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien and Wei Yin-Chun as discretionary objects;
and
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—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with
Wei Tu Miao and Wei Yin-Heng as discretionary objects.

Rich Gold is wholly owned by Tingho Capital Holding Co., Ltd., which
is owned by Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus 3"). Profit
Surplus 3 is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four
discretionary trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary
objects of the four trusts have similar structures to those listed above.

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of each of the discretionary
trusts mentioned above.

2. Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,942,000 shares and
holds 8,704,000 share options (details shown as Table B and Table D on
page 116 and 118 respectively) under the share option schemes of the
Company. Wei Chang Lu-Yun, being the spouse of Wei Ing-Chou, is also
deemed to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares held by
Wei Ing-Chou.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the nine months ended 31
December 2020 were there rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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So far as was known to any Director or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

HE T
B
ZBED%
% of the
21 BERNEE issued share
Capacity Number of shares held capital
BREAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Beneficial owner
REAT R 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
R YNETY: 5 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
BRUEAXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
BUEEXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Trustee of a unit trusts
R YNETY: 5 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
SN RER 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
BEELIXEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Trustee of discretionary trusts
ERAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48

Beneficial owner
A Note 1 and 2 are set out on pages 121 to 122

Note: (L): Long Position

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2020.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB29.102
million.

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.
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Tingzheng Supply Agreement

On 21 November 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Tingzheng Supply Agreement”) with Tingzheng (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Tingzheng”), pursuant to which, Tingzheng and its
subsidiaries agreed to supply flexible plastic packaging materials and
plastic products to the Group for a term of three financial years from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Tingzheng is beneficially owned
by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman
of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei
Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. The Tingzheng
Supply Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 16 January 2020. Details of this agreement may be found in the
Company’s announcements and circular dated 21 November 2019, 16
December 2019, 23 December 2019 and 16 January 2020, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Tingzheng
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,153.694 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Fung Supply Agreement

On 16 November 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Fung Supply Agreement”) with Tianjin Ting Fung Starch
Development Co., Ltd. (“Ting Fung”), pursuant to which, Ting Fung
agreed to supply modified potato starch, modified cassava starch
and seasoning flavour products to the Group for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Ting Fung
is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei
Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of
the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the
Company. Details of this agreement may be found in the Company's
announcement dated 16 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Ting Fung
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB324.227 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Ting Chuan Agreement

On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Chuan Agreement”) with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) in relation to the supply of products of
the Group to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for Ting Chuan and its
subsidiaries to provide sales promotion services to the Group for a term
of three financial years ending 31 December 2020. Ting Chuan operates
the “Family Mart” convenient stores in the PRC and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and held approximately 33.58% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of the Ting Chuan Agreement. Details of
the transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the transactions with Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB171.109 million. Such
transactions have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

As the term of the Ting Chuan Agreement was due to expire on 31
December 2020, on 22 October 2020, the Company and Ting Chuan
entered into a new Products Supply Agreement in relation to the supply
of products of the Group to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for
Ting Chuan to provide related sales promotion services to the Group
for a term of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023. Details of the transactions above may be found in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 October 2020.

Weizhen Supply Agreement

On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Weizhen Supply Agreement”) with Weizhen Investment Limited
("Weizhen Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen
and dried food materials, dried meat floss and other meat products from
Weizhen Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial
years ending 31 December 2020. Weizhen Investment is owned as to
75% by Great System Holdings (Private) Limited (“Great System”), a
company which is beneficially owned by family members and relatives
of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive
Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive
Director of the Company, and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Details of the transactions above may be
found in the Company’s announcement dated 14 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Weizhen
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB412.665 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

As the term of the Weizhen Supply Agreement was due to expire on 31
December 2020, on 27 November 2020, the Company and Weizhen
Investment entered into a new Products Supply Agreement to supply
frozen and dried food materials, dried meat floss and other meat
products to the Group for a term of three financial years from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2023. Details of these transactions above may be
found in the Company’s announcement dated 27 November 2020.

Marine Vision Supply Agreement

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Marine Vision Supply Agreement”) with Marine Vision Investment
Inc. (“Marine Vision"”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of carton
boxes from Marine Vision and its subsidiaries for a term of three
financial years ending 31 December 2022. Marine Vision is beneficially
owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of
the transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 18 October 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Marine
Vision and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,233.612 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Nature Investment Supply Agreement

On 15 May 2018, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Nature Investment Supply Agreement”) with Nature Investment
Group Ltd. (“Nature Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase
of sesame oil, animal oil and other sesame products from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years ending
31 December 2020. Nature Investment is beneficially owned by family
members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-
Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 15 May
2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB226.763 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

As the term of the Nature Investment Supply Agreement was due to
expire on 31 December 2020, on 25 September 2020, the Company
entered into a new supply agreement with Nature Investment to
continue the supply of sesame oil, animal oil and other sesame products
from Nature Investment for a term of three financial years from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Details of the transactions above
may be found in the Company’s announcements dated 25 September
2020.

Logistics Services

On 22 June 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into an agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”) with Great System under
which the Group agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Ting
Tong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Tong”), to Great System
for a consideration of US$6.764 million (the “Disposal”). Prior to the
Disposal, Ting Tong was then an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and was principally engaged in the provision of logistics
services. Upon completion of the Disposal, the Group will cease to have
any interest in Ting Tong. Great System is beneficially owned by family
members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-
Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of the Disposal
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 22 June
2020.

To enable the Group to continue to use the logistics services of Ting
Tong and its subsidiaries upon completion of the Disposal, on 22 June
2020, the Company and Ting Tong entered into a logistics services
agreement (the “Logistics Agreement”) for a term commencing
from the date on which the Disposal is completed and ending on 31
December 2022. Details of the transactions above may be found in the
Company'’s announcement dated 22 June 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Ting Tong
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB670.322 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Prior to the Disposal, Ting Tong and KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF
Beverage”) have previously entered into the KSF Beverage Logistics
Agreement on 27 December 2018 pursuant to which Ting Tong and
its subsidiaries agreed to provide logistics services to KSF Beverage and
its subsidiaries. KSF Beverage is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company in which as to approximately 82.9% of its equity interest is
controlled by the Company and as to approximately 17.1% of its equity
interest is held by Ting Hsin.

As the scope of the logistics services to KSF Beverage and its subsidiaries
would be covered by the Logistics Agreement, KSF Beverage and Ting
Tong has mutually agreed to terminate the KSF Beverage Logistics
Agreement upon the Logistics Agreement becoming effective.

For the period ended 21 June 2020, KSF Beverage and its subsidiaries’
purchases from Ting Tong and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB341.820
million.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better which are no less
favourable to the Group than those available to/from independent
third parties; and

(¢) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions have nothing that would cause them to believe
that the transactions:

(@  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(c)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the cap.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10 to 27
under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and on page 28 under
"Prospects” of this Annual Report.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
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18 Harbour Road,
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Fax f5&: (+852) 2810 0032
www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 140 to 309, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,935 million at 31 December 2020. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2020 was RMB12,457 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements. An impairment loss of RMB66 million has been recognised
for certain machinery and equipment for the year ended 31 December
2020.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the carrying amount of machinery and equipment as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration
of the indicators of impairment and the determination of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation
to management’s impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment included:

a)  Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

b)  Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgments applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

¢)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

d)  Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

e)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

f)  Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

g)  Considering the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Control over Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd (“HZPS”) and
impairment assessment of goodwill

HZPS became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group through an
execution of sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA™) and a contractual
arrangement in 2017. The Group currently holds 50% equity interest in
HZPS and has a majority of the voting rights of HZPS.

The consolidation of HZPS required a significant amount of judgement
and estimations, including the determination of control over HZPS. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group re-assessed whether any
facts and circumstances indicate there are changes of its control over
HZPS. Based on the results of the re-assessment, the management
concluded that the Group has power over HZPS; has exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with HZPS; and has the ability to
use its power over HZPS to affect its returns. Therefore, the financial
statements of HZPS continue to be consolidated in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from the acquisition
in 2017. Management performs an annual impairment test on goodwill.
The goodwill was allocated to related CGU, and the recoverable
amount of CGU will be determined by management based on value
in use calculation using cash flow projection. The calculations involved
significant judgement and estimations, such as forecast cash flows,
discount rates and growth rates.

We identified the control over HZPS and impairment assessment of
goodwill as key audit matters because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the judgement and estimation
involved in determination of control over HZPS and accounting for
any impairment on goodwill which involves significant degree of
management judgement in determining key assumptions applied in
estimating recoverable amounts based on value in use model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii), 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.



BMNEANIEEERETSHE

BB BEE RN G R A EGIEATINT
B EEI2F R

a) HEEENRALEMNFEXNER
B BEEEHMMAEATENE
BB P

b) FfE BESREHMMBEERILNE
HIENEMFTEZEE M

o BBEITMNEERRER UEE &
SEBBRITEEHRERREES
FEHRER) R M5

d) BREEBEARMEBHEREREN
MERER  NHEERESETH
HURERAMME &

e) FMEKREERERZER BEIR
B

B EEmE TN ERRF

B

a) FHEEREEHETX:

b)  ARIEIR I B AN 5 A R AN
iR FHERREERAEN

O BEFMARSARANER 2 ER
M R

d) HEABEHKRERHER W
RALEMTRE  WEEZFHRER
BN -

MAZEENFRE | Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to the control over HZPS included:

a)  Discussing with the management to identify any facts and
circumstances that indicate changes of the Group’s control over
HZPS,;

b)  Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s re-assessment on
its control over HZPS;

Q) Obtaining direct confirmation from the vendor to ascertain the
existence of rights and benefits the Group entitled to through the
execution of the SPA and the contractual arrangement;

d)  Obtaining an updated legal opinion from the legal expert of
the Group's internal legal department to ascertain the legal
enforceability of the contractual arrangement in the PRC; and

e)  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Group's legal expert.

Our key procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of
goodwill included:

a)  Assessing the value in use calculation methodology;

b)  Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge and understanding of the business and market;

¢)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used,;
and

d)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of the budgets.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2020 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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e BEEFRAFELEGTERD e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
BEMN - WREBEIRESNETRE going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
HORTE B 7 & E B IE B evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
EAES E5EERELERNE to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
EERRE - MBEMREFTEEM Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
BANETHEZEZ  BIBEZEA®R that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
ERRBIELAVEHRER A attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
BiEE  EEEBEETE - AIERM the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
EEHRIIFBREBER - BHFINE inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
RN RN A ZEAE R E B b the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
FrEVS MR ET/RE - A - KK E However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
HERAIEER ES5ETa# cease to continue as a going concern.

25 ot 425 g A
BRELE -

e HERAMBHMENERIGA e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
X EBERAND BERESE consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
UWREEHEREREDUARTNTG whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
A2FHER S REIE - underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

e Bt EEERNEBNEBIDHHA e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the

BEKMEDNZD  BHENEFTR financial information of the entities and business activities within
FOUEGAMBHRRERER - the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
BZMEEEE EENHT &% statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
LB BRMATFERRESR performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
EaRE- our audit opinion.

HPEAIEB AR T tEIMETEE - B We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
ML EAEFTEREFSIE - SEFERM among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
TEZEFT HARI R A1 B P BB % ) &9 A () EE R Bk significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
ba o control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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mElER
Consolidated Income Statement
EHZE2020F 12 B31 BIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
k=3 AR¥Fr ABREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
g Revenue 6 67,617,835 61,978,158
SHE AR Cost of sales (45,185,680) (42,218,703)
EF Gross profit 22,432,155 19,759,455
HAth Y e Other revenue 7 667,617 541,222
E b A Other net income 8 567,894 1,544,223
Pal =i W:N Distribution costs (14,150,828) (13,258,980)
THEHA Administrative expenses (2,290,999) (2,375,436)
B & A Other operating expenses (475,724) (619,395)
B %58 A Finance costs 9 (348,639) (413,652)
FEAGEE A ERBHEE Share of results of an associate 20, 21
and joint ventures 130,436 234,159

BB AR R Profit before taxation 9 6,531,912 5,411,596
I8 Taxation 11 (1,958,228) (1,693,374)
REERF Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222
EiER Profit attributable to:

PiN/NET 3 Owners of the Company 4,062,263 3,330,981

DR RE LR Non-controlling interests 511,421 387,241
R EE A Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222
SRR Earnings per share 13 AR#S AE# S

HAR Basic RMB72.23 cents =~ RMB59.25 cents

s Diluted RMB72.15 cents =~ RMB59.20 cents

140 E@HEERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HZ2020F 12 A31 BILFE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
AR¥TFTT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R E i F Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222
Ha2mds= (F8) - Other comprehensive income (loss):
TEESIEZR B R EH Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
ARERNEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (367) (74,877)
FEEEAABES R REREAM Fair value changes in equity instruments
PHWGREENER TE designated as at fair value through
ARBECE other comprehensive income 32,456 3,199
32,089 (71,678)
BAAAEARESIHEE Items that are or may be reclassified
mERFEIER - subsequently to profit or loss:
EH Z%E Exchange differences on consolidation 784,122 (131,046)
784,122 (131,046)
REEHME2EKZE(EE) Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year 816,211 (202,724)
AEELHWNELLE Total comprehensive income for the year 5,389,895 3,515,498
B2 mHikSEasE Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NN 323 Owners of the Company 4,847,840 3,135,740
DEAR R R Non-controlling interests 542,055 379,758
5,389,895 3,515,498
BRAREIER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
72020 12 A31 BHILEFE At 31 December 2020

2020 2019
it AR¥ T ABREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FREEE Non-current assets
"B FE Investment properties 14 1,771,700 1,771,500
W - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 15 21,934,571 23,013,991
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,804,456 4,025,124
mEE Intangible assets 17 165,668 183,409
BES Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
RN ey Interest in an associate 20 94,802 139,537
EX-VNSIL- Interest in joint ventures 21 627,031 889,065
BAREBEYIRRE Financial assets at fair value through profit
BaRRENSREE or loss 22 1,329,479 1,153,541
BERAAEMESIRKLE  Equity instruments designated as at
HEme2mEla=EREED fair value through other
T HE comprehensive income 22 140,444 115,614
BETIAEE Deferred tax assets 34 429,027 407,171
R EATE HiTF 50 Long-term time deposits 26 2,435,000 725,000
32,830,088 32,521,862
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 3,347,676 3,445,075
JRE W R 3R Trade receivables 24 1,660,389 1,669,525
AT B I8 Tax recoverable 21,194 40,349
FEMFRIB R A EUGRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 2,240,898 2,852,469
HEIRIRITF K Pledged bank deposits 26 37,832 32,830
IRITHEBEIRS Bank balances and cash 26 21,393,321 17,397,557
28,701,310 25,437,805
wmEE Total assets 61,531,398 57,959,667
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
IR % i1 Capital and reserves
BITHRAR Issued capital 27 235,422 235,401
g Share premium 28 730,075 724,384
#E Reserves 29 20,147,227 18,618,789
AERATRBRREEBREIR Total capital and reserves attributable
B to owners of the Company 21,112,724 19,578,574
DB RER Non-controlling interests 19 3,626,659 3,467,533
BEREREEE Total equity 24,739,383 23,046,107
BHEERERAT
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A BFEIORE | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
720204 12 A31 BIESE At 31 December 2020

2020 2019
et AREFT AR#For
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
BRADEBETIRIE Financial liabilities at fair value through
BaBRRENSRERE profit or loss 31 — 9,674
RHAERREBE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 7,805,122 4,920,078
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 215,609 287,892
HEMIERBEE Other non-current liabilities 39 — 40,000
BITREMNEE Employee benefit obligations 33 122,166 157,066
RIEFIEAGE Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,577,110 1,191,422
9,720,007 6,606,132
REBEE Current liabilities
BARBEYIERE Financial liabilities at fair value through
EnREENemeE profit or loss 31 9,959 —
FERTER X Trade payables 35 8,146,974 7,678,035
Hih e IR B UIFE  Other payables and deposits received 36 10,079,278 10,761,450
£ REEZRVEE G, Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 5,891,412 7,454,381
HEtnsas Other current liabilities 39 40,000 —
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16 101,191 199,664
BPIERRIE Advance payments from customers 40 2,360,954 1,809,935
I Taxation 442,240 403,963
27,072,008 28,307,428
waE Total liabilities 36,792,015 34,913,560
BRRESZREEHEE Total equity and liabilities 61,531,398 57,959,667
BERBEE(EE) Net current assets (liabilities) 1,629,302 (2,869,623)
HEERARBARS Total assets less current liabilities 34,459,390 29,652,239

FI40E300 B R AV BHRREBRESE
EN2021EIA M ERERESE
WHNRTALTREZE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 309 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22
March 2021 and signed on its behalf by

H A% —EB Junichiro Ida
ZEF Director

#i% % WEI Hong-Ming
B Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2020F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2020

LN e
Attributable to owners of the Company
RERES
BE  VURFER R
B Ri%E Total Non- fExt%
Issued Share i capital and controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Tesenves interestss equity
NGEFT  AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
AMBO00 AMBO00 RIB 000 AVB 000 AVB 000 AMBO00
R19E151R At 1 January 2019 235,04 664,400 18,753,872 19,653,476 3,958,955 23,612,431
REREN Profit for the year - - 33080 3330% BAU 37180
A2 m(5E) s Other comprehensive (loss) income
RERRf ERE Remeastrement of defined benefit obligations - - (65,490) (65,490) (9.387) (74877)
BERDABEIERELL Fairvalue changes in equity instruments desigated
PENAERENERTE as at fair value through other
NEEZEY comprehensive income - - 3199 3199 - 3199
EXEE Exchange differences on consoldation - - (132,950) (132,950 1,904 (131,046)
Q] - Total other comprehensive loss - - (195,241) (195,241) (7.483) (202,724)
AEEREUEER Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3135740 3,135,740 379,758 3,515,498
BANARRZRG Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEST Contrbutions and distrbution
EREERNTMZRE Equity settled share-based transactions - - 24,504 24,504 - 24,504
RERRETZET R % Shares issued under share option scheme 197 50,984 (14,080) 46,101 - 46,101
BIEREE 2018 R BRERIRS 2018 final and special dvidend approved and paid - - 246332)  (2463321) (123646)  (2586,967)
197 59,984 (2452,897) (2392.716) (123,646) (2516,362)
FEERY Changes in ownershyp interests
HE-FE2ENELE Disposal of a non-wholy owned subsidiary - - - - 8601) 8.601)
EEUHZEHIENHELT  Changein ownership interest n subsiciaries
FRERD without change in control - - (817,926) (817.926) (138933 (1,556,859
- - (817,926) (817,926) (747 534) (1,565,460)
BANRRRZRAER Total transactions with owners of the Company 197 994 (083 (1064 (671,180 (4,081822)
R2019%128318 At 31 December 2019 235,401 724,384 18,618,789 19,578,574 3,467,533 23,046,107

144 EGEERERAE
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RE R EREREE)IR | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
#HZ=2020F12 A31 BILHFE Year ended 31 December 2020

KaARRRR
Attributable to owners of the Company
BxRE
48 JURRER B&
Bika Ri&E Total Non- ERiE
Issued Share i cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

ABRTE  ARETZ  ARETT  ARRFL ARETZ AERTX
RUBY00  RMBYO)  RMBUO  RMBUMO  RMBDO) AWMU

R2020E1818 At 1 January 2020 235,401 724,384 18,618,789 19,578,574 3,467,533 23,046,107
RERRR Profitfor the year - - 4,062,263 4,062,263 511,421 4,573,684
Hp2EHE(ER) Other comprehensive income (loss)

RERFEEZEREM233)  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (ote 33) - - 815 815 (1,182) (367)

BERDABEIERELL Fairvalue changes in equity instruments desigated
PENAERENERTA as at fir value through other comprehensive

MEEZBW20) income (ot 22() - - 32456 3245 - 3245
EiEE Bichange differences on consolidation - - 752,306 752,306 31,816 784,122
RH2EURLE Total other comprehensive income - - 785,577 185,571 30634 816,211
REERANRAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4,847,840 4,847,840 542,055 5,389,895
BRNIRRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REESE Contributions and distrbution
BREERRTN 2B Equity settled share-based transactions - - 15,988 15,988 - 15,988
REEREEE T RA Shares issued under share option scheme ote 27)
Wi27) ]l 5,691 (133) 4,389 - 4,389
BREREZ019KERES  2019final and spedal dividend approved
ke and paid (ote 12) - - (3,330,981) (3,330,981) (365,506) (3,696,487)
A 5,691 (3,316,316) (3,310,604) (365,506) (3,676,110)
o 2 ] Changes in ownershyp iterests
ESUHBAEEONERT  Changein ownership interest in a subsidiary
ERERI N 19) without change in control ot 79) - - (3,086) (3,086) (17423) (20509)
HRNIRRZRBAE Total transactions with owners of the Company N 5,691 (3319402  (3313,690) (382,929) (3,696,619
R2020%5128318 At 31 December 2020 8540 730,075 20,147,227 111274 3,626,659 24,739,383
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SERIMER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHZE2020F 12 B31 BIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
et AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REXKFBES Cash generated from operations 37 10,429,950 9,591,258
EAFBEPEMSEE The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") enterprise income tax paid (1,529,072) (1,343,821)
[k NS Interest paid (347,024) (416,419)
ReETHMERESFHE Net cash from operating activities 8,553,854 7,831,018
REER INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2T B Interest received 667,617 541,222
BRI ET Increase in long-term time deposits 26 (1,710,000) (725,000)
B E &R RIIRF Dividend received from joint ventures 21 374,926 32,025
2 U — g A w7 Dividend received from an associate 20 62,279 —
BUUE A EEYIERREIE  Dividend received from financial assets
HEREMNS/EERS  atfair value through profit or loss 135 3,253
HE—fBE AR ZFE  Proceeds from disposal of an associate — 195,107
HE—MAEEARZAE  Proceed from disposal of a joint venture — 225,408
HEZRAABEIER Proceeds from disposal of financial
R AR IEHY assets at fair value through
TRVEEZ IS profit or loss 22(a) 172,319 82,262
HERTHEAAMEMESIER  Proceeds from disposal of equity
DEHMEEKEERIE  instruments designated as at fair value
RETREE TS through other comprehensive income 22(0) — 3,578
BARAABEIERR Purchase of financial assets at
FIEFBERENSEEE  fair value through profit or loss 22(a) (528,916) (740,033)
BAETEE Purchase of intangible assets 17 (1,118) (158)
BAKREMEHE Purchase of investment properties (31,129) (241,733)
BAMZE - SRR Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,147,170) (1,788,104)
BAFRAEEE Purchase of right-of-use assets 16 (87,961) (42,386)
HEDE  HWEREHEN  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
FREEEZE equipment and right-of-use assets 107,757 280,439
LEMB ARG Net cash inflow on disposal
WEMAFHE of subsidiaries 41 176,812 836,581
BN ERZ FEEEHE Net movement of loan receivables 25(a) 55,000 (67,000)
REZBHFARSFERE Net cash used in investing activities (2,889,449) (1,404,539)
EAERRERAT
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AR ER | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
#HZE 20205612 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
(k3 AREFT AREFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

MEED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BNARRKREZEE Dividends paid to owners of

the Company (3,330,981) (2,485,015)
BRLERE#EZ 2IE  Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests 37(a) (399,145) (115,827)
RIR IRt 2l Issue of shares under share

BT 2Rt option scheme 27 4,389 46,101

YTREEEE Payments of lease liabilities 37(a) (180,341) (181,253)
HIIRITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 37(@a) 6,627,179 5,848,166
EERITRAMER Repayments of bank and

other borrowings 37(a) (6,912,448) (6,473,583)
HMGHEE 22 FE  Net movement of other short-

term borrowings 37(a) (789,060) 2,052,129
BITEIIAZIE 2 F T8 Net proceeds from issuance of

unsecured notes 37(a) 3,369,999 —
XAWEE D B R s Payment for acquisition of non-

controlling interests (20,509) (1,539,523)
AMEEE AR SFEE Net cash used in financing activities (1,630,917) (2,848,805)
REeRESZEYN Net increase in cash and

FIE cash equivalents 4,033,488 3,577,674

FRNZ2BERREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of year 17,430,387 13,840,421
EX@gopeg Effect on exchange rate changes (32,722) 12,292
FRZBESRRESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at end

of year 26 21,431,153 17,430,387

BRAREIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of
business are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2019 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(a)

(b)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

B EER
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HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
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(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(c)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs"). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.

B EER
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(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property, any difference at the date of change in
use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
in accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.
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)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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(9)

(h)

Intangible asset (Continued)
Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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@

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Mandatory FVOCI”); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.
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() SWMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)
THEE (&) Financial assets (Continued)
1) IEEAAGEN L HE 1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost
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MEEmEEREUAT A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it

MEKEEBRXRETE A meets both of the following conditions and is not

FVPL » BI 4% # §5 Bk AN 5t designated as at FVPL:

=

() HEBEAREHE () it is held within a business model whose
@ B & E A U objective is to hold financial assets in order to
BB EREARE collect contractual cash flows; and
79 ;A

(i) EHEAEHNGREETE (i)  its contractual terms give rise on specified
HEBEELSR &K dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
£ ZBEeR=EE principal and interest on the principal amount
RAEERAREER outstanding.
SRR °

HHHERATTENEmE Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently

EEERAERRZET measured using the effective interest method and

2 WAlgee HIRHE - are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising

JRE AR TR BB from impairment, derecognition or through the

EEEMWEMBARE amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

REEMIREHEK AT E The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
M REERIERITER bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
kIE4% - EERTER term time deposits and trade and other receivables.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2)

Mandatory FVOC]

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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@

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group’s financial assets at Designated FVOCI
include unlisted equity securities as further detailed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)  acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i)  part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.
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SBMIA(E) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)
T EEE) Financial assets (Continued)
4) HFVPLEFEH) % G & E 4) Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

(%)
BESRTREMAEEE Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
BESERNN EHEEeE as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
Br—HH IR E R =R reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
DI B EVRERRKE that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
TEBIEFVPLETE ° liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on

different bases.

AEBRIZFVPLAIEN S RE The Group's financial assets at FVPL include
EEREREES FTRAK investment funds, listed equity securities and unlisted
FBERIELTRAFESBFH equity securities as further detailed in note 22 to the
RERE T RERME22 © consolidated financial statements.

THEE Financial liabilities

RN TR Recognition and derecognition
CREBENERFHZHEER Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
HERANEBKAZTIEASY Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
& 7 B — B HERR instruments and on a trade date basis.
ERNEBEAHLEYBEZERE A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
B W s ECH sk B2 B ER liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
B AR IFERZ S REE - in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

EREER 163
2020 Annual Report 4 #§



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

()

ERMIA(E)
EHREE)
DR E

TRABEEVRAREED
ik o &2 A & IFIZFVPLET
E-AIMEEERBERZRS
BRI -

AEENSRABEEREREMNK
REEMBENRE HEA
B ERBEREMEDA
& B EBEIIREER
nREENSRAEN A
TREEHERERREENS
MR - HREBERMNEER
BENAAGE  BRIFFTHRHOFE
ETK - EIBERT AR A
5IIf

ZIVPLEEBENSRABERER
EEARGzemAE UK
FEIATE FIRFVPLEERE - UK
BV BRELEREIRME
RAHEBEHRKRETSE
REFMEEDNCREE - 5
TEEAABENE  FAH
EANY S RBEBTNBIEE
BahEROF L - /B
FEREBEEERRMNIETIER
FVPLEtER S RBENANE
BEHBHEHMEEKER
2% BRIFEEEESHEEE
RESSIERNSEEE o Hf
2EK=EF 2N ETEHE
8 ABmR o RIEFERE
Rt BEEEE ARR
wmE  FEBREAAEERE
=R ©

164 EEEERERAE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings and
other current liabilities. All financial liabilities, except for
financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(ii)

(iii)

incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term;

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases;

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract
is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).
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() SWMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

T EERAMIEHZHE(E) Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

B ER Definition of default

AEERBUATHERABEE The Group considers the following as constituting an event

EMREEENNENEH of default for internal credit risk management purposes

RELEBRET  NRFEIN as historical experience indicates that the Group may not

THEMEZENSRTA A% receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the

AlREE A2 EINEIREED financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

aR&HE -

(i) AEBERSFKAEINEL AR IE (i)  information developed internally or obtained from
BHEBERERANA external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
REERBYMEBEA B8 pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
EAEB(REEAE taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
FANEAERD) sk or

(il RPHERMBERL - (i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

TE oW NEERE Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that

EomEEDBEI0RE - default has occurred when a financial asset is more than

BAEENEELE  BRIELAEER 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and

BEREAMXHNERERF supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

BRBYIZES BEE - default criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, amounts due from an associate, joint ventures,
related parties and certain other receivables are determined
to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.
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(k)

m

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and delivery of instant noodles, beverages and
instant food products.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@ a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs,



0

=
)

sk 2 SR ()

E BB BEHEEERE 159
H)E P AR (&)

W gt W AR 2 B B (48

(b) AKEWEDEIESILR
—EEE(WNERZIR)H
Bl REERTFE
BRI EE ¢ 3

(© EEEHEOLTERY
REBARMBRNE
B MAEEHRNESE
SR BN RAS TH
TTERER o

R FE 4 % 75 0 IR BE B [ B
17 AR EER P RS A
wh B E M B R R RR 2 B
HIFTG o FEHETE (] B B A 42
REBE  ARESZ BT
BOBMSURENEZERE
B EREER XN B
EFT A R E KRB A Bl 37 A
REPEXEHEIR

FEMMRMNEETRFE
15 3 74 58 & 2 a1 &l B R R B
WHER  aRFHEEYWRX
KERW BERH A RN
_ﬁ °

WD AR 75 B Al 75 A FE B A AR
T 0 BB By [ R,

BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

U]

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(©)  the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles and beverages is recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

Service income of logistic services is recognised over time
when services are rendered.

B EER
2020 Annual Report 4 #§

175



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

0

Wiss 2 SR ()

E BB BEHEERE 155
H)E P EAIWA (&)

W FER T B2 (4E)

HBEBMBREERE 155N
PERFEEROBA - WELHE
BHERATAEFE  BlAs
ERAENEBIRERARFE
FEOEARZSERIRBER
EEARNEBEELRB T A G
HEMIBBHEETZ)
NEERNEHERTEREITH
HE - BAZAEENAREN
HAEBMOELY  MAER
BRASMERKBAZA L&
Al - WA BEEERKAEHE
NIER  HEEHNGENER
HNEBHERABLE - MINDE
FrESRESEANE L ESP
EANEZEHARENESE
BB MR

RPER  ERREKD

EANBEEEARERD (AE
FaASBEESREFPERE
SRS B SR E KRR E
®)F - EEERZERE - K
SEeEREEMNEREEESE
HEAGHEE EAREND
MEEERaEEFNE K
AGRBHEDBINEBRES
FER A B A A BRI

176 EMEERERAE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

U]

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of
the performance obligation. The principal input applied in
the output method for transportation services to external
customers is based on the distance already travelled to date.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components
(Continued)

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payment from customers until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payment from
customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is United States Dollar (“US$") and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi ("RMB") as their functional currency. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s

entities that have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated

into the presentation currency as follows:

(a)

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(e)  On the partial disposal of the thee Group's interest in
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest in
an associate and interest in joint ventures may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).
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(o)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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(q) Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.
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0]

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(©) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 year to 30 years

Land use right in respect of Over the leasehold
leasehold land period

Machinery and other equipment 1 year to 5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

() amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.
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Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of

the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced

to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement

of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.
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0]

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

(e) for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.
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HE(#E) (r) Leases (Continued)

TERILTAN — SEHE As lessor — operating lease

REBBEBBREERSE The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
95k 2 82 IR KRB 1R E JE requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.
RREWLERS -

KEBHE B AT E%A A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
HRAFEEAR  UTHER a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
HEMRBE 2 EMEMN S ERE considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
ENFRAEFHEERENKZ to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
—H5m o new lease.

ETIEA (s) Employee benefits

2B S iE Short term employee benefits
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Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

BRYE REBSERRAE material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
HIER o
SRE R E Defined contribution plans
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The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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®

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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(u)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.
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(u) Taxation (Continued)

(v)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.
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(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(©)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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ERNBRERNRRET (x) Future changes in HKFRSs
RAGEMEHRREER K At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
EBUVKEERBTNIESZ statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
St A BEHERAFE R K revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
ERZ R RSB RT BB year, which the Group has not early adopted.
WEEA MRE -
ERUBHEENE 168 EHTREEEL Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

B3] BeEsl Concessions 1!
BASTEE 9% - FEEEyE Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark

BANER LD SRR HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16 Reform — Phase 2

F4% F1% £9%
RE 1652463

BESTENZ 165 IERE AR Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended
B3] FigsE Use B!
EEGIERSIR VB BAANZKAS Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract ©!
ERBBREER S SRR RL Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
E35 2B Framework E!
eS| 201822020 EE 0 Annual Improvements to 2018-2020 Cycle B!
JERHE HKFRSs
BASTENZ IS BEAERTDY Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
I3 EiE R Current or Non-current
EEUBHEEAE TS RBRAHY HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts @
EEBREEAE 0 RESRARENTN Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution of Assets
REASEL ARDRZEZBE 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
E285 BT HERTED Associate or Joint
Venture ¥
t M2020F6 A1BE s 2% m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
95 2 2 R AR 2020
@ R2021E1A1B S 2% @ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
18 2 FE M AR 2021
B R2022F1A1Bs 218 H Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
95 2 IR R AR 2022
@ R2023FE1A1BH 2% @ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
18 2 FE M AR 2023
&l £ A BT sl The effective date to be determined
KAFIEETBAR AR R The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
W] RG] BB mE adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
EH| NS EANER Y B RER will have any material impact on the Group’s financial
EEFRNERTE - information.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8: Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align the
definition used across HKFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 7 and 9: Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 1

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform (the
market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the
replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark). In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a
business and include new guidance to evaluate whether an
acquired process is substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.



=
)

BRAAR K 2 (5T R AR A K I T5
HEEBEREG AV HHRKREE
he BEGE - BREHEB S
AEBEZEFRRER BE - &
B WARRX Z BREEEIASPT
FHZBEBEREATE TERER
ERRMIBER(BRARLIAL
EHBRATHEBEEZEM)
e NEER ST 2BITE
RERT HA R R R SR AR (iR & T 7%
FE AR R -

() FEREHBENEZREH

ATRARREERERSF
BEBIE T PIEIL M 4R & B
BHRRTHEINSBEAEEFEXN
FENBEHAECS MG E
(RTF3OBRIN) »

FEAPIAR (&

RAEERAARERAAEN
BREERHWEMNELRIEARA
B ARAESFCEHNAEE
WIREFEMAS  XRSX
SENFEREEFHERNH
BEBEREMIIFERHEE
HREIR B 1P b EE R BV 4B K ED
DREBENENEBEAFTEH -
At - REFEAREZREN
i E R EBIAR - RNA ]
ExCEEEAARERAG
ENRE M E 0 E R REE/
2 HUE B & W B RO RER B
B A AEEWRBHER
BERURPBEZRENEF
EXAREEBHN T HIBERE
BRELREEFHEERR
EREREEBEAMEL -

BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements

are made by the management in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements. They affect the application

of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are

assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and

relevant factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where

appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also

affects future periods.

(i)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group’s certain investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on these
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on land
appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair value of
these investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or termination
options — as lessor and lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.
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(ii)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 2 and level 3 assets or
liabilities have been agreed with the management of the
Company. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. The estimation of fair value of
level 3 assets included some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. Change in assumption
could affect the reported fair value of the assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of gooadwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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RANBZHITEECOHEY AKEF The Company's executive directors have been identified as
TELERRE KEDIW 2N the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
EoEER 2 mEILAIBEEER has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
BAERRNRBZHTES 2V BKER R information based on the regular internal financial information
B KEBEZZEEREERE D IE reported to the Company’s executive directors for their decisions
BABRERFHERE - ERA about resources allocation to the Group’s business components
SEREREMEEIEFEBII% A and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
P SEEEREARNMETT - HUA executive directors consider the business principally from a product
NAZHITEETEUNE RE T perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
TEAREE 7 EBW A EABIES as over 99% of the Group's revenue and business are conducted
BoEERBELRE. . AJfRE KL in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
DEHEN AAFENE R EEMD operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
MEBBEAFERE R BEZEK - others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
BEERWEERERS: MR holding, properties investment for rental purpose, logistics and
TIRIAEET - supportive functions.

WITESTUAFELCE DB 2AF For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
JE 2 55 T LA N2 [ %3 A ogs Kl Kz E (G g segments and allocating resources between segments, the
BRAINAERREENKIERZ executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
AT )BTRS R (EER)EE based on profit for the year and profit before taxation, share of
RESHEBRDPEATRTHAR results of an associate and joint ventures and unallocated income
I o (expenses), net.

DEEEBTEREBEANRERNLA Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
EBNAEREAIEEERER in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
FVPLEZ 32 /) & Rl & & M F5 E FVOCI include financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI. Segment
ZERMEE - pEEERERET liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of employee
BANEFZEBEEEINBRE - benefit obligations.

50 2 T Y 856 = DA AR N2 BRI Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
EIEEB - 2o ezt =E accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
BAEENGEEMBHRERMEIE the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
ZeitBR I AEEN SRR consolidated financial statements.

iﬁ °

EEMWEMNE JIIRE BT E B2 The geographical location of the Group's customers is based on
Do REBZHR9% KB INBE P the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
ZWHRHBERANEESKEEERER revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
TP MR - FE - KNEEPT customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group’s
BRIEREEE  BRIBHILFVPLE operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
& /& E &8 EFVOCI Z NI 7 assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated
R WERKEE—ILEFRI FVOCI, are located in the PRC. No revenue from a single external
AEARE B 10% A L - customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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DEDEE Segment results:
2020
R
HfEsE Inter-
Instant #m Hfitt  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARETFr ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
[ Revenue
REFPANEE NS Revenue from contracts with
customers 29,501,133 37,265,751 769,429 — 67,536,313
W52 g Timing of revenue
recognition:
X825 Recognised at a point in time | 29,501,133 37,265,751 710,983 — 67,477,867
BERE 3251 Recognised over time — — 58,446 — 58,446
29,501,133 37,265,751 769,429 — 67,536,313
REMRFEEZWA Revenue from other sources:
KERBUERMEZHEWA  Rental income from investment
properties — — 81,522 — 81,522
fEbfE z dE Inter-segment revenue 8,777 14,172 1,207,928  (1,230,877) —
D EdE Segment revenue 29,509,910 37,279,923 2,058,879  (1,230,877) 67,617,835
PREE(CHBRMBER)  Segment results after
finance costs 3,980,673 2,654,056 (184,740) (6,970) 6,443,019
[EEBE DB A RNAIELE  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures (507) 141,383 (10,440) — 130,436
AR ZFZH Unallocated expenses, net — — (41,543) — (41,543)
BRBEATEF (B58) Profit (loss) before taxation | 3,980,166 2,795,439 (236,723) (6,970) 6,531,912
I8 Taxation (1,246,935) (689,976) (21,317) —  (1,958,228)
REEZRF(EE) Profit (loss) for the year 2,733,231 2,105,463 (258,040) (6,970) 4,573,684
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DEEE : (£)

Segment results: (Continued)

2020
R
Rl il Inter-
Instant #m Hfitt  segment @t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ANRETFT AREFH ARETT AREFT AREFZT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets
DEEE Segment assets 25,182,638 31,152,963 5,007,269  (2,003,228) 59,339,642
BeNmER Interest in an associate — 94,802 — — 94,802
AEAlER Interest in joint ventures 375 598,337 28,319 — 627,031
APREE Unallocated assets 1,469,923
HEE Total assets 61,531,398
8% Liabilities
NEBEE Segment liabilities 9,073,005 16,942,691 12,413,035  (1,758,882) 36,669,849
VN W= Unallocated liabilities 122,166
BEE Total liabilities 36,792,015
Hirg g Other information
TEREH Depreciation and
amortisation 814,164 2,201,882 222,308 (90,322) 3,148,032
BARRAR Capital expenditures 502,934 1,725,297 38,029 — 2,266,260
FIEBA Interest income 433,587 284,319 17,015 (67,304) 667,617
FlEx Interest expenses 20,189 93,293 305,924 (70,767) 348,639
mE - BER Impairment loss of
B AEER property, plant and
equipment 16,514 49,677 — — 66,191
LERE A T Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries — 117,941 128 — 118,069
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SIEE () Segment results: (Continued)

2019
iy
HEME Inter-
Instant R Hith segment et
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ANREFT ANRMFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W #E Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts
with customers 25,295,434 35,580,490 1,016,062 — 61,891,986
WERT 2K Timing of revenue
recognition:
EE-EHR7 Recognised at a point in time 25,295,434 35,580,490 703,287 — 61,579,211
BERS R 51 Recognised over time — — 312,775 — 312,775
25,295,434 35,580,490 1,016,062 — 61,891,986
REMRREEZWA Revenue from other sources:
REREMEHE Rental income from
ZHE2IA investment properties — - 86,172 — 86,172
D EE L WE Inter-segment revenue 4,988 19,131 1515469  (1,539,588) —
SEWE Segment revenue 25,300,422 35,599,621 2,617,703 (1,539,588) 61,978,158
PHEE(CMRMBER)  Segment results after
finance costs 3,364,881 1,549,877 247,413 (6,202) 5,155,969
[EIEBE DB A ARIELS  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures 483 242,752 (9,076) — 234,159
FAEZFWA Unallocated income, net — — 21,468 — 21,468
BB AR Profit before taxation 3,365,364 1,792,629 259,805 (6,202) 5,411,596
HIE Taxation (1,166,264)  (453,607) (73,503) —  (1,693,374)
REE &R Profit for the year 2,199,100 1,339,022 186,302 (6,202) 3,718,222
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DEEE : (£)

Segment results: (Continued)

2019
iyt
yagid i Inter-
Instant R Hith segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ARBTFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
BE Assets
NEEE Segment assets 22,790,688  29,095483 4,010,878 (235,139) 55,661,910
BeENRER Interest in an associate — 139,537 — — 139,537
AR DAER Interest in joint ventures 882 849,424 38,759 — 889,065
AOREE Unallocated assets 1,269,155
BEE Total assets 57,959,667
=l Liabilities
AHAE Segment liabilities 9,294,961 15,805,462 10,482,964 (826,893) 34,756,494
xHE&EE Unallocated liabilities 157,066
#afE Total liabilities 34,913,560
HingEs Other information
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 777,990 2,324,077 211,848 (56,144) 3,257,771
BARHY Capital expenditures 440,974 1,355,033 278,984 — 2,074,991
FlEMA Interest income 326,958 228,758 18,854 (33,348) 541,222
e Interest expenses 3,967 136,873 310,551 (37,739) 413,652
mE - KER Impairment loss of property,

REZHEBSE plant and equipment 35,097 112,555 4,398 — 152,050
DEMRB AR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 372,208 94,537 162,144 — 628,889
HEAEARME Gain on disposal of

a joint venture — — 223,150 — 223,150
PEBEA TR Gain on disposal of
an associate 119,593 11,460 — — 131,053
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A Interest income 667,617 541,222
2020 2019
et ARETFT ABEFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
S BE 2 s Gain on sales of scrapped materials 171,762 160,451
EFVPLEEIEMS@MEZE 2 Change in fair value of financial
NABEZEFER assets at FVPL, net (40,905) 20,774
WEMEENEZEE Change in fair value of investment
properties 14 200 3,674
WFVPLEEMERIBMEZ  Change in fair value of financial
NABEZEEFER liabilities at FVPL, net 31 (285) 188
WFVPLERIEMSMEEZ  Dividend income from financial
UL @N assets at FVPL 135 3,253
HEMB QRS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 41 118,069 628,889
HERE QRIS Gain on disposal of an associate — 131,053
HEEE R AWES Gain on disposal of a joint venture — 223,150
B4 B Government grants 160,431 314,116
HEYE - WERREN  Loss on disposal of property, plant
FRAEEEBE and equipment and right-of-use
assets (77,332) (92,900)
PE 5 Y 5 5 58 Exchange gain, net 29,159 15,511
Hith Others 206,660 136,064
567,894 1,544,223
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KHIB (GTA) T 3BE % - This is stated after charging (crediting):
2020 2019
AR¥FT ABRBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B E A Finance costs
AR S FNABEEE ZIEIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
REMEFHZF BT T wholly repayable within five years 315,096 363,850
ERSFNAERBEBEEZ Interest on bank and other borrowings
RITREMERZ wholly repayable over five years
FEZH 15,144 27,944
HEBBEEEZHMKER Finance costs on lease liabilities 18,399 24,625
348,639 416,419
W FIEXREARFIA Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
Yz - MR REE property, plant and equipment at weighted
IniEFI9E&E AR L& average capitalisation rate of Nil
RE (2019:3.71%)
(20194 :3.71%) — (2,767)
348,639 413,652
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hig B Other items
ETMA(BIFEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e KR Salaries and wages 7,011,729 6,347,895
NESEERN M2 Equity-settled share-based
FRIE payment expenses 15,988 24,504
RIKERA Pension costs:
REMRKETE* Defined contribution plans* 240,160 648,730
REBMNETE Defined benefit plans (3,690) 13,623
ZEE £ Auditor's remuneration:
EZEH Audit fee 9,719 8,961
IEZER Non-audit fee 477 —
EETFERA Cost of inventories* 45,185,680 42,218,703
e - Depreciation:
WE - AR REE Property, plant and equipment 2,835,810 2,952,224
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 305,819 299,141
EEEE Amortisation of intangible assets
(BEBERDHEAA) (included in distribution costs) 6,403 6,406
ME - MEKEEZHME  Impairment loss of property,
B (B BENE AL plant and equipment
ER) (included in other operating expenses) 66,191 152,050

* FRERELR R EREHKBER *
FEFFRIZ (G IR 2 BT RS - %7
BRI 130 1 SR B AR R I 55 2 R

F o

EEGFREKAF OIS THA #
Y BERRE FHEEE
CHEREEEEHHARK
4,748,077,0007T (20194 = A R

4,822,750,0007T) * iZE % BB INAT

granted.

AL LT IR Z & FIKGRE T

The Group received government subsidy related to COVID-19
in the form of a reduction in social security contribution, which
was recognised as reduction to the related expenses when it was

Cost of inventories includes RMB4,748,077,000 (2019:
RMB4,822,750,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and amortisation of
intangible assets which amount is also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above.
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AANRAEERITREZR YN R The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
Rt 2 BN /AagEn T ¢ Company's directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2020
BREXHR
EEmEHRE
HE 5
$eR DRBZA  Retirement
Hfpe ZHE  payments and
EZhe Salaries ozl Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based  to pension At
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

ABRTE  ARETR  AREFT  ARETZ  AREFT  ARETZ
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBD00  RMBUOO  RMBU00  RMBU0O

HITEE - Executive directors:

RE% Wei Hong-Ming 689 5,365 1,829 1,184 - 9,067

ARG Junichiro Ida 552 165 - - - 1Al

BEX Wei Hong-Chen 1,034 5,175 1,587 1,184 - 8,980

BRER Koji Shinohara 345 165 - - - 510

AREE Yuko Takahashi 345 165 - - - 510

g Tseng Chien 345 653 — — — 998
BUFHTEE - Indlependent

non-executive dliectors:

el Hsu Shin-Chun 345 83 - - - 428

*RR Lee Tiong-Hock 345 83 - - - 428

REE Hiromu Fukada 345 83 - - - 428
TR Chief executive officer;

8 James Chun-Hsien Wei - 18,211 3,198 6,129 - 27,538

4,345 30,148 6,614 8,497 - 49,604

BEEBELEEN2020E12 8310 R Mr. James Chun-Hisen Wei retired on 31 December 2020 and Mr.
R FREFELEN2021F1A1H Chen Yinjang was appointed as the chief executive officer on 1
BERERITIEE - January 2021.
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2019
RIREINE
EXRRHS
HE 5
Hek DNRASA Retirement
Eftile ZFTE payments and
EEX5 Salaries fth Share-  contribution
Directors' andother  Discretionary based  topension At
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total
NREFT  ARETT  AREFT ARETT  AREFT  ARETIL
AMB000 AMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
HITEE - Executive directors:
R Wei Ing-Chou - - - 473 23,902 24375
BE% Wei Hong-Ming 690 7,763 3% 1,189 - 9,998
il Junichiro Ida 552 01 - - - mn
RER Wei Hong-Chen 1,036 6,763 356 1,189 - 9,344
BRER Koji Shinohara 345 01 - - - 566
EEEE Yuko Takahashi 144 138 - - - )
REEE Teruo Nagano 201 83 - - — 284
MaZ Lin Chin-Tang 345 110 - - - 455
B Tseng Chien — - - — — -
BUFHTEE: Indlependent non-executive directors:
3 Hsu Shin-Chun 345 110 - - - 455
KRR Lee Tiong-Hock 345 10 - - - 455
RER Hiromu Fukada 345 110 - - - 455
TR - Chief executive officer:
EfE James Chun-Hsien Wei - 18211 3,299 6,161 - 27,671
4348 33,840 4011 9,012 23,902 75,113
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ZREM A R2019F1 A1 BHE =

RRBAITESE -

ZRE N £ AR 201941 A1 B BHE
AREBIE AH MELELLE

RERAKEER °

BEREEN2019FE1A 1A ES

ERARRBAITES -

MR2019%F8H9H  REEHELE
HIARBHITEEMSBBE=L

ERZER/RARAATES -

MN2019F 12 A310  KiFEE4E
BEARBRTESMEELLE

RERARBITES °

R2020F K 201912 A31 B IEF
Bl EEER SR THATRES

BB -

AEELARDAEZRSURH
ALTWMAXREEMNMEKEES
MAAEBEN ELHERAEEKX

ERALEHRRE -

214 EEEZERERAF

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned and Mr. Wei Hong-Ming was
appointed as the chairman of the Group on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Hong-Chen was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Teruo Nagano resigned and Mr. Yuko Takahashi was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 9 August
2019.

Mr. Lin Chin-Tang resigned and Ms. Tseng Chien was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 31 December 2019.

No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year, two directors (2019: three directors) and the
chief executive officer whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above and two individuals (2079. one). Details
of the emoluments of the remaining two individuals (2079: one)
are as follows:

2020 2019

AR#FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Fe hHMME Salaries and other emoluments 10,118 5,075

VAR 1 32 4 2 5R78 Share-based payments 1,395 1,850
BRETTREER Retirement payments and contribution

RIRBET B to pension scheme — —

TEAT Discretionary bonuses 5,662 2,124

17,175 9,049

S 24020194 ¢ 147)BEH AL
ZE&MERIIT :

The emoluments were paid to the two (2079: one) highest paid
individuals as follows:

EEA™
Number of individuals

< 48 Bl Emoluments band 2020 2019
ARHET7 104,928 LE RMB7,104,928 to RMB7,548,985

AR 7,548,985 7T (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)

(8,000,001 BTE

8,500,000 7T) 1 —
AR R,881,159 L& RMB8,881,159 to RMB9,325,216

AR#9,325,216 7T (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000)

(10,000,001 BTE

10,500,000 7¢) — 1
AR# 9,769,275 L& RMB9,769,275 to RMB10,213,332

AR#10,213,332 T (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000)

(11,000,001 B TE

11,500,000 7T) 1 —

2 1
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2020 2019
AR¥FIT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TEEBE Current tax
REIERFTEH PRC Enterprise income tax
AEE Current year 1,460,775 1,245,211
AR DR (251 ) B Under provision (Over provision) in prior years 26,443 (17,587)
1,487,218 1,227,624
ERANEH Hong Kong profits tax
REFE Current year 206 —
ESERIR (17 34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)
EERBEERERFHE Origination and reversal of temporary
differences, net (19,387) (18,286)
AR BT B H Effect of withholding tax on the net
= HoA | P S & o ;
%?‘? ADBFIEFEL  istributable earnings of the
RIEDL Group's PRC subsidiaries 490,191 484,036
470,804 465,750
AEEHIREEE Total tax charge for the year 1,958,228 1,693,374

MEeEHBSY M HARARAERZ
YA BUBAE IR IR -

HZE2020F12 8318 &EFEH
RRBRGFEHEEMTEN - 11
MARFIERMESET - GEBDE
B8 200 B T ) E 1512 8.25% KT
REF - M200 BB T EOFIEG
1 16.5% KRR BT -
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The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax regime.
Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
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RBIAREZ B A RMHEENFER
XM AT X RB25% (2019
F:25%) RIBPHE - BHEB
EHBE R AR S A
RRANEHEATAREEEE BN
W R 2R R RE ) 3@ A0 ) (BF #4[2011]58
%)+ iz pA R B K B P B b [ ([ 78 B
e )WBE R B EEXNINER
B HEpBEEZXFXEWAL
EARARTO% A LR - 2011
FE2020FFE - HIE15% K E
BRI BERSER - Bt - &
EENEPHE 2 MBRATRES
15% (20194 : 15%) 120204
AR238 - WEVBRE  SHEESE
BB R B 4B R A B KR ROOR
N e 78 30 K 5 B B RS A A B R
FERE R E A (BB (2020123 5% ) fiz
REBMEAIIIERERFE - Het
BEEENETERAMMEERRKA
B160% LA - R2021F1A1HZE
2030F 12 A3THHMHEREERR

;E(o

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2079: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui
[2011] no. 58) on the Grand Development of Western Region
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and China Customs, foreign investment enterprises
located in the western region of the PRC (the “Western
Region”) with over 70% of principal revenue generated from
the encouraged business activities are entitled to a preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2020 (the "Prefential Tax Relief”). Accordingly, certain subsidiaries
located in the Western Region are entitled to an income tax rate
of 15% (2019: 15%). On 23 April 2020, the Ministry of Finance,
the State Taxation Administration and National Development
and Reform Commission jointly issued an announcement ([2020]
no.23) to extend the Preferential Tax Relief from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2030 for those foreign investment enterprises
located in the Western Region with over 60% of principal revenue
generated from the encouraged business activities.
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NEE 7 BT A GHEAEERIB The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERWAT - for the year as follows:
BERL HE Reconciliation of tax expense
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR A B A Profit before taxation 6,531,912 5,411,596
BRABUEERE 25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
WIB(20194F - 25%) in the PRC (2019:25%) 1,632,978 1,352,899
JEIREtE R AEATIELE  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures (32,609) (58,540)
L Non-deductible expenses 74,467 186,145
EERBUA Tax exempt revenue (6,062) (101,253)
RIERMIEEE Unrecognised tax losses 62,542 105,055
AERGRER Unrecognised temporary differences (16,558) (12,107)
MR BEL AMERBIERE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (142,097) (179,407)
RASERRE 2 B Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
NCIEIE ST e profits of the Group's PRC
TRIRH (Hfat 34) subsidiaries (Note 34) 490,191 484,036
FA 78 5P 4[5 A R B B Effect of tax relief on PRC
DR BBUR R subsidiaries in Western Region (96,845) (28,761)
LARTHFE DR (ZE1) B Under provision (Over provision) in prior years 26,443 (17,587)
Hith Others (34,222) (37,106)
AFEHBERY Tax expense for the year 1,958,228 1,693,374
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Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

the year:
2020 2019
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R B RK .2 R Final dividend proposed after the end of
a8 A =Y 3/
Exiﬁ ?Z}E?E;f _ the reporting period of US5.54 cents
o st ' (2019: US4.24 cents) per ordinary share
R BB 4.24 F ) 2,031,132 1,665,491
R B RK .2 455 Special dividend proposed after the end of
a8 A =Y 3/
Exiﬁ ?Z}E?E;f _ the reporting period of US5.54 cents
P, ' (2019: US4.24 cents) per ordinary share
R BB 4.24 F ) 2,031,131 1,665,490
4,062,263 3,330,981

R2021F3 8228 M & &
EERARBREIREERE
AR 5.54 F U KKK B
LB 5543 o aith R
BENEBRNEERRERS
BFRB - BRI BEZE 2021
FI2A3MBIEFENRKER
oo WLEFERRRIRE RARHRK
BRIZEBMBRREFRTRE
FERIAR B -

RAF AL R 3 BRI £
—HREETARAKRRZIE

At meeting held on 22 March 2021, the directors
recommended the payment of a special dividend and a final
dividend of US5.54 cents and US5.54 cents per ordinary
share respectively. The proposed special and final dividend
will be accounted for as an appropriation of reserves in
the year ending 31 December 2021 if it is approved at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed
dividend have not been recognised as dividends payable in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

BARE year:
2020 2019
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MAARF AR EMKEEER  Final dividend in respect of the previous
M BERE RS A financial year, approved and paid during
BRRE @R 4.24 (L the year, of US4.24 cents
(2019 : FREFER (2019: US3.20 cents) per ordinary share
3.20 %) 1,665,491 1,231,661
AT A& MIREEER  Special dividend in respect of the previous
BB EERFRIIE A  financial year, approved and paid during
Bk Eimix4.24 EA0 the year, of US4.24 cents
(20194 : 3.20 %) (2019:U53.20 cent) per ordinary share 1,665,490 1,231,660
3,330,981 2,463,321
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AT A& E A G F =8 E s The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are as
FZ5E follows:
(a) BREREF (a) Basic earnings per share
2020 2019
RAAIREFANENG Profit attributable to ordinary equity
M (ARETT) shareholders (RMB’000) 4,062,263 3,330,981
BEITEBRZ Nk Weighted average number of ordinary
TR (T A%) shares ('000) 5,624,061 5,622,019
BREAEF (ARE D) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 72.23 59.25
(b) BREFER (b) Diluted earnings per share
2020 2019

RATIEFANEMEEF  Profit attributable to ordinary equity

(AR®ETT) shareholders (RMB'000) 4,062,263 3,330,981
BB E Weighted average number of ordinary
(%) (FIR) shares (diluted) ('000)
E#TEERZ IE Weighted average number of
FHpR & ordinary shares 5,624,061 5,622,019
RNARERES ZFE  Effect of the Company's share
option scheme 6,187 4,831

BR:TESR#EEF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary

BRI T 9 shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 5,630,248 5,626,850
BRHELF(ARESD)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 72.15 59.20
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2020 2019

AR TFT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

DAREE At fair value

NG At beginning of the year 1,771,500 1,119,000

RE-BA Addition - purchases — 648,826

DABECE Change in fair value 200 3,674

RE&EER At the end of the reporting period 1,771,700 1,771,500
(a) AEEZHREMEHE B (@) The Group's investment properties, which consist of

AAMEREFEESURELE
T ERE MR PER ST
FI7TIE R P 35 1678 5% & 1686
5% DA R AP B K03 T A T B
BERBETHENBARIAA
A -

AEENEEHERHEEST
REUGFEMWE  FHERAR?2
E3F XBEERNEHERR
VAR R AR TR 2 IR 4 o

KEgBEHEZHSBAFS
R AMBRRMEE3()

HEARNEERHNAFHER
mRZEERES  AEE K
SRIUMEERE At T g
VEER - ERREREER
mRRRE - HARKIREZTEH
RBREHE 2 R EESF °

commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective land use rights, are situated in No. 1678 and No.
1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC
and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada Street and
Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms
of 2-3 years and with options to renew upon expiry at new
terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(r) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise the reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.
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(b)

(%

AT RBKREREREEEE
HMEZARFRBENKZEH
BT

(a

(Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

2020 2019

ARMTFT ARETFT

M12H831H At 31 December RMB’000 RMB'000
1R Within one year 28,316 38,875
FE2F In the second year 8,906 18,939
FE3IF In the third year 4,005 6,437
E4F In the fourth year 2,166 1,436
F5F In the fifth year — 718
43,393 66,405

AABEETTENFMER

HERELEMENAAEBE
- RSB KR I A8
EXAERMNMGEEMETHE
B BEREEBUYIEXSER
MEEMENAE B EE
B i (B B AT DA R AR B 2L ) 8
BaA - HEAREENMOE
B RAES  BEMER
AL EummSEEEZ
ZH A BEEINEENR
MTELUMEOEMBHEBBER
FHERTS - ERAAMNERE
RS2 ELEMRZLR
MBUMXE RIS
xR BEREEER TR AE
HEMEAMNETRRARE
BER - EEEDEAREER
B MENRSMRRERES
HEATMZE °
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(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique
and inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived
at using income capitalisation approach. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units of the commercial
properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by
the valuer for similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’'s knowledge of the factors specific to
the respective properties. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.
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AABEFENFMEREE)

AEBzREEEHENRTL
BEAENHEEAABENS
3R RAFEREALEBEHA
BEEMRBISERR3EH -

FRAREMEFHEEBEZTA

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment

properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value

hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The following table gives information on significant

BN AEZRNT unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:

2020 2020
TABRE MR AR
DMABENRE

REMEE HEZOREEHA BEATABASHNEA Relationship of

Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to

properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value

R EERRE  WaERBE

K pE A Income capitalisation

FEE5 approach

Commercial e

properties and car EEWA -

parks in Shanghai The key inputs are:

A Hfe 0 B #R ZERIEWAER L BANE FANERENE®REER

and Tianjin

Reversion yield

RiFBESRAERNGENELER
OB HRAVEREESHNE
W EEE LB B R5.00% Rk
4.50% @ ERZR DRI 55.00% %
6.00% 52 3.00% °

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental
derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary
rental potential of the commercial
properties and car parks of 5.00%
and 4.50% respectively in Shanghai
and 5.00% to 6.00% and 3.00% in
Tianjin respectively.

L g REUEHEN
ARBEAEETHK k2
TRIR

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
AABASE @ AR
DRABENRE
REMEME HEROREEHA BERFAE RS EHEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
[REA=EE BEYE

Daily market rent

224 EEEZERERAR
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ZERINMHE B RHREENE
EMERGZENENREZ - 115
mEFE - FEARXEEAVES
AmEHe T AR HEEETE
FHADRREBARETIOTEA
R#1M20t R ARK3.00LEA
R¥4.857T ¢

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.10 to RMB11.20
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.00 to RMB4.85 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

FES

ZRIERE  wHELERYEEY
ERFzRAMERNEE - mhmk
F& . FERREEEEELNE
EmsHe D R/ARE27.09T
&R 16.007T

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.09 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16.00 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FRHSATEREES L
oS RALFBEND
ABEHES LA RZ
% o

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
2019 2019
AABASG L@ AR
DMREENBRER
REMEWE HEEOREEHA BEATABASHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
R EERkRZE WEERLE
B E R YEM Income capitalisation
FEG approach
Commercial o
properties and TR
car parks The key inputs are:
i Shanghai R OE % ERUBSUNERN BRNEREE FAGEBENEREES -
and Tianjin EREBNARMELBLEN BAY SLRALBHENLABENE

Reversion yield

5 A

Daily market rent

$REESNHEEUEXELEAFIAR
5.00% [.4.50% » EXZ B2 5 45.50%
£6.00% £23.00% °

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental derived
from the existing tenancies with due
allowance for reversionary rental
potential of the commercial properties
and car parks of 5.00% and 4.50%
respectively in Shanghai and 5.50%
to 6.00% and 3.00% in Tianjin
respectively.

BAYE

ZRINRE HHERURBERNEENE
AgZBNERNRR mAmRFE b
BRREBRANEGATSHS]ARA
HHERET BT A AR REARKT.07
TEARENIGTRARE3ITITEA
RE4667 ¢

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into account
the time, location, and individual
factors such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
commercial properties, ranging from
RMB7.07 to RMB11.16 per square
meter per day on lettable area basis
in Shanghai and from RMB3.17 to
RMB4.66 per square meter per day on
lettable areas basis in Tianjin.

BT k2R -

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.

FRNEETSHESERLT &
SREUEHENDABENER
EA RN

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) 2AABEMHENTGERRE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
IR ¥ Rod i) DN
DREENRE
REMEIBE REZLHREEGA BRFABAEH NG A Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
FE5
ZRIKHE HHREBRNEFENER S
ZANENREZ  wAmkFR - LR
REBEFENNGETZREAHRA
RE26. 77T TRAR®16.007T °
Car parks
Daily market rents, taking into account
of the time, location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
properties of RMB26.77 per unit for car
park spaces in Shanghai and RMB16.00
per unit for car park spaces in Tianjin.
e
BERZE  Electrical
KAEELH Machinery ~ appliances ~ %BRE  HEIR
Freehold B¥ and and Miscellaneous Construction it
land Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment i progress Total
ARBTL  AREFT  ARETL  ARETL  ARKTR  ARKTE  AREFZ
RMBU00  RMBU0O  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBO0O
(fta)  (KEb)
(Note a) (Note b)
REERE- Reconciliation of carrying amount -
BZ2019812A318  year ended 31 December 2019
LEE
REA At beginning of the year 116283 7832877 15419572 52,673 855,562 650,663 24,927,630
hE Additions 49,469 134,497 11,806 617,665 977434 1,790,871
REEB W) Impairment loss (Aot ¢/ - - (152,050) - - - (152,050)
kR Transfer upon completion - 816,780 210279 6,814 108,115 (1,141,989) -
e Disposals - (110308)  (169,750) (13622 (131,599 - (425,279)
HE-HEMBRR  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (154,851) (24,495) (134) (2,961) - (182,441)
& Depreciation (491097 (200512 (16,031)  (244,584) - 924
EXER Exchange differences 4,948 253 2 2 - 7484
REER At end of the reporting period 120231 7945400 13,217,543 41508 1,202,198 486,109 23,013,991
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EEYE
BERRE  Electrical
KASELH Machinery ~ appliances ~ HERE  HRIR
Freehold i 5 and and Miscellaneous Construction st
land  Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment  in progress Total
ABBTL AREFT  ARETR  AREFT  ARETT  ARETR  AREFR
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
(fiida)  (Hitb)
(Note a) (Note b)
REENE- Reconciliation of carrying amount -
8220205128318 year ended 31 December 2020
LEE
REA] Atbeginning of the year M3 7945402 13217583 41,508 1202198 486,109 23,013,991
AE Additions - 1112 164,568 9,921 613,632 1347937 2,147,170
HESEMHE) Impairment loss (Aot ¢/ - - (66,191) — - - (66,191)
ERkER Transfer upon completion — 163236 1,027,040 4020 174434 (1369,630) -
e Disposals - (24,562) (80,404) (2,548) (71,620) - (179,134)
HE-HEMBRE  Disposals - disposal of
(Wiz41) subsidiaries (Note 41) - (43,578) (18,537) (11,477) (68,756) - (142,348)
ik Depreciation - (498,043)  (1,787,674) (11,803) (538,290) —  (2835810)
EREE Exchange differences (2,028) (1,005) (53) 21) - - (3,107)
REER At end of the reporting period 119203 7552562 12,457,192 29,600 1,311,598 464,416 21,934,571
R2020%51518 At 1 January 2020
RE Cost 21,31 12363247 32,108,916 208924 4927395 486,109 50,215,822
ZENFERE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses — (4417845 (18,891373) (167,416)  (3,725,197) - (27,201,831)
REFE Net carrying amount MBI 7945402 1321758 M508 1202198 486,100 23,013,991
R2020%127318 At 31 December 2020
RE Cost 119203 12,381,380 32,537,228 169,961 5,021,638 464,416 50,693,826
ZHTEMAESE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (4,828818) (20,080,036) (140,361) (3,710,040 —  (28,759,255)
BERE Net carrying amount 119203 7552562 12,457,192 29600 1311598 464416 21,934,571
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GEE

TR B AN A S
i o

REER  AEEETHRENEE
BEREFANIEHRBEEERTZ
T ABRE TS AES - REFE
%8 A A R ¥ 40,915,000 70(2079
F AR #47659000T) EF
RE - NEBEZEEBUARGERE
L EEY) o

FRAEBRELTEARR SR
EBEREEE(LTE AEEE
BEEENERBEDALERKAE
FORERBEERA - Ft - HR
REHMEMEMBE - £ESE
AEEE FEERKERED
BRE© 58 A AR 66,191,000T
(20194 : AR ¥ 152,050,000 7T)
BE2IHREE - AEBEAETEEN
ERELEEREE  TEEEE
BTFUEE - BEEMBEOERE
HEFBTEK -
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group's certain buildings with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB40,915,000 (2019: RMB47,659,000) have
not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.

During the year, the Group continued to implement a rationalisation
plan for both the instant noodle and beverage segments under
which the Group had devoted more efforts on promoting asset-light
through the optimisation of capacity allocation so as to improve
operational efficiency and reduce operational costs. Accordingly,
certain individual machinery and equipment with carrying amount
of RMB66,191,000 (2019: RMB152,050,000) were fully impaired
due to prolonged period of being idle and technical obsolescence
with comparably low production efficiency. The Group decided not
to re-use these machinery and equipment and all those assets are
prepared to be disposed of. The residual values of these machinery
and equipment were estimated to be insignificant.
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EREEE Right-of-use assets
BEAURSE
HELih>
tihfERE
Land use R
right in HitR1E
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other Ha
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ANRBFT ARBMTT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REESHE - Reconciliation of carrying amount —

#ZE2019F 12831  year ended 31 December 2019

HIEFE
REY)—HEMEBTH At beginning of the year -

WELERE 1657 upon adoption of HKFRS 16 3,657,657 535,161 6,905 4,199,723
NE Additions 42,386 214,368 6,865 263,619
MEEET Lease modification — (56,623) (185) (56,808)
& Disposals (17,126) — — (17,126)
HE-HEMNMEAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (65,143) — — (65,143)
e Depreciation (105,272) (190,507) (3,362) (299,141)
REEER At the end of the reporting period 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
AREEYER- Reconciliation of carrying

EZ2020F12A31 amount - year ended

ALEFE 31 December 2020
REY] At beginning of the year 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
NE Additions 87,961 178,709 5,780 272,450
MEEET Lease modification — (24,866) (1,147) (26,013)
HE Disposals (5,957) — — (5,957)
HE—HEMBAR Disposals - disposal of

(Hizt41) subsidiaries (Note 41) (32,851) (121,605) (873) (155,329)
e Depreciation (100,704) (200,440) (4,675) (305,819)
REER At the end of

the reporting period 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
®2020%1 418 At 1 January 2020
BN Cost 4,280,469 686,625 13,562 4,980,656
Z2EIE Accumulated depreciation (767,967) (184,226) (3,339) (955,532)
IRENFE Net carrying amount 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
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EREEE(£) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
BERF
HEtihz
T E AR
Land use IR
right in Hit:% ks
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other wmE
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total

ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20205128318 At 31 December 2020

DN Cost 4,327,388 614,400 16,162 4,957,950
ZEITE Accumulated depreciation (866,437) (280,203) (6,854)  (1,153,494)
HRIEFE Net carrying amount 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
rEBRRFEEMMEES T The Group leases various buildings, machinery and other
F BN EAMERE o BN T 1A equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
HE30F - month to 30 years.
BE 6 = B2 Restrictions or covenants
Brtiu{E AN REHOHE - B Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
JEELEALE  BRIEREEE PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
ErARAERFER MAERTE is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
HERERBEBEEE by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.
MWEHEmNS  ~5EBEBEH For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
MERBEZTTAN  WRABEE properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
WS A RMENRRAARNZE - their original condition at the end of the lease.
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Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
payment terms that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.

HEESE Lease liabilities
2020 2019
ARETT AEETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000

HEERE Lease liabilities

MENER D Current portion 101,191 199,664
IERENE D Non-current portion 215,609 287,892
316,800 487,556
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HEEEE)
RERAEECHERIA TR

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

2020 2019
ARETFT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK - Lease payments:
MEHE Short-term leases 128,507 185,607
EKEBEE Low-value assets 1,369 3,063
P8 RTER 2 X Expenses recognised in profit or loss 129,876 188,670
WIEAR T B FIE Z A]#  Variable lease payments that do
HERNFKHEREBEAN) not depend on an index or
MHEE a rate (as lessee) under leases 37,237 31,783
MRERRER B Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 167,113 220,453
mEEELE RS MHARRE Total cash outflow for leases 365,853 426,331

HEARE

B2020F 12 A31H » AEBE B &
EHARAB s BAKSERIAE
XC2HEGN - AT AERRR
MHNEHEBER ZHEBEEENRE
A R #38,102,0007T(20194F A
E#8011,0005T) e

MN2020612 A31H  REED &
= A K #30,949,000 T(2019 4 -
AFCH#42.448,000T) 7 FEHRFEE o
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Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2020, the Group was committed to lease
contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB38,102,000 (2019: RMB8,011,000).

At 31 December 2020, the Group was committed to
RMB30,949,000 for short-term leases (2019: RMB42,448,000).
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KEIRFF A
B EE Water
Concession resource et
right license Total
AREFT AREFr AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEYE Reconciliation of carrying amount
-HZ2019%F12H31H - Year ended 31 December 2019
LFE
REA At beginning of the year 167,082 19,376 186,458
NE Additions — 158 158
B Amortisation (5,201) (1,205) (6,406)
b 5 3R Exchange realignment 3,199 — 3,199
REER At end of the reporting period 165,080 18,329 183,409
AREEH IR Reconciliation of carrying amount
-HZ2020512H31H - Year ended 31 December 2020
LFE
READ At beginning of the year 165,080 18,329 183,409
NE Additions — 1,118 1,118
g Amortisation (5.194) (1,209) (6,403)
[ 5 Exchange realignment (12,456) — (12,456)
REEH At end of the reporting period 147,430 18,238 165,668
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KERFAE
BEHRER Water
Concession resource #at
right license Total
AR¥TFT AR¥FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
"2020F1H1H8 At 1 January 2020
[B#N Cost 206,030 24,025 230,055
R EEH Accumulated amortisation (40,950) (5,696) (46,646)
165,080 18,329 183,409
7202012 A31H At 31 December 2020
DN Cost 191,561 25,143 216,704
BEET Accumulated amortisation (44,131) (6,905) (51,036)
147,430 18,238 165,668

B EERIEN2012F 3 A% Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
AEHERELE KSR - FF result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
MERERTAREBE RS - 0
BE DHELHERERERD R
EELREER  UEKERPEK
B 89 15 FE P AR T WCER AR B - UL P9 AR
EEAENINAZHIOFE - AEF

The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately

SERT IR -

IKERFF A B AR B IR A A
EESREE M RKOERN

ERNE 20 FANBELRRHH

BVEERBRAEAGTEALER

BEIERHRFETRENR -
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39 years.

Water resource license represents a right to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which is
amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.
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2020 2019
ARMTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PR R AR (A Cost and carrying amount
M2019F 12 H31H K At 31 December 2019 and
2020% 12 A31H 31 December 2020 97,910 97,910

BEEEANREE  REEBNHH
REERLBRATHEALZE - K
KmiGERMEEEEEROER S
BOMEBOMNES - ELNETER
BoRER RSEMTTE A #
MEFEENERZRE - Bt A
B AT AR AT S

BERMERBESEESEEARN
SERELBEU(RELE
2 DAETRER

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group's
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2020 2019

ARETFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

K Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEREKEEONFE((RREL
EEBEM]DIER 2017 FWEMMNE
EA KB ERAB(MMNE ST
% 1)25% AR - 722020412 A 31
B AEEZEMMNESATLHE
eRE EAFESRHESELS
MR ATKREl©%E - STERAERE
ZEHAEANAFHUBEENRS
METEH - BBSFMNHEEREEL
LA2% (2019 4F : 2% )H) RHIE R =X
HEHER EEEREILSERIEH
MITEERTEAN - W EBBMABEIT
E¥NFHRPEER -

KmReELBEMREEMREE
SR o e EEeEREE
SR ERHORIE -

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Limited (“HZPS") in 2017. At
31 December 2020, the Group assessed the recoverable amount
of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow projection
of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the board of directors covering a
5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a 2% (2079: 2%) long-term growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the value
in use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.

B EER
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ARETECABENEZHREMNE Key assumptions and inputs used for the value in use calculation
AT are as follows:

2020 2019
ETES Gross profit margin 37% 39%
I ER Average growth rate 8% 8%
RAPE R & Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
R = Discount rate 9% 9%
EEEREBAERBEREYEMGE Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
ENTEHETEEENR  REH on past performance and its expectation of market development.
T R AR AT - Wk M Bk IR The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
CELBMEBENBETERAR to the Beverages CGU.
br EiEFRB IR EAEEMAY Apart from the considerations described above in determining
O&HEZIBERI KABEEEI the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company'’s
THBEBEMEMAITESTER N E management is not aware of any other probable changes that
B EE) - would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.
R2020F 12 A31BEEHE R A Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 are shown in
ZFBIRR A M RRMEE47 - note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.
BREEAHERRRAFEERALE None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
BAKEEES - during the year or at the end of the reporting period.
EpNE - IR Significant judgements and assumptions
R2017F  AATEEZEWE R In 2017, Master Kong PBB Investment Limited (formerly known
AIEMEGRREEGR LA (R A as PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd.) (“MKPI"), a non-wholly
BEHBE)REAGRAR)IER owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
"EDEEAR—ZMMNE Er] A purchase agreement (the “SPA") with one of the shareholders (the
RR(IEA DI VEEHE(ES “Vendor") of HZPS to acquire 25% equity interest in HZPS from
&l MEARERMNE ST the Vendor. In addition, the Vendor also issued an authorisation
25% PEAE o fL4N - BEH A B RIE letter (the “Authorisation Letter”) to MKPI under which MKPI
BEHREZ((KEEZ]) BEZ shall be entitled irrevocably to all the rights and benefits of the
KEE BRREBREZRESE aforesaid 25% equity interest in HZPS currently held by the
B(IEEEZ SR B BTN Vendor for a period up to the completion date of the registration
AT REEZEE A of the equity transfer (the “Equity Transfer”). At the end of the
B il 25% F N B =] ZE AR reporting period, the management estimated that the registration
—PEFMEFZE e REER & of the Equity Transfer with the relevant government authority will
32 Z 14 71 B AR B8 BT B0 P 9% 1R A0 A% be completed not later than the end of 2021.
B EE T KR TER 2021 FIERT
FERK °
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Significant judgements and assumptions (Continued)

Through the execution of the SPA and Authorisation Letter, the
Group holds 50% equity interest in HZPS and has more than a
majority of the voting rights of HZPS. Since the relevant activities
which significantly affect HZPS's return are determined by the
board of directors of HZPS based on a simple majority vote, the
management concluded that the Group has control over HZPS
and HZPS is treated as a subsidiary of the Group.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material non-controlling interest (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”), the only subsidiary
of the Group which has material NCI. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before inter-company

AIFEERI 228 - eliminations.
20205 R2019%
12A31H 12A318
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
DERET IR 2 AL B Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 22.09%
DERER IR 2 W ERELL  Proportion of NCI's voting rights 27% 33%
720205 R2019%
12A31H 12A318
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥FT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MENEE Current assets 14,196,877 12,260,392
EMEBNEE Non-current assets 17,988,008 17,824,052
mENEE Current liabilities (15,598,717) (14,719,312)
EREEE Non-current liabilities (1,385,685) (1,086,150)
FEE Net assets 15,200,483 14,278,982
DB R A REE Carrying amount of NC| 3,578,274 3,351,070
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BEANEADHBERER ZHBE QAN

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BEER (&) material non-controlling interest (“NCI") (Continued)
HZE20205F HZ=2019%F
12A31H 12A318
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥TFT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ek Revenue 37,279,923 35,599,621
IR [ A Profit for the year 2,105,463 1,339,022
Hih 2wz (EE) Other comprehensive income (loss) 140,876 (26,900)
FEWEEEE Total comprehensive income 2,246,339 1,312,122
DB R AE S R i A Profit attributable to NCI 511,420 393,083
DR R ERIENS Total comprehensive income
EEW B attributable to NCI 542,544 385,795
B EE R RS Dividends paid to NCI (297,235) (115,918)
g (FR)IReREFEE Net cash flows from (used in):
KRS Operating activities 5,104,607 5,258,978
HEED Investing activities (1,792,237) (1,086,765)
BEEE Financing activities (882,456) (2,546,361)
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FEEREZHBARRRREZEIES
]

202065 R &E BH @ — &
BUE=ZFAUREREARE
20,509,000 T BRI B R £ R
BAERAR(IRZER S L ])EN
B9.35% M EREZ  FAEER
RAEBEALNEBER#EH68.56%
WAET7.91% - RIREER - XEA
SR MNERERBKREEA
B ANR#17,423,0007T ° Atk D
HRFEER T AARKE17,423,000
T MAPEBRREENRmERD
cHREYNNReREBELHNERE
A ANR# 3,086,000 TO A ALZAR
BA RS A E D ER R
RoFEHEIF  -REA - RERED
EH I

Major changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries

In May 2020, the Group acquired additional 9.35% of effective
equity interest of Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited
("TJBL") from an independent third party at a cash consideration
of RMB20,509,000, resulting in an increase in the Group’s
effective equity interests in TJBL from 68.56% to 77.91%. On the
acquisition date, the total carrying amount of the 9.35% effective
equity interest in TJBL was amounted to RMB17,423,000. As at
the result, the NCI was decreased by RMB17,423,000 and the
difference of RMB3,086,000 between the amount by which the
carrying amount of NCI have decreased and the consideration
paid were recorded in “Transactions with non-controlling interests
reserve” within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The cash consideration was fully settled during the year.

2020 2019

AR¥TFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

LMD - A Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
JEML BB R A Share of post-acquisition results 90,572 73,028
B U B WA F Dividend received since acquisition (66,448) (4,169)
94,802 139,537

EEEER 239

2020 Annual Report 4 #§



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4

YNGR U

jarty
in
jun
fuas]

o

Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

TEEE/

it B

Principal rEERAEZ

place of ERBERESILH

business Ef R A Proportion of effective
LN and place of Registered  ownership interestheld ~ B
Name of associate incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities

2020 2019

ARAENESHERLF i US$16,000,000  38.96% 3896%  RERHEEHE
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of

beverages

WA BB = R B TR s R DI BRI AR
BMBHRES

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

ERFERBE DT 2 HBER

TRINRAKEIZER AR Z
RISEEABE R AW A FTREE M

Financial information of individually immaterial associate

The table below shows the carrying amount and the Group's
share of results of an associate that is not individually material and

REEREIGES -

accounted for using the equity method.

R2020F 20194
12H31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR EE Carrying amount of interests 94,802 139,537
BZ2020%F EHZE20194F
12HA31H 12A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥FT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEFEL Group's share of:
RE 5 A Profit for the year 17,544 11,812
HAth 2 H W E Other comprehensive income — —
2HEkEEE Total comprehensive income 17,544 11,812
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2020 2019
AREFTT ABEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JEEMRGD - RERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 452,832 452,832
JEML B R A Share of post-acquisition results 819,026 706,134
B W iEZ B WA T Dividend received since acquisition (644,827) (269,901)
627,031 889,065
REEHASL DRI ZHMAHT|MT - Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
TEEE/
it S
Principal
place of AREREL
operation/ ERBEREERLA
Place R Proportion of effective
RENRERE of Registered ~ ownership interestheld FE¥%
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2020 2019
RRKLARERAT hE US$11,000,000 31.82%  31.82% MIRHERXESD
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
FE (M) RmBRAF i US$24,000,000 60% 60%  MIRHEAEER
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of meat
products
LTEAZIEBHBRAA i US$28,120,000 3896% = 3896%  HEREEHM
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
EEBFUERNARLR ([EHAE]) EP RMB150,000,000 6233% = 62.33% EEREESRR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. ("JNPS") PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
IREAREERAR i RMB400,000 25% 25%  Ret BUERREES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and
agency of advertising
AN ERBAEERARTIZEREY R All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
HEIRE U BERERS - method in the consolidated financial statements.
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BEANHERBES Significant judgements and assumptions
REBEZEBR—BE2EWNBAREA The Group has 60% voting rights in Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co.,
FEE(EIMN) B MARRDF60% % Ltd. through a wholly owned subsidiary. However, based on a
ZERE R BRIEZEEWBERA contractual agreement between the wholly owned subsidiary
HE-—REEZANEGRBZ ¥ and another investor, the relevant activities which significantly
WIKELQHRBEERTENHEAER affect the investee’s return require the unanimous consent of all
BEMEREE —BURE - At investors. Therefore, the Group determined that it has no control
REBREEHZEE T AT H but joint control over this entity.

B A LRSI -

AEBFEB—HEEEEERA S The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
80% W AR ZIFEEHRABNBE R through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
AMBAEEREEE62.33% 2 ERE equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
EHEREX c AT BIEZIEL2EH agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
BEffBARIEEMIREE ZHBHE investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
FEths HRELQFEEATERN the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
HEEEEESER A I &0R of JNPS. By virtue of the Group's contractual right to appoint 4
ERAFIEEZEZHIBI0% NIKERE out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
KR —F o BIESWEF  KEH has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
EEMBEEMNSRESTANE]TH4 as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
ZEZ BASLEFEAS 2K economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
BEKHENVERBMEERR non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.

BRAIRZZIFE2ERBHBRAM
Hib R EEFRE —BORTE - AR
SERSEREIOSYEREAE
HIREE A LRI B -
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ERIZFERSE QR ZHMBER

TRIVURA S EIZ# ak 2 85 3F
BEARGERAMNAERAERAS

ESEES

Financial information of individually immaterial joint

ventures

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the

Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually

material and accounted for using the equity method.

120205 72019
12831H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARMTF T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
T ARAE(E Carrying amount of interests 627,031 889,065
BZ2020%F BHZE20194F
12H31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥TFTT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEFEM Group's share of:
AEF & A Profit for the year 112,892 222,347
E 2w Other comprehensive income — —
PHEUN TR Total comprehensive income 112,892 222,347

o ot
:

B 3y

hu)

s

=

o

EEZRR AREREEMNEKRN
A

In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually

material to the Group.
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2020 2019
it AR¥FT AR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BFVPLEEWEBMEE Financial assets at FVPL
—REES — Investment funds (a) 1,329,281 1,134,392
— E R ARES — Equity securities, listed (b) 198 282
—JE FTRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (0) — 18,867
1,329,479 1,153,541

EEFvod Designated FVOCI

—IF F TR AR 5 — Equity securities, unlisted (d) 140,444 115,614
1,469,923 1,269,155

Hfat - Note:

BREESRNEE(2019F - N 1E)
Ee2RE DR —HKRZIREH
SEMNARAEFABLEE  —RK
TR ERER LS (HE R LR
SDMAEREFTAREE =K
SR E A D AR E E R A
Ko PRI 53 3 B SZ 7 2 78 I 38 A3 A
BOBREERF - UARERAR
SEREESURIAEERMER
B - RNEER REEZSHNAR
EROMAHAESKLERETERA
{8 -

ERAEFN A BERERES
BHRZNTIHRETEE
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The investment funds represent investments in seven (2079. six)
funds which were set up as a limited partnership in the Cayman
Islands, a company with liability limited by shares incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), three companies with liability
limited by shares incorporated in the PRC and two companies
with liability limited by shares incorporated in the Hong Kong and
Singapore respectively, aiming at allocating idle funds reasonably
and increasing return on asset. The fair value of the investment
funds were valued by the respective investment managers or trust
administrators at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on
a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.
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MisE : (& Note: (Continued)
© REFRN AEEREREARE () During the year, the Group disposed of these unlisted equity

65,934,000 (A AEENEHER
HOMARE)HEIELTRAES -
LMW AFHFZ AREETIES
EZHRERAFEF 2 EEFERET -

AEBMA A FE S T IE LT
RFEHRERE RIEEFVOCH
BZERAFLFEAEERESRE
BERBEEMNIRE - ELTRA
RENAABEFTZASEMNEE
KIBTEREHARGE 2ABEE
) A K # 32,456,000 70(2019 F -
ARH#3,199,000 L) B AREE
HEREBECTITED) - HEHRER
EANEENEBEFERERBA

securities at an aggregate consideration of RMB65,934,000 which
approximate their fair values at the date of disposal. The fair value
of unlisted equity securities is determined with reference to the net
assets value of the underlying equity securities.

The Group irrevocably designated certain investments in unlisted
equity securities as Designated FVOCI because the Group intends
to hold these equity securities for long term for strategic purposes.
The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were mainly
valued by the respective investment managers at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in fair value of RMB32,456,000 (2079:
RMB3,199,000) were credited to investment revaluation reserve
(non-recycling). The valuation techniques and significant inputs used
in the measurement of the fair values of the investment funds are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEHERE M IERAM T 44

The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

TREEDATINEEINE

2020 2019
ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

EI us$ 698,621 541,312
AR RMB 771,104 727,561
HAfb Others 198 282
1,469,923 1,269,155
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2020 2019
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 1,163,642 1,077,257
R Work in progress 80,018 82,355
2K Finished goods 2,104,016 2,285,463
3,347,676 3,445,075
2020 2019
ARTFT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FELBR 5K Trade receivables
—E=5 — From third parties 1,551,301 1,538,163
—ARRARZEBREIES -~ From companies controlled by
pa A VNS a substantial shareholder
of the Company 32,683 40,230
—ARRBIEFH — From companies controlled by
KEERK B KRB izl the family members and relatives
SEAR VNG of the Company's directors 2,005 1,684
— BT — From an associate 1,300 2,178
/NG — From joint ventures 73,100 87,270
1,660,389 1,669,525
REBZHEKRIS M ABLEREE The majority of the Group's sales are cash-before-delivery. The
BRTHHE 2 EEHFEFER3I0E90 remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
X o 30 to 90 days.
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BRAEABRR N BREE) RN E

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),

BHARBEZEHRE KR DT

based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as

e N follows:
2020 2019
AR¥FT AR TF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90Xk 0 - 90 days 1,579,741 1,568,425
90 KA+ Over 90 days 80,648 101,100
1,660,389 1,669,525

JEW IR EEAARKTIE -

BRAREREEREERRNE

BER R A MR T 43

statements.

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of trade
receivables is included in note 43 to the consolidated financial

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

2020 2019
et AR TF T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BRER Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 55,497 124,283
TAfS R AR Prepayments for purchase of equipment 18 22,008
FEHIE(E R Prepaid value-added taxes 254,483 773,728
AL ER Y Prepaid operating expenses 941,008 1,058,752
JE W & R Loan receivables 25(a) 225,000 280,000
FE & 2R K Other receivables from sales of
equipment 25(b) — 149,842
U R 2, Interest receivables 25(c) 213,038 102,087
"e Deposits 108,242 114,490
EREHEREES R Other receivables from disposal
SEETRAFHN of investment funds and
unlisted equity securities 96,394 —
Hith Others 347,218 227,279
2,240,898 2,852,469
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25(a) FEE R

EWERTEREEZHMER
AERTESTEMEHEER
MEAFHEIELEERR X
15 tERWERAERT
AR —FRNEERNFEAR
3.85% £5.00% (20719 4 -
505%F6.15%)HEK °

ARAREEAHHFIRETHR
HERRT _EAREZHEEK
B WEEREFEHZDR
EREBREREERRS -

25(b) EYHERBERK

B it R A TR 2 0 28
BEORLBRT - LFLE
REER  FEFSRANE
KESEIE -

25(c) YRS

R A BB RETEMERR
RITHEER o
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25(a) Loan receivables

Loan receivables represent the advances made by
subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers and subcontractors of the Group for financing their
operations. The loan receivables are unsecured, repayable
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period and
bear interest ranging from 3.85% to 5.00% (2019: from
5.05% to 6.15%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

25(b) Other receivables from sales of equipment

Other receivables from sales of equipment arose from the
sales of machineries and equipment and were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

25(c) Interest receivables

Interest receivables arose from the long-term time deposits
and cash at bank.
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2020 2019
AR¥TFT AEHTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHTEER Long-term time deposits 2,435,000 725,000
RITHEBR R ® Bank balances and cash 21,393,321 17,397,557
EIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 37,832 32,830
RITERRREEF Total cash at bank and on hand 23,866,153 18,155,387
REATFHFEZER A3F - WikIEE The long-term time deposits are made for periods of three years
AEBAER A R EREF S - F 8K and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest rate
53.45% E4.18% 2 (20194 ranging from 3.45% to 4.18% (2019: 3.70% to 4.10%) per
3.70% %24.10% 2 ) ° annum.
BHETFERE PEE - (EARE The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
REE—RBETLEFTHE(BIER trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
ITEGIER)MIRITREZIERS - bills, granted to the Group by banks.
MEERERENMES  RITER A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
ERESHEREEEM2HERNOT equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements is as follow:
2020 2019
ARB¥FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITFER N Cash at bank and on hand 23,866,153 18,155,387
B REFEEER Less: long-term time deposits (2,435,000) (725,000)
BeMREFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21,431,153 17,430,387
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RITHERKEIBEAFTUATYEET Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following
& : currencies:
2020 2019
ARMTFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 23,386,552 17,818,874
e us$ 439,022 293,974
BT EUR 138 761
=kt NTD 21,867 25,309
Hity Others 18,574 16,469
23,866,153 18,155,387
FEAASEZINVERR REER Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk
ERERE B SRR s 43 5t - discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
2020 2019
RER NN
Equivalent to Equivalent to

RHEE i AREFR kL FET  AREFT
No. of shares Usso0 RMB000  No. of shares Us§ 000 AMB 000

EE Authorised:
BR0.005%T2 &R Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
BEARAR: lssued and fully paid:
REA At the beginning of the year 5,623,786,360 28,120 235401 5,617,968 360 28091 235,204
REERETE Shares issued under share option scheme

Bz 600,000 3 2 5,818,000 29 197
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,624,386,360 28123 235422 | 5,623,786,360 28,120 235,401
RZAER + 600,000 FEREAEESTEE A During the year, 600,000 options were exercised to subscribe
RIBZANAE) 600,000 F @A) - 48 for 600,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
RERARY 4,389,000 * HF A of RMB4,389,000, of which RMB21,000 was credited to issued
R¥21,000 Lt AR BITHRA - M capital and the balance of RMB4,368,000 was credited to the
Eeh AR 4,368,000 70 ARR D 55 share premium account. In addition, RMB1,323,000 has been
BiR - 35 - AR¥ 1,323,000 TH transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
BREREESBRERMEER - Z premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
ERENEFTEER ARG ZEA shares in all respects.
LR o
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2020 2019

ARHTFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REH] At beginning of the year 724,384 664,400
RIEBER AT 813577 2% {p  Shares issued under share option scheme 5,691 59,984
REEER At the end of the reporting period 730,075 724,384

REMEERRIRL - ERF Ak
BRERIRNDE  THfEURREHE
A ET  ERTRODEAEH
REha EHEREREER

B aER2ERRREMESHS
NERZHTE °

ERARRERREZB/RT - &K
RAZBEER DI TRE
HARRAR D IREADERENER
ERBEBHEBRAN 2 ER

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

=4 REEM
RE#ER B
R5hkE (FrEmE)
&in Transactions SME - vestment  IEE(
ERGEE  EEERE withnon-  BERE  revaluation BR#E BIRERE
Capital  Remeasur-  controling  Exchange reserve Property  —MEE  Sharebased  (REEF
redemption ement interests  translation (Non- revaluation General payment Retained et
reserve reserve reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total
NEEFT  AREFT ARETT  AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 AMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
R201951518 At 1 January 2019 400 (37473) (969,897) (520,362) (8.204) 9,869 4,302,363 422,395 15,554,781 18,753,872
REERF Profitfor the year - — - - - - - - 3330981 3,330,981
B2 E(FR) hiz Other comprehensive (loss) income
AEBHMEMZERE  Remeasurement of defined benefits
obligations - (65,490) - - - - - - (65,490)
BENOCIAREEZEH Fair value changes in Designated FVOCI - - - - 3199 - - - - 3,199
BHES Exchange difference on consolidation - - - (132,950) - - - - (132,950)
Bt2E(FE)USEE  Total other comprehensive
(loss) income - (65,490) - (132,950) 3199 - - = - (195,241)
REERE(HE)UHEE  Total comprehensive (loss)
income for the year - (65,490) - (132,950) 3,19 - - - 3,330,981 3,135,740
HENARRZRS Transactions with owners of the
Company:
REEAT Contributions and dlstribution
BREERATNZIE  Equity settled share-based
transactions - - - - - - - 24,504 - 24,504
IRIEERIETBIBTZRE  Shares issued under share
option scheme — — - — — — - (14,080) — (14,080)
BRI Shares option [apsed - - - - - - (40,574) 40,574 -
BRERREE 2018 final and special dividend
WIBFRERE approved and paid - - - - - - — Q4833 (463301)
ERARKET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 359976 - (359,976) -
- - - - - - 359,976 (30,150) (2,782,723) (2,452,897)
BEEZZY Changes in ownershyp interests
BRI Changes in ownership interests
HEATEEERY in subsidiares without change
in control — — (817,926) — — — — — (817,926)
AADNRARFEZRAEE  Total transactions with owners
of the Company - - (817,926) - - - 359,976 (30,150) (2,782,723) (3,270,8%3)
R019E12ANA At 31 December 2019 400 (102,963) (1,787,823) (653,312) (5,005) 9,869 4,662,339 392,245 16,103,039 18,618,789

252 EEEERAERAR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



LA BTIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHY REEf
BRER ERE
X5 (RAEE)
Rt Transactions SN Investment  MEEf BRERE
BERE EfEHE  withnon-  BERE  revaluation ERE Share-
Capital  Remeasur- controlling  Exchange reserve  Property  —MEfE based  REEF
redemption ement interests translation (Non- revaluation General payment Retained 8
reserve reserve reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ARETR  AREFL  AREFT  AREFL  ARETT  AREFR AREFT AREFR ARETT AREFR
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
R202051518 At 1 January 2020 400 (102,963) (1,787,823 (653,312) (5,005) 9,869 4,662,339 392,245 16,103,039 18,618,789
FERET Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 4,062,263 4,062,263
E2EhE Other comprehensive income
RERHBEMZERE  Remeasurement of defined benefits
W) obligations (Note 39) - 815 - - - - - - 815
RENOULRAEEZEY  Fairvalue changes in Designated
(st 22() FVOCI tote 22(c) - - - - 32,45 - - - 32,456
ENEE Exchange difference on
consolidation - - - 752,306 - - - - 752,306
Ep2EkEEE Total other comprehensive
income - 815 - 752,306 32,456 - - - - 185,511
FEERENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 815 - 752,306 32,456 - - 4,062,263 4,847,840
HANARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEDT Contributions and distribution
FEERGTAZIE  Equiy settled share-based
(Wit30) transactions (Aote 30) - - - - - - - 15,988 - 15,988
IRIEERIE BBTZRG  Shares issued under share
(Wi27) option scheme (Aote 27) - - - - - - - (1303) - (1303)
BRELN Shares option lapsed - - - - - - (75,556) 75,556 -
BRERTEE2019RE 2019 final dividend approved
) and paid (Note 12) - - - - - - - (3,330,981) (3,330,981)
Transfer to retained profits — (3,904) - — — - - — 3,904 -
ERAREER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - 276,431 - (276,431) -
- (3,904) - - - - 276,437 (60,891) (3527,958)  (3,316,316)
BEEZRE Changes in onnership iterests
BEUEEHEY Changes in ownership interests
HEAREREES in subsidiaies without change
(Hit19) in control (Note 19) - - (3,086) - - - - - (3,086)
ARDRAREZRSEE  Total transactions with owners
of the Company — (3,904) (3,086) - - 276,431 (60,891) (3,527,958) (3,319,402)
R2020%E12831R At 31 December 2020 400 (106,052) (1,790,909) 98,994 21451 9,869 4,938,776 331,354 16,637,344 20,147,221

Hib=mE(EBE) K SAKEE T

% o
=

v

20194 K 2020F 98 BT 5 M

s/

%

No income tax effect arose from each component of other

comprehensive (loss) income in 2019 and 2020.
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Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(s) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI as set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
land use right in respect of leasehold land in PRC in accordance
with the accounting policies adopted for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as set out in note 3(d) and 3(r)
to the consolidated financial statements.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(t) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2019 and
the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end
of the respective exercisable period.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).
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EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(@) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2019 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2019: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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(a) 2008 FHBMRETE (&)

20085t &I A EXR T AR
ANENBARZEERES
Z B IRETE LR 2020F &
2019 12 A31BHEERZ X

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

TR AT - as follows:
¥
BREHE
Number of  RITENEREZHE
®TFEH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price  Exercisable period
2020 2019 HK$
200843 H20H 11,760,000 — — 9.28 20134 3AH21H=Z
20 March 2008 201843 H20H
21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018
200944 H22H 26,688,000 — — 938 2014F4H238=%
22 April 2009 201944 H22H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
201064 H1H 15,044,000 — 8,637,000 18.57 2015F4H1H=E
1 April 2010 20203 A31H
1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020
2011947128 17,702,000 @ 9,780,000 10,292,000 19.96 2016F4H12H=
12 April 2011 20214 H118
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
201294 H26H 9,700,000 @ 6,296,000 6,666,000 2054 2017 4R268%
26 April 2012 202254 H25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
20134 5H27H 11,492,000 7,766,000 8,190,000 20.16 20185 H27HZE
27 May 2013 202345 H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
2014944178 12,718,500 = 8,961,000 9,455,000 2238 20199 4R178=%
17 April 2014 202454 H16H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
20156 A5H 17,054,000 13,534,000 14,692,000 16.22 20206 A5H%E
5 June 2015 20256 H4 H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
201657 H4H 10,148,000 = 7,672,000 8,392,000 754 20217 H4B=E
4 July 2016 20267 A3AR
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
201794 H21H8 11,420,000 10,570,000 10,770,000 1020 20229 4A21H=E
21 April 2017 202744 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
AF 143,726,500 64,579,000 77,094,000
Total
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(a) 2008 FEEMIELTE (Z) (a)

752008 3 8179 14 KT 68 2 B R
BRE BT A EE 2

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share

mr Option Schemes are as follows:
2020 2019
InEF1g hniEFg
TEE 1TEME
Weighted Weighted
average BREHE average MEMREZE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS ‘000 HK$ ‘000
NG At beginning of the year 16.74 77,094 16.45 88,024
RERTTE Exercised during the year 7.54 (600) 9.21 (5,818)
REFRE I Forfeited during the year 9.20 (320) 15.54 (436)
REREBUY, K3 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year 18.68 (11,595) 20.78 (4,676)
R&EER At the end of the reporting
period 16.51 64,579 16.74 77,094

RITER - FRTENBRES M
EFERBAE14.748TT(20194F -
122087L) - THEEHAN EFE
55 B R Y BB IR R AR 2R 7,564,000
(20194 :13,161,000) °

20209128318 MARTHE
REMIMETHHB AL A3.53
F(2019F 4.05F) - WEEER -
RIAT {0 F& A 4 w9 AR BUZ 47,777,000
(20194F : 52,728,000) - 1 # &
B+ AI1T{E & B8 AR 4 A AN T 19 1T
& /19155 (20194 < 19.32
JBIT) °

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
of share options exercised during the year was HK$14.74
(2019: HK$12.20). The number of share options vested
during the reporting period was 7,564,000 (20179:
13,161,000).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2020 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.53 years
(2019: 4.05 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 47,777,000 (2079:
52,728,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$19.15 (2019: HK$19.32).
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(b)

2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders” approval.
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(b) 2018 FHBKRETE (&) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
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The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

EVBBRRIEN T as follows:
RTBEREHE
Number of RITENEREHE
BTFHEH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2020 2019 HK$

20184 H27H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 2021F4H30H=E

27 April 2018 20284 H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028

20184 H27H 5,626,000 3,785,000 3,785,000 16.18 20219 4H30H=E

27 April 2018 2024F4H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024

&t 8,104,000 6,263,000 6,263,000

Total
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(b) 2018 FBEREE(£) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BB 20185 &M ARTTEZ AR Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EERENEESTEE & weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share
mr Option Scheme are as follows:
2020 2019
RS NS
TEEE 1TEME
Weighted Weighted
average BREHE average MEMRESE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REA) At beginning of the year 16.18 6,263 16.18 8,068
RERNTTE Exercised during the year — — — —
RERZI Forfeited during the year — —
REREUY, K3 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year — — 16.18 (1,805)
R&EER At the end of the reporting
period 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
RERKEEBIRERRE RAT None of the options are vested and exercised during the
i o year.
M2020F 12 318 W K17 The options outstanding at 31 December 2020 had a
(EREARRE R INAE TR T & 4V B weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.90 years
BA490F(2019F : 5904F ) » (2019: 5.90 years). At the end of the reporting period, none
ANEER R BERER T - of the options are exercisable.
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2018 FIERE 8 (&) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BERERTERAZAAETIK The fair value of the share options granted is measured at
EZEBZTZIERKRMEIE - A= the date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model,
EXAERETEEREBT - taking into account the terms and conditions of the share-
ZEFERAREENBRER L based arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently
HAAEERXZERS - 2 E subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and
ZHAEALERFBRIEE - the limitations of the model used. The inputs into the model
HEBEREAARERER A are as follows:
BT -

B¥HZ B¥HZ

AREE KmE

SR/Br 8RB TRER EREER
Fairvalue Sharepricc &K/ B7x ZHE BHREE
at grant at grant Exercise  Risk-free ~ BHIKIE FHTESH  Expected

=l date date price interest Expected Expected dividend
Grant date HK$/share  HKS$/share  HKS$/share rate  volatility life yield
20184 A27H 4.50 15.02 16.18 4.09% 34.9% 106 2.3%
27 April 2018 10 years
20184 A27H 3.50 15.02 16.18 4.09% 34.9% 6 2.3%
27 April 2018 6 years

TR B A < — 4 AR P
DA R B EELIRIE
ST IRIED A S 2
BRBRRE B E R b
ox

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
last one year of share option granted. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

cHMAE-EHAZENRE Financial liabilities - contingent

consideration payable

RENER Current portion 9,959 —
FERBE S Non-current portion — 9,674
9,959 9,674

ZeREBEWENMNAEAERESE
MEBRE  FBHARKREMHR

The amount represents the contingent consideration payable
arose from the acquisition of HZPS as detailed in note 19 to the

xKiF19- ElESBENOREBEESR
BEPAEOEERHEANMNES

AEMBEEFFNENE—FoEE
e ENRBEREZAAEBERBA
R #9,959,0007C(20194F : A B
9,674,0007T) - TART A IR 8 8 52
K E % B E KBRS R IRFVPLER I8
MEmMBEZREID (2019F -
JEENEE ) o

FR RERBZARBEEZSE
B A ARK285000 T2t AR
(20194F : Yax AR 188,0007T) °

consolidated financial statements which was determined based
on a certain portion of projected net profits of HZPS for specified
period as defined in the SPA. The fair value of the contingent
consideration payable was RMB9,959,000 (2079: RMB9,674,000),
which was expected to be due on after the completion date of
the registration of the Equity Transfer and recorded in the current
portion (2019: non-current portion) of financial liabilities at FVPL.

During the year, loss on change in fair value of the contingent
consideration of RMB285,000 (2079: gain of RMB188,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

2020 2019
AR¥TFTT ARE T
RMB’000 RMB’000

RITE Bank loans:
H Secured 157,638 532,528
EEA Unsecured 10,310,892 11,841,931
10,468,530 12,374,459
AR P R R Unsecured notes 3,228,004 —
13,696,534 12,374,459
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B BB 5 5 B R AR IR B R 2 P
ST 3K E SR PR BRI 0 5 1 (22
B 1 A7 5 SR BB (4B 1S 0 )
m -

The maturity of the interest-bearing borrowings and analysis of
the amount due based on scheduled payment dates set out in
the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any repayment on
demand clause) are as follows:

2020 2019
AR¥ T ABEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1ER Within one year 5,891,412 7,454,381
F2HF In the second year 2,655,588 2,104,687
EIFEFESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEER2F) 5,065,216 2,509,470
AFLLE Over five years 84,318 305,921
13,696,534 12,374,459
WHEARDEEILS Portion classified as current liabilities (5,891,412) (7,454,381)
FEmeEnEh o Non-current portion 7,805,122 4,920,078

EEBES ARK1172,080,000
TL(20194F : A K #1,880,000,000
T)BE—IGREERRGE TEEARE
FMEREeEmBEMK LR+ @A
BAHNBERLT  BREBEMEE-
BEESTTEHEBEASTFEL
EMNEXEE HEABENEEE
BRBAE -

IniEFH FREE214% (2019
F:371%) o

B RIEEREHR AR -

BROTEREBERIOHERDLE
RKEUREME ME BER
HERFEREEE 2855
A% A R ¥1,122,200,0007T
A R #559,398,000T & A R
#1,460,861,0007L(2019 : %
Bl B A K #1,122,000,0007T *
A B #592584,000T F A FE B
1,505,130,000T )  EE R RITIE
REE . FEmERRITENA
ZEAEEERE XX ERTH R

e

Z= o
=

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,172,080,000 (2079:
RMB1,880,000,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 2.14% (2079: 3.71%) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

The Group's secured bank loans are pledged by certain investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,122,200,000,
RMB559,398,000 and RMB1,460,861,000 respectively (2079
RMB1,122,000,000, RMB592,584,000 and RMB1,505,130,000
respectively). The unsecured bank loans are not pledged and
certain of the unsecured bank loans are covered by several cross
guarantee arrangements amongst the Group's entities.
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AN A B FR2020F9 A24 R # 1T A
@%@%&iz%soo,ooo,ooo%mz#ﬁﬁ
HEBR(ETER] EXZEER
#HE B KR A A495,032,0003%
(& R4 AR 3,228,004,000

TYFABERE RE=FEF
LFIM(BHEREME)  ETR

# 5202049 A 24E| tﬁ?iﬂ x
1.625% 5t B - A B AMN3H24H
%9 A24 B RB¥FZMIAH2021
F3A24B##ZE2025%49 A24H87F|
H o

ENEERTIEESFTIMER
NAEI LM BEMSWE - EXLE
BR2020F 12 31BN A ARER
498,165,000k T(HEE RN & A K
#3,248,434,00070) - ETLEERTY
RAEBNEERES  WRAA
FREAMEERAEE=ZERSH
7 - {2 I MBS i -

TREENETERTHS > — &
RITEEERAEBFEINETERSE
AR - IMRAEEERR
o CEHAMBESANEZREE

t

REBETFHRETHETELLEN
ENERERMEREREER TR
REAEBERBELETELLFE 18
BAIRTTEERIERTHNER - A%H
BRBERBERNE— T FBH
PIRERE T IEREWE43 - REHE
HA - AEBELFEERBEBEHAE
BERENRH(2019F - ##) o

B
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On 24 September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “US$
Notes”). The carrying amount of the US$ Notes at the end of
reporting period is US$495,032,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,228,004,000) and is included in the interest-bearing
borrowings with maturity in the third to fifth years, inclusive. The
US$ Notes bear interest from 24 September 2020 at the rate of
1.625% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrear on 24 March
and 24 September in each year, commencing on 24 March 2021
and will mature on 24 September 2025.

The US$ Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The fair value of the US$ Notes as at 31 December
2020, based on the quoted market price, was US$498,165,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB3,248,434,000). The US$ Notes
are the unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at
least equally with other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2019: None).
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AEBEZBEHE D 2 A ERER
BZAWHIRIMT -

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
borrowings by type is as follows:

2020 2019
ARETFTT ARBFor

RMB’000 RMB’000

(& 7E ) & At fixed rates 4,914,044 1,732,811
I Jjp ] pe At floating rates 8,782,490 10,641,648
13,696,534 12,374,459

BEBENATIE!TIE :

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
2020 2019
AR¥TFT ABREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 1,567,638 2,915,340
ETT us$ 12,128,896 9,459,119
13,696,534 12,374,459

BB RENERR R FIE AR i
— S A B RN 43
Bt -

RERMKTE

AEBERMETE  BERBER
B2mMohlmhE EERGES
77 BT A A e S L RET &) o B
HASEFEARLEFEIZESR
FEBZETASLERETRK . K
SER N LA ASHR - A
BEEXNTE BEMGERET
RIRE R ER 2 B/H) o

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.
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REBATE

REBEBNTAMEEEREERERT
BRETE - AEBEEBRIFEMET
EEEWAEMBHEEFNNEE
BRA - BRI ERAEEB RS FH
k6 EAMFHIHERER - K
EEHATRMAFINETRZHE
UEERMEREERINAES QA
([EHBEEEWDFTE B 2B
B hRHEMEEENN20204F
12 A 31 BUATERT BRI 4 T A A A #E
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AEEHEAETRMASMEEZ
BEXFARAMBHMRREK KA

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group has not maintained any plan asset and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson"”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2020 using the projected unit
credit method.

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its

REREBEZEHEIHAOT : defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2020 2019
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 157,066 115,436
RF [E AR ISR AN Current service cost (7,863) 10,626
FLE A Interest expense 4,173 2,998
(3.690) 13,624
Bi4HE - Remeasurements:
MBS REFAEREE L Actuarial (gain) loss arising from changes in
BE (W) EE financial assumptions (2,135) 2,679
KHRABREE Y Actuarial loss arising from
5EEE experience adjustments 2,502 72,198
367 74,877
B &7 Benefit payment (31,577) (46,871)
REER At end of the reporting period 122,166 157,066
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REGANGE (&) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
BEEERN T ERK The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2020 2019
% %
FIELES Discount rate 3.10 2.80
T8 B S BN -1 Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 3.00

g AEZRERKNA
BEAREHHRATR/ANE T IHRE

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
REBANEE RERMEE
o) -2(d ok-Zle
Change in Change in
R defined  REHE(L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
Prif & Discount rate +/- 0.5% -2.32%/ +/- 0.5% -2.81%/
+2.46% +2.98%
Ta EA s B 0 Expected rate of +/-0.5% +1.46%/ +/-0.5% +3.13%/
salary increases -1.38 % -2.98%

FigEESTRBESEBER
BHEEUREHRY  MEMRK
BRFTE - A BERRLATEE

Bk B mekE Sk
KR EDHTEA - TEEFE M ﬁAﬁ
RAERREE R EEMNEENIE
BRMEENE 8RB K A8 X R
AR (EE A ) - R/ H =g
HERBENDANBERAFELAF
B BURE DT

ATFERAMNETHMEFHHREZ
4.90F (20194 : 5,904 ) °

g

ﬂiﬁ%lit%?rﬂ BEEBEERE
260 s FHEMER -

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 4.90 years (2019: 5.90 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.
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REBNE (&)

ARAERMABRERFAIE
EARETEIMNESTHERT
EHMHZMAHER - BERITEME
RN IEABIHBE ST

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is

as follows:
2020 2019
AR TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1R Within 1 year 35,667 16,102
BRI FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 19,294 27,123
A2 FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 20,134 52,582
BiB5F Over 5 years 102,816 154,762
177,911 250,569

A R A BIE A (8 R0

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax

NN liabilities are as follows:
Ktat 2020 2019
Note AR¥FoT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB'000
REH] At beginning of the year 784,251 538,420
HEH B QA Disposal of subsidiaries 41 (4,787) 154
B ARRESE 2 Withholding tax paid on distributions
BB of earnings by subsidiaries (102,185) (220,073)
SFALEAUWZERA  Charge to consolidated income statement 11 470,804 465,750
REER At end of the reporting period 1,148,083 784,251
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REER CHIAZETEREEE

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the

FefEmT reporting period represent the following:
2020 2019
BE afE BE a8’
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETFRT AR¥FT AEETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEBEITE Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (603,222) — (594,330)
MRS E Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
RABERE Fair value adjustment on:
—(FRAEEE — Right-of-use assets
ME - MR RER and property,
plant and equipment — (50,861) — (61,268)
—-BVEE — Intangible asset — (39,677) — (40,975)
—REURHE — Investment properties — (21,292) — (21,242)
—¢@MITA — Financial instruments 7,061 — — —
BEEE Impairment losses 82,488 — 77,033 —
REGERZ Un-invoiced accrual
RIZER 236,551 — 226,134 —
HEME - EER Unrealised profit on property,
B2 ARBRAE plant and equipment 62,606 — 65,295 —
BEARARSEFE  Withholding tax on undistributed
Z TR earnings of subsidiaries — (822,851) — (440,200)
B ER Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Hity Others 10,487 (39,207) 8,875 (33,407)
EEBIEEE(AME) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 429,027  (1,577,110) 407,171 (1,191,422)

BEPBEGEMERE  INERE
ERMAPBEIMIINEIRE D ETE
SHIR B AR 10% KB R UGB
BR e ZRER2008F1A1HIE
A EAR2007F12A318%
1 2RI S BCADE o fif P BT
BAZZ SN 4% B B T AR B 3R 3k [ R
REEEEBNHE  EARK
B o

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
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AEEAHK B A R E B X
B5% (2019F 1 10%) - KEE R
BEEEARBHENRBRFH
JF AT 4 o> Be BB T AT IR AR B A IR AT
MIBEBE -

HE BT FEMEAT AR
TR T E L A AR 183,811,000
TL(2019%F : A R #1,728,487,000
L) EEDEREANMTIE - #
ERBEFALEZEHRTFHNEE
BESEEQAR v EEES W
AR ERTED B - F i I 8 1 1
FIMEET B o

REEHR AEBEEBARK
111,128,000 7C(20194F : A & ¥
111,128,000 ) Fi 7% B EHER Rk
ERMIEEE - MAEEBYAERD
MZEEBRELARTAREFHMZ
Riskes - REZER AHEREL

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 5% (2079:
10%). Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the
undistributed earnings of the Group's entities are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the undistributed
earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is approximately
RMB183,811,000 (2079: RMB1,728,487,000) which would
become payable when they are distributed. In the opinion of the
directors, the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are
required for financing the continuing operations of these entities
and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation have
been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2019: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MIBEBEZ RBERIBFHNOT - as follows:
2020 2019
RBEEIPR AR FT ABWEF T
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 — 330,066
2021 275,783 431,724
2022 301,105 321,339
2023 155,343 238,015
2024 313,184 420,219
2025 250,166 —
1,295,581 1,741,363
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEfTBRX Trade payables
B=5 To third parties 6,733,515 6,258,861
BEAMAT To related parties
—ARRBIZES — A group of companies controlled by
SENEI =D& I the family members and relatives of
=) —H A A the Company'’s directors 1,399,649 1,402,880
/NS To an associate — 10,527
&N To joint ventures 13,810 5,767
8,146,974 7,678,035
ERE=F BBEBAL BEQ The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate
AREERAIZENERAEIR and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
- REKKMIB30E90RER - period of 30 to 90 days.
JENEFRNEERREZARR 2 The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
BRI DITINT the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2020 2019
AR#FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90 H 0 - 90 days 7,243,120 6,789,795
90 B E Over 90 days 903,854 888,240
8,146,974 7,678,035
FERTERRIA T HIE A - The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
AR#FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 8,144,649 7,670,078
7T us$ 2,141 7,783
Hth Others 184 174
8,146,974 7,678,035
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR S Deposits received in advance 1,943,924 2,649,443
B sERESER Accruals for transportation,
2 Atk promoting and advertising expenses 5,184,310 4,869,538
THEAREME&EER  Accruals for administrative expenses
2 T84 and other operating expenses 684,131 667,631
BRI TE MEHE Salaries and welfare payables 1,220,365 1,155,403
JES R AB TR Payables for purchase of equipment 170,885 104,831
JE A H A AR IR Other tax payables 281,638 708,616
BAKENLEME. Consideration payable for acquisition
ERRE of investment properties — 31,129
JERTAIE, Interest payable 21,707 43,383
JE A B R AR Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 39 33,678
Hith Others 572,279 497,798
10,079,278 10,761,450
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R B A Profit before taxation 6,531,912 5,411,596
FMEEMA Interest expenses 348,639 413,652
F B A Interest income (667,617) (541,222)
e Depreciation 3,141,629 3,251,365
WFVPLERIEMS R EZEZ  Dividend income from financial assets at FVPL
PR A A (135) (3,253)
BEEE 7 BH Amortisation of intangible assets 6,403 6,406
HEME - WEREMER  Loss on disposal of property, plant
FRAEEEBE and equipment and right-of-use assets 77,332 92,900
Y - IR R ERERETE  Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 66,191 152,050
RFVPLERERNSRAE Change in fair value of financial liabilities
NABEZZEFE at FVPL, net 285 (188)
KEHFHEANEEB Change in fair value of investment properties
bd) (200) (3,674)

L FVPLRIEH & RIE B

Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL

NAEEZE 40,905 (20,774)
HEBZ ARz am Gain on disposal of an associate — (131,053)
HEAZ A2 W Gain on disposal of a joint venture — (223,150)
HEMB QR Z W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (118,069) (628,889)
ELEBE AT REE AR Share of results of an associate

E and joint ventures (130,436) (234,159)
fEREE) 2 2 Effect on exchange rate changes (80,564) (68,101)
RINAE = A E R D Recognition of equity-settled

Y2 FIA share-based payment 15,988 24,504
FE 2R (3m) Decrease (Increase) in inventories 97,399 (793,335)
FEURBR FR 2 (3800 ) I3 > (Increase) Decrease in trade receivables (13,442) 45,946
JENFEREMBEWFIE  Decrease (Increase) in prepayments

A (8 N) and other receivables 349,023 (210,977)
JE R R 2 3N Increase in trade payables 474,046 724,074
Hip e ZxmE LD UIRE  (Decrease) Increase in other payables

2 O )3Ehn and deposits received (225,091) 2,229,634
BTN FRIE 2N Increase in advance payments from customers 551,019 131,153
IFERETEFEMTIREZ Decrease in present value of

B unfunded employee benefit obligations (35,267) (33,247)

REEEFBRE Cash generated from operations 10,429,950 9,591,258
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37(a) MEEBELNARHER

TERFALAEERAMETS

R ERS

@%fﬁi&#ﬁ

ﬁiﬁé\/ﬁiiixfﬁﬁmbﬁ ’

37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

BEAERBGZEESRERT will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
SR AR EEHELENIRS R cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
2o
ERDE
&L
(Hiet36)
Dividend
HERE SEREE payable
(Kt 16) (Hiit32) RITEXR to non-
Lease  Unsecured (#f#£32)  controlling
liabilities notes  Banks loans interests @t
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFRT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
RK2020F181H At 1 January 2020 487,556 — 12,374,459 33,678 12,895,693
FHREM Net cash flows
(HEL (i), (i) (i) (Notes (1), (i), (i) (198,740) 3,369,999  (1,074,329) (399,145) 1,697,785
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BHF B Amortised interest expenses 18,399 1,673 — — 20,072
MERE New leases 160,885 — — — 160,885
HEBIT 22 Effect on lease modification (26,132) — — — (26,132)
HENE AR Disposal of subsidiaries
(Biit41) (Note 41) (125,168) — — — (125,168)
Rl Dividend declared — — — 365,506 365,506
ERER Exchange realignment — (143,668) (831,600) — (975,268)
#W2020%12831H At 31 December 2020 316,800 3,228,004 10,468,530 39 14,013,373
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37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

D&
P& &
(Hizt 36)
Dividend
MEEE payable
(K1t 16) RITER to non-
Lease (M7t 32) controlling
liabilities Banks loans interests BEt
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ARETFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2019F181H At 1 January 2019 — 10,834,508 25,859 10,860,367
RMBEBVBRE Upon adoption of HKFRS 16
HERIZE 1657 508,591 — — 508,591
FRE M Net cash flows
(B2 0), (i), (iri)) (Notes (i), (i), (i) (205,878) 1,426,712 (115,827) 1,105,007
Bt #5 - Other changes:
BWER BT Amortised interest expenses 24,625 — — 24,625
g New leases 212,480 — — 212,480
HEBII < FE Effect on lease modification (52,262) — — (52,262)
B # A Dividend declared — — 123,646 123,646
05 ERE Exchange realignment — 113,239 — 113,239
720195128318 At 31 December 2019 487,556 12,374,459 33,678 12,895,693

(iii)

EWSEH%E%EL%Z$§E
RFMBED °

RITERPASHRIA » RIT
REAMETEETR B
i R SUF R B I 3k
TERERREBEZFME
BREEMERNRITE
REFRDRE -

FEfT LB R AR B R F
BERBEFRNZMADH
fEEREAAEE -

(i)

(iii)

The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent
the payment of capital element and interest of lease
liabilities.

The net cash flows from unsecured notes and
bank loans make up the net amount of proceeds
from bank borrowings, repayments of bank and
other borrowings, net movement of other short-
term borrowings and net proceeds from issuance of
unsecured notes.

The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-
controlling interests represent dividends paid to non-
controlling interests during the year.
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In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
of the Group's business.

BRAGERE MO REIRS
K SREELASL » AT TO AR SR B B RSt
ATETZEARGHE  HERH
TIRARE 2 BEEBHHET -

2020 2019
otz3 AREFT ANEEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB000
() FEBALZXS (a) Related party transactions
mrHAREEER Sales of goods to:
PiIN/N TZIng%T I Companies controlled by a substantial
ZEHR shareholder of the Company () 151,540 174,809
NG An associate 36,855 45,939
BRERT Joint ventures 544,303 613,801
BTRIARBEER Purchases of goods from:
ARREFYL A group of companies controlled
%Jﬁtﬁi ERBBEH by the family members and relatives
—# R 7] of the Company'’s directors (i) 5,350,961 5,236,010
Hﬁ%%’a A An associate 54,981 62,326
ARERH Joint ventures 59,456 63,003
BRIARZFRHEER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEFERFES 2 Companies controlled by
ZE AT a substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 44,758 41,197
mrHARKBRKER Administrative expenses paid on
THER: behalf and received from:
BERT Joint ventures 8,536 2,935
B 52 B R R & 1 Rental income from investment
EERYE  BER properties and property,
BEzHE plant and equipment
FREZEFERRIES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
E4RVNS] shareholder of the Company 42,156 44,222
ARRZEZZ A company controlled
FEERK B RAR B §IR by the family members and
VNG relatives of the Company's directors 3,189 3,089
BT HARXE A HERA Distribution costs paid to:
FRREEYL A group of companies controlled
%JﬁtﬁX ERBBIEH by the family members and
Z—H#RF relatives of the Company'’s directors (i) 670,322 —
Brata) RIEETRAE 14AE - %5

Note () These related party transactions also constitute continuing

i
BRAMAT RSN AFERE
R5 e

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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ZEREER2017TFREMMNEEN
BRESRSEERBBY  F1E5H
RSB RERMEE19 - FEEER
TP 2021 FFR &5 -
2020F 12 A31 B RA AE MR
BE(2019F - AMEREAE) »

HREEAEBZHE

FEEBAREEABZME
(BREGAMBRERMZI0M
BEAARRESE  THAESR
X ZFBERAETR=HE
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(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial

BX[ZHB)WT - statements, is as follows:
2020 2019
AREFT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EE548e Directors’ fees 4,345 4,348
FeMEMME Salaries and other emoluments 69,766 83,138
VAR 321~ 2 5RIE Share-based payments 14,469 22,266
1EAT Discretionary bonuses 23,039 16,048

BIRE TN RIEER  Retirement payments and contributions

RIRSET BN to pension scheme — 23,902
111,619 149,702

The amount represents the remaining portion of the cash
consideration in acquiring HZPS's equity interest in 2017 as
detailed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements which

LN is expected to be settled not later than the end of 2021 and is

therefore recognised in other current liabilities at 31 December
2020 (2019: other non-current liabilities).
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ERNEEETEVERELEDE 159 The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
HNEEFANBE(CITBEIEREF NI decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
MEBLEENES))INT : liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during

the year are as follows:

2020 2019
ARMTF T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REH] At beginning of the year 1,809,935 1,678,782
R ARA Recognised as revenue (1,809,935) (1,678,782)
WRIRZNEHITERF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 2,360,954 1,809,935
REER At end of the reporting period 2,360,954 1,809,935
2020912 A31H KX20194F12 A At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the advance
3MH BREFEMAREEHN —FR payments from customers are expected to be recognised as
HERRBWA - revenue within one year.
FRN - AEBH-BBIE=FR During the year, the Group entered into two sales and purchase
—Z A A REI N MDD E B i agreements with an independent third party and a connected
7 Bl E W E B A R A D AR party for the disposal of the partial and entire equity interests in
R EERE PESTHEDRE two subsidiaries respectively. These disposals were completed
Nk THKAERREEE - during the year. Upon the completion of the above two disposals,
HEWBARFWRAEARK total net gain on the disposal of subsidiaries of RMB108,922,000
108,922,000t E st A=K - K was recognised in profit or loss, and a gain of RMB9,147,000 was
EERRAAEBEBRRI.56%RE resulted from recognition of 1.56% equity interests retained in
E—ERBAR ZETMERA one former subsidiary at its fair value at the date when control
R¥9,147,000 L2 Y55 o REB MR is loss from the partial disposal of the subsidiary. The retained
BEEARKREESIEE BER AR interests were recognised as financial assets at FVPL at the date
FVPLEEM SRt & E B B & WE when control is lost and were fully disposed of before the end of
RATEEBHE - the reporting period.
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The following summarises the aggregate consideration received

BENBENEREEASS : and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the
respective date of disposal:
s
Total
ABREFIT
RMB’000
FIEENFEE(AE) Net assets (liabilities) disposed
M - HERRE Property, plant and equipment 142,348
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 155,329
JEUR BR 7Kk Trade receivables 22,578
BT IBEE Deferred tax assets 568
a5 FRIE Fo B h fE U R IE Prepayments and other receivables 322,337
RITEHREIE S Bank balance and cash 43,949
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (5,355)
HERE Lease liabilities (125,168)
JE AR R Trade payables (5,107)
E M RIE R E YR e Other payables and deposit received (392,371)
AL Taxation (3,103)
156,005
BB A R U e BR Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 118,069
REBER 2 AAEE Fair value on retained interests (11,313)
262,761
2R E Consideration received
ReERE Cash consideration 220,761
FERARAE K Consideration receivables 42,000
262,761
HEMBARZESRANFE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
RERE Cash consideration 220,761
BEREZReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (43,949)
ReERASEENZARNTE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 176,812
HERB QR WS 2 ik: Reconciliation of gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
REBHERR 2 i F Gain on retained interests 9,147
HEME A RF W Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 108,922
HEKBARWE(HES8) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) 118,069
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AEENEAEEIRRHELAE
BFEKENREN  RRREHD

BRAEMBH B IRER % -

AEEFERREFREGIRRE M

ReEEYNGERE

AEEFER

EERERLR(ER/ARRBIREN

BamR)UNEREE

BreamEln) - MEHRREBERL

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting

BT period was as follows:
2020 2019
ARETFT AEEFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 13,696,534 12,374,459
B BekReEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (21,431,153) (17,430,387)
FHIRE Net cash (7,734,619) (5,055,928)

AR FIRER I AR Total equity attributable to owners

of the Company 21,112,724 19,578,574
FREEEALE Gearing ratio -36.63% -25.82%

REEREBECEH MR

S 44
A R

EREHBIMERELRER I
REBEBERNOEHBEE NG

B oBBKRERE

BERARE

% BOIHEBARKRERN L
MPEMLE  ZRMEEENX
B RRERZHMBERS -

R20204F » AEEH K

% 822019

FHER > BEHFAEEHEZTIA

A o
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2020, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2019, aims at keeping the net debt approximately to nil.
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AEERBAENERITARHMS
EBEER  SMNERR - FIRER -
EERREABDESAR - KBFE
AEESRER EEERART
MEREEHR BEFERTLA
EERAZAREEHRNOT

miSERER

AEERMMSZEERBRRES TR
FVPLEEM SR EESEAARE
771,302,000 7T(2019F : A & #
708,976,0007T ) - BB B B
BETRARRKRETRKEMNREHRE
ERZRER - SUXE DI TRIE
FTEBROTSERRRIEL - R4
HA BEEVRAELIZFVPLERE
HEMEERERN 2 MinERKRR -

The Group's financial instruments expose it to market price risk,
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on
its risk management and limits the Group's exposure to these risks
to a minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Market price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from certain
financial assets at FVPL amounted to RMB771,302,000 (2079
RMB708,976,000). The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks
and different return profiles. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to market price risk. At the end
of the reporting period, the management considers these financial
assets at FVPL are without significant market price risk.
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SNERRR

AEBENHNBRAAEEZEFEE
B XEUARBERZGER - K
5 B B E # R SNE BB B BR AN A A
SEMBAR ZNEEE B LA - A
HEBEXINEREARAASL
HER1TEHB BEEBE: &
FVPLERIE M) €& Bl & &= R B A BB A
TER%E -

ARBEI T BAETHEA
RRTTEM 2 HMNEE B 48 B R 1%
Bl AXREENHBERARMHEER
BEEMMANDEERET  RE
FEKLEININERRTEEX
RBEL REAXEERAET
BREIE B LA R SNE [ B o

REBER20204F 2019412 A 31
HUASNE(GEARE)ETERIZFVPL
EEMNeRMEE RelkBaeSE

7 BEBEREMNERFED
FNRA T ImERMEE22, 26, 32 &
35

REER  WAIAEMBEERET
B O MAREHBET  ARK
HEaBRARESBRE TS A
FHE B E21% 0.3%K3.4%
(20194 : 73 B %2.4% - 1.3% K
23%) AEEEEENRREE
#3800 m > A R 603,000 7T
(20194 : ARK2,357,0007T) °
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Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of the
subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in their
functional currency. During the year, the Group has not entered
into significant hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to
foreign currency risk.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 are set out in notes 22, 26, 32 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
2.1%, 0.3% and 3.4% respectively (2019: 2.4%, 1.3% and
2.3% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB603,000 (2079:RMB2,357,000) higher/lower.
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SNERBR(E)

BRESMBRBINEHBRERNEE
BEREH W EANKTEBAAER
ZAFE s eI EMNEER
® o MATE A EUFRIZFZ)
REFTE - FIHBIRREELE
FEINE L BERRARET—FE
HEEBZARREIR 28 - ko7
AEE 2019 F R -

FEER

AEBETEZmMENMNXEBRZRE
RITERLBELREESAEE@ Y
MR o F B R IRITHE R S0F
BHNEXBAEEREESARERHRAS
mMEMERER HRESMEE K
SENRBEEREEERELEE
RBEEEREENFREBEERITHE
EELLB

Hi  REBEWRETEKRERE
B AEAHRERERAAEEN
MERR - NEEH AEETEE
E MR 2 &K B36%(20194F -
14%) °

REER - WATBEEMEHRET
- UERTRAREIEZRITHEH
kEBEBEMNESRFAA FHIEK25
(20194 : 75) % 10(20194 - 30)%:
2 ANFEE BRI RARE 5 181
A A R 2,839,000 7T(2019
F b A K # 20,897,000
JL) e

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management'’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2019.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 36% (2079:
14%,).

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings dominated in US$ and
RMB had been 25 (2079: 75) and 10 (2019: 30) basis point higher/
lower respectively and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's profit for the year and retained profits would
increase/decrease by RMB2,839,000 (2019: decrease/increase by
RMB20,897,000).
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FEER (E)

BRESTREBEANNERFALIRE
BUWERARAEERFARNFE 2R
THEHEBEEENFERR - LA
ELRAREIBEZRITEHRRKSE
BEEDHAHAKFAEK25(2019
F:75) % 10(20194F - 30) £ B
REBEBFHAMNERBAANET —
FEFBEAZAEEHBZEE - I

DATEYEE 2019 FHEF -

FERR

AEENEERREZXRAREH
ERER R MBReFED &
YRR AR B E At MR IR - AR E K
MORMERFRMNRERREF
EVOFERAEREENER S RE
BREXBAREENTHEEE B
HERERRELTFEEANE
R - RERA MBI OR KRR
TREEREEGIREBRREE)NK
RAEENEERR  HEXLREE
PR B EER M EEIEE

HEME -

FER R,

REBZHERNTDBEFTKRE -
AEBERRERNEEHEZE
LTERERINEELBEILIFE
HEE - ERFPERZERTHEE
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings in existence during the
year. The 25 (2079: 75) and 10 (2079: 30) basis point increase or
decrease on the bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings
dominated in US$ and RMB respectively represent management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2019.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to long-term
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s long-term time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the
creditworthy global financial institutions and state-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers
they are without significant credit risk. The carrying amount of
financial assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of loss allowance, represents the
Group's exposure to credit risk without taking into account the
value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Trade receivables

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash-before-
delivery basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade
on credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group’s
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 1 January and
31 December 2020 and 2019 to be insignificant. There was no
change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the year.
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EERK(E) Credit risk (Continuea)
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Trade receivables (Continued)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 are summarised below.

2020512 H31H As at 31 December 2020

AR E
Gross carrying

FEEXE

amount Credit-impaired

ARETFTT

RMB’000
REIHA Not past due 1,480,720 No
2 ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 R Within 30 days 76,515 No
31-90K 31 -90 days 59,673 No
838 90 X Over 90 days 43,481 No

1,660,389
2019412 A31H As at 31 December 2019

EREE EEEXE

Gross carrying

amount  Credit-impaired
AREFT
RMB’000
REIHA Not past due 1,447,557 No
2B ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 A Within 30 days 85,398 No
31-90 K 31 - 90 days 64,885 No
#E38 90 K Over 90 days 71,685 No
1,669,525
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint ventures and related
parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2020, the additional loss allowance for provision for amounts due
from these parties was insignificant.
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EERKE) Credit risk (Continued)

FEWEZFE A EWK 3 Loan and other receivables

NEEBHEKER L EMEKIE The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
ETRENEEEN 12 AECL. receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
WEAEBRET N EMEIHIER credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
FEERBRKEARSIETNELN & default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
AMOERNEEREINTOER S the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
wmEARNCEREERBEEELE are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

FHHFEE -

FEfHETECLE: - AEEDEEDERF In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
SEBREERAKCBRMNE ANFE the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
A BENFESE  SRIEEE - position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
BEMEEAZETHAE g2 creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
BEBEAM—REBERR RBEH specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
REMITH  HetELEEsREED industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
EAOBE . IR ESEBIATEY probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
gk  REEBNEEEZED loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
BB EREE XH5FHM considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
BENBERELE - RRELERE after taking into account the financial position, quality of the
ENECLETEAN - FRNEMGER counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
sk E AR )R BEL - in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made

during the year.

REEH AEEZERER+TH At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
FEWSEKEFZSANEEEFEME of credit risk as 73.33% (2019: 89.29%) of loan receivables which
73.33% (20194 : 89.29% ) K & Uk was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and 100% of loan
TREFANEEERERE 100% receivables (2079: 100%) was due from the Group's five largest
(20194 - 100%) ° debtors.
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Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to

maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed

credit facilities. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor

current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those

relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the

end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that

the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of

the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments

is summarised below:

1550 E 265 L
15R% BE25R BESFR
REREH  Morethan  More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but S5ENL
1 year or within less than Over &t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
20205128318 At 31 December 2020
JERT R SR Trade payables 8,146,974 — — — 8,146,974
Hi R 58 Rk Other payables and
B deposits received 8,556,834 — — — 8,556,834
HEAR Lease liabilities 111,945 92,156 110,948 32,184 347,233
BEfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 6,045,085 2,776,422 5,259,624 122,619 14,203,750
Hivnsak Other current liabilities 40,000 — — — 40,000
FENSARE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 — — — 9,959
22,910,797 2,868,578 5,370,572 154,803 31,304,750
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FEBELER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)

16U E 2ENE
TERsk  BmR2FA BESFA
BRENKEHR  Morethan  More than
Within Tyearbut 2 years but S5EUE
1 year or within less than Over Gl
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ANREFT  AREFT AR+ AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

720195128318 At 31 December 2019

FEITEER Trade payables 7,678,035 — — — 7,678,035
HibENRIER Other payables and

BliES deposits received 8,897,431 — — — 8,897,431
HEARE Lease liabilities 219,102 137,580 149,999 27,453 534,134
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 7,699,649 2,219,797 2,615,706 355,329 12,890,481
HibIEREa s Other non-current liabilities — 40,000 — — 40,000
BT BRE Contingent consideration payable — 9,674 — — 9,674

24,494,217 2,407,051 2,765,705 382,782 30,049,755

ExEeE KL TERAGERE The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
ISR N AT E SR E & clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
DG HEEESBR LD loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
RHEARERENRIER -REE In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,172,080,000
ETWIEEHEEASTFEFEERE (2019: RMB1,880,000,000) as at the end of the financial period
KERER - AR ®1,172,080,000 have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
TL(2019% : A B #1,880,000,000 that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment
L)REEHE R AR % and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
SEBNKBERMEERERR following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:
LU
2020 2019
AR TF T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings
1R Within 1 year 1,180,955 1,911,216
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their
fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis at 31 December 2020 across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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(a) HUAABEIENLREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
2020 2019
HEIR fiEh q53 & iGN aah #Al3 it
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ABBTR ABBTR ARRTL ARRTEZ ARRTT ARETT ABRTT ARRTR
RMBU0O  RMBUO)  RMBUO)  RMBYOD  RBOOD  AVBUDO  AMBUR0  AWBUM

BE Assets

FHAEEHZEEE  Financal assets at FUPL

-REES - Investment funds 171,104 - 558177 1,329,281 708,694 - 425698 1134392

- LTREES - Equity securites, listed 198 - - 198 2 - - 8

~FETREES - Equity securites, unlisted - - - - - 18807 — 1887

EERod Designated FVOC/

-FETREES - Equity securitie, unlited - — 104 1404u - — 561 11561
302 - 698,621 1,469,923 708976 18,367 51312 1,269,155

B Liabilities

FRPEEHEEEE  Fnancal labiltes at FVPL

- ERERE - Contingent consideration payable - - 9,959 9,959 - - 9,674 9,674

- - 9,959 9,959 - - 9,674 9,674

R2020F K 2019FE RN » 8 During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there

BEBEBERBNIERR2ZME were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

B NS BEBEBEELR measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

3AHRI3ED - value measurements.
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EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

UARAEBHEIENEREEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
R2020%F N 2019F N & E HA The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
EAREBETEDEALR3 measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
R EEAEE T hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
are shown as follows:
2020 2019
gE af 2B aE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
B FVPLEE RFVPLER
MemEE  EKEFVOQ MeREE  EEAOU
Designated Designated
FVPL Fvocl FVPL FvoCl
¥Ltm A ¥Em fEfy
REES RAxES AERE REES hEE% FERE
Equity  Contingent Equity Contingent
Investment securities,  consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds unlisted payable
ARBFE AREFTT  AREFZ  AEETT  ARETT  AEETX
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
R At beginning of the year 425,698 115,614 (9,674) 447 49 114,018 (9,862)
BA/RE Purchases/additions 428,916 - - 20033 - -
5 Disposal (202,779) - - (76,762) (3,578) -
BASIZA(BE)HNE  Total (losses) or gains
recognised:
- ~in profit or loss (38,999) - (285) 26938 - 188
-Afn2ElE - in other comprehensive
income — 32,456 — — 3,199 —
EiES Exchange difference (54,659) (7,626) - 7993 1,975 -
REER At the end of
the reporting period 558,177 140,444 (9,959 425,698 115,614 (9,674)
REEEHAZEER  Changein unrealised
REFARENES gains or (losses) for
FRANED (BR) the year included in
228 profit or loss for
assets and liabilities
held at the end of
the reporting period 12,423 — (285) 19,864 188
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement

(1)

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's financial assets
at FVPL mainly comprise four investment funds which
are categorised as Level 3 (2079: four Level 3) of the
fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of three (2079 one) of the investment
funds in Level 3 is estimated based on the net
asset value of the investment fund reported to the
investors by the investment manager as at the end of
the reporting period. For the remaining one (2079:
three) investment fund in Level 3, the fair value is
estimated based on the fair values of the companies
invested by the funds. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price,
while the fair values of unlisted investments are
estimated by the respective investment managers
using valuation techniques including mainly price-to-
sales (P/S) ratio model and net asset value approach
(2019: average earnings before interest, tax and
amortisation (EBITDA) multiple model and price-to-
sales (P/S) ratio model and net asset value approach).
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The expected
annual growth rates of unquoted companies invested
by the funds was -10% and average price-to-sales (P/S)
ratios of comparable companies of the corresponding
industries was ranging from 0.99 to 1.17 times (2019:
The expected annual growth rates of unquoted
companies invested by the funds ranging from -9%
to 8%, average EBITDA multiple and average price-
to-sales (P/S) ratios of comparable companies of the
corresponding industries ranging from 5 to 22 times
and ranging from 1.40 to 1.62 times respectively).
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

(i)

(iir)

(iv)

Financial assets at FVPL: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of unlisted equity securities was
determined with reference to the net assets value of
the underlying equity securities.

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price-to-sales (P/S) ratio model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates of -10% (2079: 0%) and
comparable companies’ average price-to-sales (P/S)
ratio of 1.17 times (2019: 1.40 times).

Financial liabilities at FVPL: Contingent consideration
payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in
Level 3 is determined by using the income approach
based on the expected payment amounts and their
associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is
discounted to present value. In the opinion of the
directors, changing one or more of the inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change the fair value significantly.
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(a) URABEIERNSREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
TERTERRASBESET Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs
MRI3AABHEHIEEZFTER The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs
ATER R A BURRE 2 &8 for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
™
MEBERAEE
AEE2E
hEgENnE
Impact on fair
1200% value and
12A3182 the Group's
DMERE total
Fair value TTRRBANGRNLARENARR comprehensive
at 31 December (BREBRZRETR) income for
w0 HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
ik AggTr  Valuation  FTEEBA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEETT
Description ABO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AB000
BAPLRENEREE
Financial assets at FVPL
pEge 558177 THERE  EHEERE EERMEREMR  AOLEEME RITA: -5 % 42,624
Investment funds PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
TLERT TmEE  ARBRATZTEREE  ERA0AERE. 4-50% +23,849
Rz
Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice vers3;
FAEREL MIEELABEHEE  FAEIMHOAREMS EMHDAREHS  BHM%E4L5% BHHMBEH58
(T#8E])
Net asset Fair value of individual assest  The higher estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the Ranging from Ranging from
value approach less libiltes (the “Net  higher the estimated fai value H1h 104 5% 4423 10+-1,528
Assets”)
o
Designated FVOCI
S FHRAZE 14044 THERY  FRREERE EREMEREAS - +-5% 46,207
Equity securities, unlisted HRABERR  RaMR-

PIS ratio model  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;

LBAF HmER  ARRAE FERERER  MAERER H-43% +- 47,698
R

Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,

comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;

298 EHEZERERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



=
13

WIN

S B HEERERMIZE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(a) URABEIERNSREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
TERTEERARREZEH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(& inputs (Continued)
MEERAZE
KEERE
et i
Impact on fair
120198 value and
12A3182 the Group's
MEE total
Fair value TIRRBANRRHDARENGER comprehensive
at 31 December (ERARERRATR) income for
w1y HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AgsT7  Valuation  FTEEHA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably AEEFT
Description ABO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AB000
BAPLRBNEREE
Financial assets at FVPL
BEES 425698 EBDARE EREEERE EEREMARELR +-10% 49,084
Investment funds EDAEBER RN
EBITDA Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
multiple model the fair value and vice versa;
AEAAZFIBIMA  THRAAZPEBI0ANS - ERABEER +8% +7,884
Rzmdk:
Average EBITDA of comparable  The higher average EBITDA of comparable companies,
companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
TEEEY  RAERRE EREMEREAE  ADABEER RMA: 5% 42,528
PIS ratio model Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
HRANTETEE  IHRAT T ERES MEEER +31% 415,579
Rzmdk:
Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
EEROC
Designated FVOCI
S FRRAEE 15614 THEEEY EEESERE BEEENERRRARZER +1-5% 44,362
Equity securities, unlisted EMABEER R«
P/S ratio model ~Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
HRANTETEE  IHRAT T HRES MEEER +-36% 431,158

Average PIS ratio of
comparable companies

Rz
The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
the higher the fair value and vice verss;
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(a)

(b)
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(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group's finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2020.
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In addition to the commitments disclosure elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
commitments as follow:

BT HAE Capital expenditure commitments
2020 2019
AR¥FT AREFT
EEEEESE T Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
BEWE MR Expenditures on property,
B plant and equipment 672,014 650,104
KEES Investment funds — 12,296

672,014 662,400
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REBFBERRNANBEEMRT AR

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the

AIFBEARRAR L AR ZEE IR

N Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:
2020 2019
it AR¥FT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
VI - IR REE Property, plant and equipment 353 415
EREEE Right-of-use assets 3,349 530
M A Al s Interest in subsidiaries 11,507,436 12,691,224
HFVPLEEMSRMEE Financial assets at FVPL 558,375 425,980
FEEL FVOCI IR R Equity instruments designated
HmTHE as at FvOCl 8,791 7,428
12,078,304 13,125,577
REBEE Current assets
TENFIEREMBEIWFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 81,587 10,868
M B A Bz FE I GRIA Amount due from a subsidiary 2,981,857 3,037,521
IRITEHREIE S Bank balances and cash 187,692 154,929
3,251,136 3,203,318
WEE Total assets 15,329,440 16,328,895
BRRERREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RAR #E Capital and reserves
BEATRR A Issued capital 235,422 235,401
gk Share premium 730,075 724,384
f###a Reserves 46(a) 3,937,100 5,681,607
RERERBE Total equity 4,902,597 6,641,392
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2020 2019
i3 ARTFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
REBEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 7,336,108 4,363,063
HERE Lease liabilities 1,634 213
7,337,742 4,363,276
REEE Current liabilities
E R R Other payables 76,900 78,929
BEEBE ZRAEE S Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 3,010,508 5,244,973
HEaE Lease liabilities 1,693 325
3,089,101 5,324,227
maE Total liabilities 10,426,843 9,687,503
REREZAEREBEHEE  Total equity and liabilities 15,329,440 16,328,895
KRN EKNR2021F3 A22HE The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
FedERRERE AU TA for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2021 and signed
TREEZ on its behalf by
#% & Wei Hong-Ming FH#A—BB Junichiro Ida
ZE EDirector EZEDjrector

EEERr 303
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(a) REZEH (@) Movements of the reserves
&
EfbERE
ROREREE EfERE MMEERE (TUED) EBRERE REER L
Investment
revaluation
Capital ~ Remeasur-  Exchange reserve Share-based
redemption ement translation (Non-  payment  Retained
reserve reserve reserve  recycding)  reserve Profits Total
AREFE ARBTR ARETL ARETT ARBTL AREFZ AREFZ
RMB000  RMB000  RMBU0O  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB0O0O  RMB000
R2019%1 A1 At 1 January 2019 400 (36,534) 234,393 (4.230) 42239 7312116 7928540
RER R Profit for the year - - - - — 178494 178494
AEEEM2AE(ER) WG Other comprehensive (loss) income for the year - 36,534 (18,054) 4,037 — (36534)  (14,017)
ERtERITHIFE Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - 24,504 - 24,504
BIRHEABYE Employee benefits obligations borne
MEBLERE by subsidiaries - - - - - 41,487 41487
REBREIETIRG Shares issuied under share option scheme - - - — (14080 — (14,080
BRELH Shares option lapsed - - — — o5 4051 —
BHERIEE 20185 R 2018 final and special dividend
RARIRE approved and paid - - - - = (2463321) (2463321)
R2019E12 4318 At 31 December 2019 400 - 216,339 (193) 392245 5072816 5,681,607
R202051A18 At 1 January 2020 400 - 216,339 (193) 392245 5072816 5,681,607
RERRT Profit for the year - - - - — 1273400 1,273,400
REEEMZENE Other comprehensive income for the year - — 296,550 1859 - — 298409
ERGERNRN B Fquity settled share-based transactions - - - - 15,988 - 15,988
RiEERE AR T RN Shares issuied under share option scheme — - — - (1383) - (1383)
BRELN Shares option lapsed - - - —  (75.556) 75,556 -
BRERIER 20195 KE 2019 final and special dividend
RAHIRE approved and paid - - - - —  (3330981) (3,330981)
R2020612 4318 At 31 December 2020 400 - 512,889 1,666 331,354 3,090,791 3,937,100

7 2020F 128318 ARF A D
Bl BHEREREB RN ERGE®E
2 &%/ AN RM3,820,866,0007T
(20194 : A K& #5,797,200,000

JT) °
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At 31 December 2020, the Company’s distributable reserves

including retained profits and share premium amounted to
RMB3,820,866,000 (2019: RMB5,797,200,000).
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T EEARAA R BEELEEES The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
JEIEMBAT  EERAEZEN indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
AYAFERmEERNER A are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
KAEEEEENEELND =& portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
RAEFENNEMIBATINER @ giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
RiIgLEK ° excess length.
HREL/
2 EEHY HmER/BRTRA FE IR AL Bl TEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# Bk
Directly Indirectly
FOEAERMBVIERAR HBRAHS Uss2 100% - REER
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REEFRDERLH el US§72,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* MERRRERAA hE US$151,500,000 - 100% BERHEHEE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BRERRRERLA el US§17,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RERGRRARAT hE US$17,800,000 - 100% BERHEHEE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BRERRRERLH el US§44,300,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Xian Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
LEEESRRARLA Gl US$14,200,000 - 100% RERHEHEHE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RO ERRBARAA FH US$21,000,000 - 100% RERHENRE
Changsha Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* BREERRARLA G US$14,000,000 - 100% REREEHFE
* Nanling Tingyi Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RABER P ERRARL R US$32,500,000 - 100% BERHESRAE
* Master Kong (Kunming) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. # noodles
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e/
£ E ihER/ ERfTRE JEfE R gL ) B3
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
* RHEER I RRAERAT HE US$6,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co,, Ltd.* noodles
TFEERMARAT hE US$29,000,000 - 100% BERHERAE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RBRERRARAA HE US$17,000,000 - 100% HERHENFE
Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* FERERRARAR e US$3,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
* XinJiang TingYi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RHEER I RRRERLT HE US$5,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
* Master Kong (Chongging) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
* BHEERRARAR HE US$50,000,000 - 100% BERHELRE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EFRGRmARATA P US$22,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EREIRERAFEERA hE US$227,500,000 - 100% RERK
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
EHEAPRRAEAHEERA i U5$98,900,000 - 100% RE#R
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RERERRARAA HE US$37,000,000 - 100% HERHENFE
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant food
RABHREVIERAR AERAEE US$55,263 90.50% — REBR
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
RABRGIERERART REHE US$10,527.37 30.40% 4151%  RERR
KSF Beverage Ho\ding Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
* REERRmAN G US$60,840,000 - 7191% SERHEESM
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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Rl AN
£ EXHE ihER/ ERfTRE JEfk IR AELL IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
BAERRqAN G US$20,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
Guangzhou ngjm Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERRZRMARD PE US$73,500,000 7191% SERHEEAR
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EFEZRmAN G US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
Chongging Tingjin Food Co., ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EEEEARARA G US$15,000,000 7191% BEREERS
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EREZRMARD PE US$13,700,000 7191% SBERHEERR
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REEERRGERAT G US$33,000,000 7191% BEREERS
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* AEERARAN G US$10,000,000 7191% SERHEELR
* Hefei Tingjin Food (o, Ltd. i PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BRERRmAN G US$12,000,000 7191% RERHEEAR
* Kunming T\ngjm Food Co, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAERRAN G US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BE2ARBRA e US$16,000,000 7191% BEREERS
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BiEERRRERAF HE US$41,000,000 7191% BEREERR
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* FIBERHHERAT G US$48,500,000 7191% BEREERR
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REBRBRRERAT EF US$31,800,000 7191% BERHEERR
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* NERRRAN G US$36,500,000 7191% BEREERD
* Yangzhou ngjm Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* EAERAmAR AR G US$59,300,000 7191% RERHEERR
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REIE (REAE S mERAT i US$12,000,000 7191% BEREERS
* Master Kong (URUMQI) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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AV
£ EXHE ifEs/ BRTRE JEft IR iELL IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
* BYERRRAD e US$28,500,000 7191% SERHEESR
* Langfang ng in Food Co, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* FNERRRAD PE US$41,500,000 71.91% BERHEESM
* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* fMERRRAD P US$38,100,000 7191% RERHEEAR
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EAERRRE(FEERAA hE US$196,677,000 7191% REER
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd.  PRC Investment holding
PHERER (B BROA Bt Us$2 71.91% RERR
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
RABRRRAERAT® e US$358,216,517 7191% REAEK
Master Kong PBB Investment Ltd. PRC Investment holding
BEHE (EM) BRAF PE US$197,800,000 T191% BERHEERR
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Company Limited #  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNBETEHHARLA HE US$66,650,000 7191% BEREERD
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERAETRBHARLA HE US$14,119,449 5064% BEREERD
* Bejing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REASURHHARAT hE US$20,000,000 6763% HEREERR
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REBSURHHARAT HE RMB100,000,000 7191% SERHEESM
* Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RABESHHARAA e US$6,600,000 7191% SERHEELR
Chengdu PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNEEHHARLA PE US$1,350,000 T191% BERHEERR
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERREARHHARLA HE US$17,845,000 1354% BEREERD
* Chongging Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage Company Limited  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RIEZUERHERAT HE US$12,250,000 7191% RERHEERM
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RIPAEEDES ter] N hE US$10,400,000 3896% HERHEERR
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RYBSURAHERAT] HE US$28,000,000 7191% SERHEESM
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited *  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERREARIRAERLA e US$14,694,778 7191% SERHEESS
Kunming Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages

EEERRAERAE
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R/
£ EXHE ifEs,/ BRTRE JEfk IR AELL IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# [5}:3
Directly Indirectly
R BEARIRARLA) G RMB19,764,000 - 7191% SERHELR
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BERE (ER) ARAA PE US$9,000,000 - 5454%  BEREERR
* Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BEAEURBHARAA i US$5,000,000 - 6233% RERHERD
* Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
I EERHARLA i US$21,000,000 - 7191% BEREERD
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverages Co., Ltd.f PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BRREETRANARAT i US$35,000,000 - T191% BEREERR
Harbin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
E&EVIERERAR RERLES US$50,000 100% —  REZR
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co,, Ltd. BVI Investment holding
TEABVIERAR RERAES US$1,000 100% —  REZR
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
RAEESEVIERAR RERANE Uss1 100% — REBR
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
EHRERRLA RRRAES US$147,232,000 - 100% BABRR
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
PERERERARLA RRRAES Uss1 100% — REBR
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
LEERARLRERARAT G US$135,000,000 - 100% RENEEERE
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration PRC Provision of properties management
Co, Ltd.* service
RREEHABRAA hE US$200,000 100% —  REEERH
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of management services
* SEWB AT ERARIEE A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
) companies.
# N BEE O AR # English translation for identification purposes only.
e WAL ARE(hE)EEERAT e Formerly known as PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd.

Hit NEBRPBEHEAZHE QA
BRI KA REEINERE

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as

wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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Agricultural Bank of China

ANZ Bank

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of Ningbo

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

China Minsheng Bank

Deutsche Bank

Development Bank of Japan Inc.
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Metrobank

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

MUFG Bank

Rabobank

SPD Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The above banks are arranged in alphabetical order

Sidley Austin

PRC principal legal advisers:
Baker McKenzie

Haiwen & Partners
AlIBright Law Offices

as to Cayman Islands law:
Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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